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A recording of this meeting is being made for the purpose of verifying the accuracy of the minutes of the
Council Meeting.

The recording is being streamed live via Facebook, to improve transparency between council and the community
and give more people the opportunity to view what decisions are being made. You do not require a Facebook
account to watch the live broadcast, simply enter www.facebook.com/araratruralcitycouncil into your address bar.

Recordings of Council Meetings (excluding closed sessions) are made available on Council's website.



http://www.facebook.com/araratruralcitycouncil
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SECTION 1 - PROCEDURAL MATTERS

1.1 LIVE STREAMING
Council is keen to engage with members of the community and live streams the formal Council

Meetings to make them accessible. The stream is available to view on Council’s Facebook page
from 6pm and on Council’s website following the Council Meeting.

1.2 TRADITIONAL ACKNOWLEDGEMENT/OPENING PRAYER/COUNCILLORS PLEDGE
Traditional acknowledgement
We acknowledge the traditional owners of the land on which we meet today, and pay our
respects to their elders, past, present and emerging.
Opening Prayer
Almighty God, we humbly ask you to help us, as elected Councillors of the Ararat Rural City
Council. Guide our deliberations. Prosper what is your will for us, to your honour and glory and
for the welfare and benefit of the people whom we serve in the Ararat Rural City.
Councillors Pledge
We will faithfully and impartially carry out and exercise the functions, powers, authorities and

discretions invested in us under the Local Government Act 2020 and any other Act to the best
of our skill and judgement.

1.3 APOLOGIES

There were no Apologies

1.4 CONFIRMATION OF MINUTES
RECOMMENDATION
That the Minutes of the Council Meeting held on 25 March 2025 be confirmed.

MOVED CR SANDERS
SECONDED CR JOYCE

That the Minutes of the Council Meeting held on 25 March 2025 be confirmed.

No Councillors spoke for or against the motion

CARRIED 7/0
5119/25
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1.5 DECLARATION OF CONFLICT OF INTEREST

A Councillor who has a conflict of interest in a matter being considered at a Council meeting at
which he or she:

1 s present must disclose that conflict of interest by explaining the nature of the conflict of
interest to those present at the Council meeting immediately before the matter is
considered; or

2 intends to be present must disclose that conflict of interest by providing to the Chief
Executive Officer before the Council meeting commences a written notice:

(@) advising of the conflict of interest;
(b) explaining the nature of the conflict of interest; and
(c) detailing, if the nature of the conflict of interest involves a Councillor's relationship with
or a gift from another person, the:
e name of the other person;
e nature of the relationship with that other person or the date of receipt, value and
type of gift received from the other person; and
e nature of that other person’s interest in the matter,
and then immediately before the matter is considered at the meeting announcing to those
present that he or she has a conflict of interest and that a written notice has been given to
the Chief Executive Officer under this sub-Rule.

The Councillor must, in either event, leave the Council meeting immediately after giving the
explanation or making the announcement (as the case may be) and not return to the meeting
until after the matter has been disposed of.

There were no Declaration of Conflicts of Interests received.
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SECTION 2 - PUBLIC PARTICIPATION
2.1 PETITIONS AND JOINT LETTERS

1 Unless Council determines to consider it as an item of urgent business, no motion (other
than a motion to receive the same) may be made on any petition, joint letter, memorial or
other like application until the next Council meeting after that at which it has been
presented.

2 It is incumbent on every Councillor presenting a petition or joint letter to acquaint himself
or herself with the contents of that petition or joint letter, and to ascertain that it does not
contain language disrespectful to Council.

3 Every Councillor presenting a petition or joint letter to Council must:
e write or otherwise record his or her name at the beginning of the petition or joint
letter; and
e confine himself or herself to a statement of the persons from whom it comes, the
number of signatories to it, the material matters expressed in it and the text of the
prayer or request.

4 Every petition or joint letter presented to Council must be in writing (other than pencil),
typing or printing, contain the request of the petitioners or signatories and be signed by
at least 12 people.

5 Every petition or joint letter must be signed by the persons whose names are appended
to it by their names or marks, and, except in cases of incapacity or sickness, by no one
else and the address of every petitioner or signatory must be clearly stated.

6  Anysignature appearing on a page which does not bear the text of the whole of the
petition or request may not be considered by Council.

7 Every page of a petition or joint letter must be a single page of paper and not be posted,
stapled, pinned or otherwise affixed or attached to any piece of paper other than another
page of the petition or joint letter.

8 If a petition, joint letter, memorial or other like application relates to an operational
matter, Council must refer it to the Chief Executive Officer for consideration.

There were no Petitions or Joint Letters received.
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SECTION 3 - REPORTS REQUIRING COUNCIL DECISION
3.1 DISABILITY ACTION PLAN DEVELOPMENT PROCESS
RESPONSIBLE OFFICER: CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

DEPARTMENT: CEO’S OFFICE
REFERENCE: 20626

OFFICER DIRECT OR INDIRECT CONFLICT OF INTEREST:
Officers providing advice to Council must disclose any conflict of interest.

No person involved in the preparation of this report has a conflict of interest requiring disclosure.

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY
This report recommends a proposed process for Council to develop a Disability Action Plan for the
purposes referred to in the Disability Act 2006, Section 38 (1).

DISCUSSION

The Ararat Rural City Council is committed to fostering a more inclusive, welcoming, tolerant and
diverse community as demonstrated in the draft Council Plan 2025-29, and to equal employment
opportunities for all employees and potential employees. Council has incorporated universal
accessibility into its capital works and services where possible. This commitment is demonstrated in
new and recently upgraded community facilities such as the Gordon Street Recreation Reserve, the
new accessible playgrounds at Alexandra Gardens and Lake Bolac, and the upcoming new disability
drop-off zone on Barkly St, Ararat.

The Disability Act 2006 requires public authorities such as local governments to prepare a Disability
Action Plan. The Plan will describe how the Council will address access and inclusion barriers for
people with disability, as both service users and employees.

The proposed process for developing the Ararat Rural City Council’s Disability Action Plan is based on
the Australian Human Rights Commission'’s Disability Action Plan Guide (2021). This is summarised
below:

1. Establish a Disability Action Plan Working Group with representatives from organisations with
expertise in inclusive practices for people with disability.

2. Review Council's existing practices and services to identify what is currently working well and
where there may be opportunities for improvement. Community and user input will be sought
as part of this step and the findings will be presented to the Working Group for consideration
for the next step.

3. Develop and prioritise actions in response to the review with the Working Group, with
consideration for budget and resources, and in consultation with other peak disability
organisations, if required. This step will include the establishment of measurable objectives,
responsibilities, and evaluation strategies.

4. Presentthe draft Disability Action Plan to staff and community for feedback.

5. Present the final Disability Action Plan for adoption by Council. A copy of the adopted
Disability Action Plan will be provided to the Australian Human Rights Commission who will
make it available on their Register.

The reasonable timeframes for the review and development steps outline above will be guided by the
Working Group once established.
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KEY CONSIDERATIONS

Alignment to Council Plan Strategic Objectives
This initiative is aligned to the Draft Council Plan 2025-29 Objectives:

5. ENHANCING COMMUNITY LIFE

We will work with the communities of Ararat Rural City to maintain social cohesion, support community
activity and cultural life, and enhance safety.

5.3 Partner with community groups, not-for-profits, and Traditional Owner organisations to develop
Ararat Rural City as a more inclusive, welcoming, tolerant and diverse community.

Budget Implications
The development of the Disability Action Plan is expected to be undertaken with existing Council
resources and is therefore not expected to have budget implications.

Policy/Relevant Law
Disability Act 2006
Disability Discrimination Act 1992 (Cth)

Sustainability Implications
There are no sustainability implications in relation to the item

Risk Assessment

The development of the Disability Action Plan ensures Council complies with the Disability Act 2006 and
the Disability Discrimination Act 1992 (Cth). The involvement of organisations with expertise in inclusive
practices for people with disabilities helps to ensure that the Plan contributes to the elimination of
discrimination and promotes the recognition of the rights of people with disability.

Stakeholder Collaboration and Community Engagement
This report outlines how Council will undertake stakeholder collaboration and community engagement
in the development of the Disability Action Plan.

RECOMMENDATION

That:

1. The Ararat Rural City Council commences the development of the Disability Action Plan

2. A report be provided to Council at the November 2025 Council Meeting on the progress of the

establishment of the Working Group and its terms of reference.

MOVED CR WATERSTON
SECONDED CR KAUR

That:

1.  The Ararat Rural City Council commences the development of the Disability Action Plan

2. Areport be provided to Council at the November 2025 Council Meeting on the progress of
the establishment of the Working Group and its terms of reference.

Cr Waterston and Cr Kaur spoke for the motion

CARRIED 70
5120/25

ATTACHMENTS
There are no Attachments relating to this item
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3.2 ADVOCACY PROGRAM 2025
RESPONSIBLE OFFICER: CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

DEPARTMENT: CEO’S OFFICE
REFERENCE: 20627

OFFICER DIRECT OR INDIRECT CONFLICT OF INTEREST:
Officers providing advice to Council must disclose any conflict of interest.

No person involved in the preparation of this report has a conflict of interest requiring disclosure.

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY
This report provides an update to the Advocacy Program 2025 that was adopted at the March 2025
Council Meeting and presents the Ararat Rural City Council Advocacy Priorities 2025 document.

DISCUSSION

At the March 2025 Council Meeting, the advocacy priorities for the Ararat Rural City were confirmed
for 2025. To support Council’s efforts, an Advocacy Priorities 2025 document has been prepared. The
format of this document enables each priority to be presented and shared with Federal and State
Governments as individual issues or as a comprehensive list of priorities that are aligned with our
strategic objectives.

On Friday 28" March 2025, the Prime Minister called the Federal Election for 3" May 2025. Council
has continued to focus on the issues that are of critical importance to the municipality, including the
East Grampians Rural Water Pipeline, supporting access to childcare and kindergarten, and delivering
local road improvements. Our advocacy activities do not stop once the Federal Election has occurred,
they will continue into the next term of the Australian Government.

Council has continued to advance our priorities to State Government as well, such as housing, more
trains, and advocating against the Emergency Services & Volunteers Fund. The efforts on these issues
and the other advocacy priorities will also continue to be pursued with the Victorian Government.

KEY CONSIDERATIONS
Alignment to Council Plan 2021-25 Strategic Objectives

2. BUILDING ROBUST LOCAL ECONOMIES
We will develop strong relationships to build and strengthen a diverse local economy, focussed
on creating jobs and wealth through adding value to existing strengths in agriculture,
manufacturing, tourism and hospitality.

2.2 Work with other levels of government, local business, and private investors to develop a
business park within Ararat Rural City, focused on agricultural value adding and advanced
manufacturing, potentially leveraging “behind the meter” power.

2.3 Engage with Grampians Tourism and local businesses to drive growth in high yield tourist
outcomes.

3. PRESERVING OUR ENVIRONMENT
We will take pragmatic approaches to ensuring that Ararat Rural City Council takes a regional
lead in responsible environmental management and engagement with the circular economy.

3.1 Position Ararat Rural City Council as a prime mover in driving circular economy policy in waste
management, including local processing and management of recyclables, and in use of
renewable energy for Council purposes.

3.2 Develop innovative energy solutions utilising locally produced waste.
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4. DEVELOPING AND MAINTAINING KEY ENABLING INFRASTRUCTURE
We will ensure that we plan, fund and develop new infrastructure in ways that delivers strong
public value. Existing infrastructure will be managed, renewed, and maintained to ensure that it
continues to serve identified public needs.

4.3 Deliver infrastructure outcomes that support economic growth, promote community wellbeing
and safety, and align with Council’s financial sustainability.

Budget Implications
The work to advocate for these priorities will be undertaken by existing resources and has no budget
implications.

Policy/Relevant Law
N/A

Sustainability Implications
N/A

Risk Assessment

There is little material risk in implementing the advocacy program. Failure to achieve effective progress
on these key issues may impede positive economic, social and environmental outcomes for Ararat Rural
City.

Stakeholder Collaboration and Community Engagement
These key advocacy issues have been identified through community, stakeholder and
intergovernmental engagement.

RECOMMENDATION

That Council:

1. Endorses the Ararat Rural City Council Advocacy Priorities 2025 document and format,

2. Publishes the Ararat Rural City Council Advocacy Priorities 2025 document on Engage Ararat,
3. ?:Zitinues to advocate to State and Federal governments to on the key priorities identified in the

Ararat Rural City Council Advocacy Priorities 2025 document to move them forward and achieve
outcomes for the community.

MOVED CR JOYCE
SECONDED CR SANDERS

That Council:

1. Endorses the Ararat Rural City Council Advocacy Priorities 2025 document and format,

2. Publishes the Ararat Rural City Council Advocacy Priorities 2025 document on Engage
Ararat, and

3. Continues to advocate to State and Federal governments to on the key priorities identified
in the Ararat Rural City Council Advocacy Priorities 2025 document to move them forward
and achieve outcomes for the community.

Cr Joyce, Cr Sanders and Cr Jo Armstrong spoke for the motion

CARRIED 7/0
5121/25

ATTACHMENTS
The Ararat Rural City Council Advocacy Priorities 2025 is provided as Attachment 3.2
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Traditional Acknowledgement

Ararat Rural City Council acknowledges the
Traditional Owners of the land on which we
live and work, the Eastern Maar, Wotjobaluk,
Jaadwa, Jadawadjali, Wergaia, Jupagulk,
and Wadawurrung peoples, and recognise
their connection to the land and waterways.

We pay our respects to their Elders past,
present and emerging, and to all Aboriginal
and Torres Strait Islander people.
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From the Mayor, Cr Jo Armstong

Ararat Rural City Council has identified a number of major
issues and projects that require odvocacy to move them
forward and ochieve outcomes for the community, We
also have a number of significant projects that are ready
to go, and are simply waiting for the right government
policies, settings and frameworks.

Wae will actively advocate for our priorities to State and
Federal Governments so that our municipality can reach
its full potential ond thrive.

<&

Ararat Rural City
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01 Housing Support

Continued support s reeced from
Siote ond Federol Governments to

Calver More housting

03 Kinder Infrastructure

New tindargarten foclities are needed to
meet future Lnmet demand, os woll os
the renawol of ssisting foclities.

02 Childcare Access

ACCess 10 childcon In rurol arecs
Noods 1O be Improved, especioly in
ploces e Loke Boloo

04 More Trains

More trokn secvices 20 AGrat are criticol
for ienproved Bvability ond 0ocees o
troining and tourlem opportunities
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Continued Support to
Deliver More Housing

Driven by years of chronic workforce and housing shortages, Ararat Rural
City Council have undertaken bold new approaches to overcome housing
market fallure, support local jobs and transform its community and
economy. Council’'s partnerships with State and Federal governments, local
philanthropists, reputable and capable property developers and businesses
has worked to Increase supply of sultable, sustainable, safe and affordable
housing.

Ararat needs more quality rental housing. People who relocate for jobs are
typically not in a position to buy a home right away, they need to rent a place
first, and temporary construction workers do not buy homes in project
locations, There is a severe shortage of rental housing in Ararat, and an even
shorter supply of quality rentals, Council will advocate for a continuation of
State and Federal programs that have been effective in delivering more
housing in the Ararat Rural City.

A
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Council will advocate for funding
models and policy settings that
support the establishment of
more childcare opens in areas
with unmet demand and limited
access to childcare, such as
Lake Bolac.

<&

Ararat Rural City

lmprove
Childcare
Accessin
Rural Areas

The Federal Government's 3-day
guarantee that enables all
families eligible for Child Care
Subsidy to access 3 days of
subsidised care for each child will
have a positive impact on
children and familles.

This will be particularly positive
for women, who are the most
commaon primary carer, and their
access to employment and
training. However, the availabllity
of childcare in rural areas is
limited.

10471



29 APRIL 2025 @
COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES

Ararat Rural City

Deliver

Kindergarten
Infrastructure

The Kindergarten Infrastructure and Services Plan (KISP) 2025
modelling shows that in the Ararat SA2 (ie the suburb of Ararat), there
will not be enough kindergarten places to meet demand from 2026
onwards, Council and the Department of Education have commenced
discussions on planning for expansions or new kindergarten facilities in
Ararat,

Council will be advocating for new kindergarten facilities to meet the
unmet demand as well as renewal and refurbishment of existing
facilities to extend their useful life, where possible.

Much of the existing sessional kindargarten
L infrastructure is oged and/or poarly
configured, poorly insulatad for heating aond
2 cooling, and there is very limited notural
lighting at one of the locations
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N

Trains to
Ararat

The announcement by the Victorian Government on 28 February
2025 on the two new weekend return services on the Ararat Line is
a step in the right direction. Council will continue to advocate for
more public transport services for Ararat.

Al
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BUILDING ROBUST
LOGAL EGONOMIES

01 Water Pipeline

The full axtent of the Eost Grompions
Rurcl Water Pipeline Projoct s essenticl
for narol communities and economies

03 Mountain Bike Trails

The Arcect Mils MOUntoin Bike Trols will
yledd sigrificont economic banelits to the

comiTanty,

05 Renewable Energy Park

austricl trunk infrostructure will uniock
now business estobishment ot the Arorot
Recwwatie [reegy Pork

mage: Canols Rekds in willsars, crca 2017

02 Activate Aradale

This i critical to unlocking
Gavelopenent of the entire Ararct
Eost Developmaent Zone

04 Wine Discovery Centre

A Geompians Wine Discovery Centre wi
drive visitation ond investment in the locol
and regional touriem sector

06 Mobile & NBN

Poce conemctivity regatively Impoces on
MAIGONCY PIOpOIedness ond responss,
and in the day-1o-day Ives of residents
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3

EGRP - Pipe Installed as on 07 April 2025 (No
Water Supply)

Frasbiiny Ppeline Areas Boundary

D

EGPP Corstruction Zones

N Zonet [Lake Fyens Pump Ststion)
Jare 3
Zone3

Tore d

Deliver the Full Extent
of the East Grampians Rural
Water Pipeline Project

This project has been plagued by delays, and the extent of Construction Zone 4
has been only partially included in the delivery scope due to cost. The recent
Grampians bushlires and the continuing dry conditions has created hardships
that could have been avoided or alleviated if the full extent of the Pipeline had
been delivered on time.

These recent challenging events have also highlighted why it is so critical that the
full extent of the East Grampians Rural Water Pipeline Project is delivered as soon

as possible.

age Jowoe Gatwmer Lasters Grampiara Ppeioe Frogect - Fublic Vap
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Activate Aradale: Funding for Critical Studies '@

Ararat Rural Cay

The Ararat Development Strategy’
Concept Masterplan & Feasibity
Report identified 6 Precincts and a
range of potential land uses,
Including:
* Tourism & Accommaodation
¢ ChicHistoricallCommunity
* Restsurants, brewernies and
distillenies
* Functions, galleries. public and
private events
* Residential housing
* Indigenous ‘bush-tucker’
paddock-to-plate businesses

Precinct Hectares
(appron)
1 Hasons Cose a2ra
B O/ Touram 4 ha
3. Productve Lang FUET
0 4 Pesoormal 402 ha
£ Landscopo putia roaim  1t4ha

Located st the gateway to Ararat, Aradale was ooiginally built in 1860s and festures over
60 bulldings. Since the closure of the Asylum in 1993, the 100-hectare site has been
largely underutibsed. Activation of the Aradale site is the key to unlocking residential and
commercial development of the entire Ararat East Development Zone. Substantisted by
the Aradale Development Strategy (2022), actrvation of the site to Its full potential will
drive the future growth and deversification of the regional econony

The potential economic benefits include:

o Atract 82000 new overnight visitoes to the region and increase the yielkd of 45,000
existing vistors through new activities/development, events, functions and tours, and
new wine events and accommodation in the Heritage Core and Events/Tourism
Precincts, generating $20 9M in additional visitor experditure

* Provide housing in the Residential Development Precinct to support around 450
workers 1o the local business base and support an additional 1,100 residents to live in
the Ararst region

The next step identified in the Asadale Development Strategy is 10 commission critical
studies, such as environmental, blodiversity. drainage/Mlocd, heritage, iIndigenous cultural
herttage and other necessary investigations and plans are required in order to progress
through to the next stages of this significant economic project

{Below: excerpt from the Aradale Development Strategy)
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DELIVER THE ARARAT HILLS
MOUNTAIN BIKE TRAILS

Thils initicrtive will yield significont Sconomic Densfits to the comenunity. In 2020 $3 milion in funding
was provided by the Victorion Stote Governmant, theough ROV, and Councll to construct the trock.
The project woas monoged by Porks Vio as landownons but it has foced signiicont caloys arcund

plareing ond conseet.

Councll will continue 10 atvocats for the delivery of & Mountaln bike rock in the Arceot Hils
Reglonol Pork and work with Troditional Ownens ond Regional Developement Victora 10 resolve the
Issues thot hos stolled this projoct
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Grampians Wine Discoverg Centre

The Grampions wine region has over 150 peors of history, with some of
the world’s oldest vines and Is one of the longest continually producing
wing regions in Victoria, While our wine ond food offering is growing, the
Grompions struggles ot times 10 compete with other lorger wine regions
because of a lock of visible presence To help overcome this, the
potential exdsts to develop a reglonal wine and produce emporium.

The need ond business case for 0 Grompions Wine Discovery Centre
has been estoblished in the Grompions Destination Manogement Plon
2023-2030 (DMP). This Centre Is important for ocur local winemakers, it
will boost our locol and regional tourism economy and It the region's
profile 0os on exeptional food, drink ond wine destinotion. The
Grompians Wine Discovery Centre is one of the top five public enablers
for privote investments identified in the Grompians Strategic Tounsm
nvestment Plan, and listed as a high priority investment cpportunity in
the Ararat Region in the Grompions Towrksm Investment Prospectus.

Funding Request

The Ararat Rural City Councll ond Gramplans Wimmera Mallee Tourtsm
ore seeking $500,000 of funding 10 develop & Mojor wine discovery
centre in Ararot ond 10 enocble this regonally significant initiotive 1o
come 10 fruition In the future,

Council have committed $125,000 for a total project cost of $625,000
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Industrial Trunk Infrastructure for
the Ararat Renewable Energy Park

THE MISSING PIECE

The Ararat Renewable Energy Park is the preferred site for Valorify's $400M biogas plant,
PlastOil's $270M soft plastics recycling refinery, and other new business ventures keen to
establish themselves in Ararat. But this site currently lacks trunk infrastructure
connections to essential services, including water, sewer, electricity and gas.

The dependency on the first business to establish themselves to cover the cost of
bringing trunk infrastructure to the precinct dramatically increases startup costs for that
first business, and rendering many otherwise commercially viable proposals unviable.
This acts as a major barrier to development of the precinct and the resultant economic
growth. Council seeks funding to deliver trunk infrastructure to the Ararat Renewable
Energy Park to overcome this hurdle and speed up the creation of jobs and economic
activity for the Ararat region.

Strategic Site Location
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IMPROVE MOBILE PHONE
AND NBN GONNECTIVITY
IN RURAL AREAS

Many of our rural communities have reported a complete lack of
service since 3G waos turned off. These mobile black spots
negatively impact on preparedness and response in
emergencies and in the day-to-day lives of residents. Council
hosted a series of Community Emergency Management Planning
Workshops in late 2024-early 2025.

A very clear message from these workshops was the major
concerns around lack of coverage ond the inability to stay up to
date on the VicEmergency warnings during the recent bushfires.
EFTPOS machines also regularly drop out, and the lack of

reception discourages revisits by tourists.
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PRESERVING OUR
ENVIRONMENT
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01 Give Greater Confidence and Support to Renewable Gas

Othar renowobile fusl alermnotives ore not yet abile 10 fully repéace gos in high tempercture

cpplcotions, Cleat policy directions In suppon of Meewabie GOt PrOducton ls Needed to
Gve greatar confidence to occelerate rvestrment In renewabie enorgy genartion

10481




29 APRIL 2025 @
COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES N

Ararat Rural City

Give Greater Confidence and
Support to Renewable Gas

Gas will continue to be essential in a net-
zero future (Annual Climate Change
Statement 2024, DCCEEW). Other renewable
fuel alternatives are not yet able to fully
replace gas in high temperature applications
in some industries, and it cannot be
substituted as chemical inputs into some
products such as medicines, fertilisers and
cleaning products. For these industries, a
renewable gas source would reduce the use
of fossil fuel gas.

While other States have been proactive in
supporting renewable gas developments,
the Victorian Government have dragged
their feet with the development of
roadmaps, consultation papers, policy
direction papers, and more policy
framework development.

Victoria's Gas Substitution Strategy and AEMO's 2025 Gas Statement of Opportunities
recognises the need for new gas supply developments to prevent future supply gaps as
southern fossil fuel gas production continues to decline. Renewable gases such as biogas
provide a carbon-neutral natural gas substitutes that do not generate additional
greenhouse gas emissions when burnt.

The Victonan Government needs to provide clear policy directions in support of renewable
gas production, This will give greater confidence to accelerate Valorify's $400 million
biogas plant in Ararat and subsequent enterprises that seek to co-locate and access
“behind the meter” power.

Valorify’s $400m biomethane plant will use agricultural waste that is normally burnt on-
farm, releasing tons of CO2 emissions plus other harmful gases, to produce a surplus of
over 4 petajoules (PJ) of green gas annually at full production. This volume is equivalent to
6.5 per cent of Victoria’s gas usage in 2020, and is enough to supply the entire Carrisbrook
to Horsham gas pipeline (approx. 1 PJ per annum), which services townships such as Ararat,
Horsham, Maryborough, and Stawell.
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KEY ENABLING
INFRASTRUCTURE

R

rage eew road sl acpied 1o Andreen Lane sune 304

01 Local Roads Funding 02 Buangor-Ben Nevis Rd
Smoller rurol councils often have the A vitod thoroughdars betwesn the

Kargest rood network por Copita, longer Pyrecwos Highwaoy ond Westom

tarm r00d funding surety s orisicol Highwoy for locols, frieght ond tourists

03 Mount William Road 04 Western Highway Upgrade
One of the busiest ond Important heavy The upgrode of this key tronsport route
vehicle freight Binks, this rood is vital for wIgently neaded to improve salety ond

the locol ogriculburcl econoery transport eMicikency

05 North-South HV Route

A NOMH-s0uth haGvy veicle route s
noeeded 10 remaove lange trucks from the
Arcect CBD
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MORE LOCAL ROAD FUNDING

There are a number of State and
Federal road funding progroms
that enable Council to maintain
and renew its rood network,

Programs that provide recurring
and upfront amounts and criteria
such as Roads to Recovery and the
Local Roads and Community
Infrastructure fund have been
valuabie for enabling Council to
decide which roods meet the
funding criteria and local needs.
There ore oiso a number of
competitive grant programs which
generally require more details and
a certain level of design work
upfront.

Smaller rural councils, who often
also have the largest road network
per capita, often find it challenging
to dedicate resources upfrontto a
grant application that has risks of
not being awarded. Council will
advocate to maintain and index

recurring funding programs, as well
as advocate for new roads funding

programs that can provide longer
term funding surety and have
streamilined application processes.
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Buangor Ben-Nevis Road Upgrade

Buangor-Ben Nevis Road s a wvital thoroughfare between the
Pyrenees Highway and Western Highway, and is a signéficant route
for fresght vehicles as well as local and tourist traffic. These renewal
and upgrade improvements to the road will allow for a reduction in
the number of large capacity vehicles travelling through Ararat, in
turn aleviating the impact on local roads and substantally
Increasing transport efficiency.

Buangor-Ben Nevis Road is also the main route for accessing the
townships of Buangor, Bayindeen, Warrak and Mount Cole Creek,
These reconstruction works will dediver improved connectivity and
an enhanced driving expenence to our local community, reducing

Works proposed mclude road seal wadened to a minimum of 7
metres, excavabion and removal of easting pavement, new road
base course layers, drainage works, sealing, inemarking, safety
bamers and associated signage.

Ararat Rural City Councll have allocated over $3m for urgent
reconstruct works. A further $1.25m is committed in subsequent
financial years to leverage Federal Government funding to undertake
further works along ths route.

Eunding Requested
Councll s seeking S5 millon from the Federal Government to deliver this project

Ararat Rural Coy
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Mount William Road - Stage 2

Mount William Road serves as the region’s main freight route to the
CHS Broadbent - Lakaput Bulk Storage Faality. The road takes

heavy agncultural freight camying wheat, barley, canola and
oats from across the entire Wirnmera Southern Mallee.

As one of the busiest and most witally important heavy vehicle
fresght links, the road is vital in supporting Victona's agricultural
econamy over the harvest season,

Recognising its importance as a prmary product to market road,
Council has recently mvested in a number of emergency works to
respond to failures of the road pavement.

These works have only scratched the surface of the level of
maintenance required, with damages to the road base and narrow
shoulders an impediment to meeting the increasing demands of
industry.

Councll have developed a proposal that will see the reconstruction
of a 10km section of the road pavement, plus works to widen the
road seal to 7 metre dual lane with centre and edge hine markings,
raised road pavement marking (RRPM), and improved water run-off.

The road reconstruction works will enhance freight efficency and
safety and reduce whole-of -ife asset management costs,

Eunding Bequested
Coundl has secured S5 million from the Federal Government and s contributing $1.25 million. This 3
proposal secks a further $3 milion for Stage 2, recognising the strategic importance of the road to the

entire Westen Victorias and the Wimmers Mallee economy:
Ararat Rural COey
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Image: Pocr diatance viibility on 3pproach to 3 marrow bricge on the Westarmn Highway near Busngae Source Google Maps

Deliver the Western Highway
Upgrade from Buangor to Ararat

The Western Highway from Buangor
to Ararat continues to experience
unacceptable levels of traffic
accidents that cause fatalities, injury,
disruptive road closures and detours
onto rural roads.

ARARAT Buangor Bypass
Complated Nov 2016

The upgrade of this key transport
route is urgently needed to improve
safety and transport efficlency.

BUANGOR

Buangor to Ararat Beaufort to Buangor

Scanus of e 10 Ararat section of the Westem
image wsa‘w g hwmmcnmonhow. Completed Apr 2016
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DELIVER A NORTH SOUTH
HEAVY VEHICLE ROUTE

image Heavy vehicle trucks on Pyrences Highwary (Vincent St) through the Ararat CBD
The North South route of the Pyrenees Highway along Vincent St in the Ararat CBD has a
significant number of heavy vehicle movements which roises safety concerms and causes
congestion at the Vincent St/Barkly St and Vincent St/High St intersections.

A solution to this issue to develop a heavy vehicle route for the Pyrenees Highway to the
East of the Ararat township to remove heavy vehicles from these two intersections.

Councll will advocate for planning and delivery of this project with the Department of
Transport and Planning.
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ENHANGING
COMMUNITY LIFE

01 New Tatyoon Pavilion 02 New Indoor Sports
Complex

Community sporting chubs ofe O key Now recrectional foclities that ore

port of the sockol fabeic of nurol functional, occessitie, inclusive are

COMMUNEns., neoded

03 A&J McDonald Centre 04 Ararat Pool Upgrade
Redevelopment

Much of this buliding is not in current use Upgrode the Ararot Outdoor Pool 1o

due 10 s lock of essentiol Infrostructure enable It 10 be used ol yeor ouna

ond dischility 0ccess.
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Tatyoon Recreation Reserve New Pavilion

Community sporting clubs are a key part of the social fabric of rural communities. The
social element helps to retain players, keeps them engaged In sport and encourages their
kids and grandiads to play as well

Council will seek co-funding from the State and Federal governments and community for

the development of the new pavilion and a refurbishment of the football change rooms to
modernise the amenities and make them femnale friendly.
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New Indoor Sports Complex

The Council remains committed to
delivering recreational focilities that
are functional, accessible, inclusive,
and thot yleld significont sociol,
SCONOMIC and community benefit to
residents of the Ararat Rural City.

The redeveiopment of the existing
Araorat Fitness Centre wos
determined 1o be no longer o
financially sound and responsible
option for achieving this outcome.
Plonning is underway for ¢ new
Indoor Sports Complex ot Alexandro
Oval Precinct. Co-funding will be
sought from Stote ond Federal
Governments 10 deliver this project.
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A &J MCDONALD CENTRE
REDEVELOPMENT

Grampians Community Health (GCH) in partnership with Ararat Rural City Council are
seeking to redevelop the A & ) McDonald Centre into a community health and social
hub. The McDonald Centre & a large 19505 era Art Deco building that has served as a
community centre and public hall Much of the building is not in current use due to its
lack of essential infrastructure and disability access. This results in imitations with
particpating community health programs and support becomeng dispersed across the
region, and increased limitatons in terms of the abedity to meet needs associated with
future service provision

The proposed redevelopment, buiit strongly of the foundation of GCH as the lead
tenant, will bring together a range of related service providers to deliver integrated,
accessible services to the community from a co-located site. The facility will offer
general practice, allied health, Home and Community Care services, community
nursing, NDIS, health promotion, akcoheol and other drugs support, family violence
sarvices, housing, mental health, maternal and child health, Aboriginal support,
community care, palliative care, aged and dsability services, youth mental health, My
Aged Care services, carer connect and carer support services, migrant resettiernent,
youth services, and adult education and training
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ARARAT OUTDOOR
POOL UPGRADE

Planning is currently underway on an
upgrade to the Ararat Outdoor Pool to
enable it to be utilised all year round,
rather than only in summer as it is
currently. Co-funding will be sought
from State and Federal Governments
to deliver this project.

TP -
2 Tt ',T’,’ ~aiv Nugls o o
_-.

Example of year-round Example of sunroom-like pool enclosure
indoor splash park
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EFFECTIVE
GOVERANGE

01 Condem ESVF 02 Faster, Better DRFA

Councl will cdvocats cgairat the Councils need 0 faster ond for more
Emesgency Services & Volunteers Fund streamiiewd pe for the D4
on behall of our community Recovery Funding Arrongemaents
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CONDEMNATION
OF THE ESVF

While Council acknowledges the impornance of adequate funding
for emergency services, Council has condemned the Emergoncy
Services & Volunteers Fund (ESVF) due to Its disproportionate
impact on primary producers, obscenely steep Increase imposed
onto all ratepayers, and the ongoing expectation that local
councils oct as the collection agency for o stote-imposed tox.
Councll will odvocate ogainst the ESVF on behalf of our community.

The ESVF variable rote for Prirnory
Production proparties is nearly 3
times the Fire Services Property Lavy
(FsPL) rate. The excebitant impost on
primary producers penalises the very
pecpie who make the biggest
contribution 10 the emergency reliel
and response efforts in regional ond
nxol orecs,

Local councils are curently tasked
with collecting the FSPL and the ESVF,
which creates o significont
administrative burden on councils os
the collection ogency.

Coundil stoff beor the brunt of
dagruntied ratepayers when they
$08 the increased total bill on thelr
rates notice, yet none of the ESVF is

guaranteed 1o be spent in the
municipality where it Is collected.
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FASTER, MORE STREAMLINED
PROGESSES FOR DRFA

Natural disosters such as mojor bushfires, storms and floods are expected to
become more intense and frequent. The current burdensome administrative
processes for the Disaster Recovery Funding Arrangements (DRFA)mean that
councils are left out of pocket for emergency recovery works for over 12
months per cisaster event.

This is very financially cholenging for small rural councils and where muitiple
disaster events occur within a short period of time. This has been
experionced by Ararat Rural City with two major bushfires in 2024 (AGRN 1108
and 1168) and major floods in 2023 (AGRN 1037).
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33 FAIR ACCESS POLICY & PLAN
RESPONSIBLE OFFICER: CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

DEPARTMENT: CEO’S OFFICE
REFERENCE: 20628

OFFICER DIRECT OR INDIRECT CONFLICT OF INTEREST:
Officers providing advice to Council must disclose any conflict of interest.

No person involved in the preparation of this report has a conflict of interest requiring disclosure.

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

This report recommends that Councils adopts the reviewed Fair Access Policy and the Fair Access Plan
which seeks to address know barriers that are experienced by women and girls within our municipality,
in accessing and using community sports infrastructure and recreation reserve facilities.

The scope of the Fair Access Policy is to support Ararat Rural City Council to take positive action towards
achieving gender equity in the access and usage of community sports infrastructure.

The policy and the plan are designed to:

e To build capacity and capabilities of Ararat Rural City Council in the identification and
elimination of systemic causes of gender inequality in policy, programs, communications and
delivery of services in relation to community sport and recreation.

e To ensure an effective place-based response for the gender equitable use and access of
community sports infrastructure (both new and existing)

e To promote gender equality in policies, programs, communications and services as they relate
to community sports infrastructure (starting with the completion of Gender Impact Assessments)

DISCUSSION

In December 2015, the Victorian Government released a report from the independent Inquiry into
Women and Girls in Sport and Active Recreation. The report shed light on gender inequality in
Victorian sports and recreation. The report outlined a way forward, helping change and improve sport
and recreation for all involved.

On the 25 July 2023, the Fair Access Policy was presented and adopted at Council meeting. Part of the
implementation f this policy was that Council would undertake a GIA on all current community sports
infrastructure access and use policies and processes, and to consider opportunities to strengthen
gender equitable access and use of community sports facilities in alignment with the Fair Access
Principles for relevant land managed and owned by Council.

There is a requirement to have a gender equitable access and use policy and action plan in place, and
the ability to demonstrate progress against that policy and action plan in place as this will form part of
the eligibility criteria for Victorian Government funding programs relating to community sports
infrastructure from 1 July 2024.

The Fair Access Plan 2025-2029 underpins the Fair Access Policy by identifying specific actions to
progress gender equitable access and use of community sports infrastructure. The actions align with
the aims of Council’s Fair Access Policy principles and specifically address the Fair Access Principles
developed by the Office for Women in Sport and Recreation.
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The Action plan supports the commitment of Council and the municipality sports clubs to take positive
actions towards achieving gender equity and removing barriers for women and girls to participate in
community sports and recreation.

KEY CONSIDERATIONS

Alignment to Council Plan Strategic Objectives
The key financial drivers align strongly with the thrust of the Council Plan 2021-202, particularly the
following:

4. Developing and Maintaining Key Enabling Infrastructure
We will ensure that we plan, fund and develop new infrastructure in ways that delivers strong
public value. Existing infrastructure will be managed, renewed, and maintained to ensure that it
continues to serve identified public needs.

5. Enhancing Community Life
We will work with the communities of Ararat Rural City to maintain social cohesion, support
community activity and cultural life, and enhance safety.

5.3 Partner with community groups, not-for-profits, and traditional owner organisations to develop
Ararat Rural City as a more inclusive and diverse community

Budget Implications
There are no budget implications

Policy/Relevant Law
The Fair Access Policy has been introduced as a mandatory requirement by the Victorian State
Government.

Council policies include:
e Gender Equality Act 2020
e Local Government Act 2020
e Equal Opportunity Act 2010
e Gender Equality Action Plan 2011-2025 (Ararat Rural City Council)
e Diversity and Inclusion Strategy 2023-2026 (Ararat Rural City Council)
e Seasonal User Agreement Alexandra Oval - Ararat Rats Football Netball Club
e Seasonal User Agreement Alexandra Over - Ararat Eagles Football Netball Club
e Gordon Street User Agreements
e Gymnastic Club Ararat Fitness Centre Agreement
e Avrarat Basketball Association Ararat Fitness Centre Agreement\
e Grampians Cricket Association

Sustainability Implications
There are no economic, social or environmental implications in relation to the item

Risk Assessment
The implementation of the Fair Access Policy and Plan mitigates the risk of not being eligible for Victoria
State Government funding as of 1 July 2024

Stakeholder Collaboration and Community Engagement
Council will need to engage with sporting clubs that currently use these facilities in relation to the action
plan and how we will work with the clubs to achieve the actions outlined.
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RECOMMENDATION

That Council:

1. Adopts the revised Fair Access Policy and

2. Endorses the Fair Access Plan for public comment

3. Commence a community engagement process via Engage Ararat and directly with local sports
clubs.

4. Consider the revised Fair Access Plan at the June Council Meeting

MOVED CR KAUR

SECONDED CR R ARMSTRONG
That Council:

1. Adopts the revised Fair Access Policy and

2. Endorses the Fair Access Plan for public comment

3. Commence a community engagement process via Engage Ararat and directly with local
sports clubs.

4. Consider the revised Fair Access Plan at the June Council Meeting

Cr Kaur and Cr R Armstrong spoke for the motion

CARRIED 7/0
5122/25

ATTACHMENTS
The Fair Access Policy & Plan are provided as Attachment 3.3
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Acknowledgment of Troditiona! Owners

Council acknowledges the traditional owners of the land on which we meet, and pay our respacts to their
elders, past, present, and emerging.
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INTRODUCTION

In 2020, the Viciorian State Government passed the Gender Equalty Act which ts designed 1o improve workplace
gender aquaity in the Victorian Public Sector.

As the level of government closest to the community, Victonan Councils have a mandate to create heatthy, safe,
and inclusive communities.

The Fair Access Polcy (the Polcy) seeks 1o address known bamers experienced by women girls and gender
diverse people in accessing and using community sports mfrastructure. The Policy aims 1o progressively bulld
capacity and capabiities of Ararat Rural City Councll (Council) in the identificaion, and elmination of systemic
causes of gender inequality in policy, programs, communications, and delivery of services in refation o
community sports infrastruchure.

Council will undertake all necessary and proportionate steps towards impéementation of the Falr Access Policy.
STATEMENT OF COMMITMENT TO GENDER EQUALITY

Council is commitied 10 enswing that everyone, regardiess of ther gender identity, has equal access

Achieving gender equality supports Council's stance that all forms of vickence aganst women and chddren,
persons of diverse sexual orentations and gender identities are not acceptable and will not be tolerated as part
of our business practices.

This Statement of Commiiment estabishes the expectation that gender equality is considered and prioritised in
all current and future pianning, policy, service delivery and practice.

BACKGROUND

Sport is a highly visible and valued feature of Councils culture and identity. The sport and active recreation seclor
provide opportunities for ensiching our communities through the promotion of respect and fair mindedness for all
people, while also supporting the physical and mental welibeing of all Victorians. Councd is well positioned to
design and implement place-based, integrated actions plans that progress gender equality in community sport.

The Victorian Govemnment is commitiod %o developing an environment for all Victorians % live in a safe and equal
sociely, have access 10 equal power, resources, and opportunities, and are treated with dignity, respect, and
faimess. A reform agenda has been developed 10 change the systems that have perpetuated gender ineguality
by designing an enduring structre that requires implementation and tracking of progress over Sme.

This reform agenda ncludes addressing the waditional structures and way community sport and recreation
organtsations operate through the Implementation of all nine (9) recommendations fom the 2015 Inquiy info
Women and Girts in Sport and Active Recreation. This intiudes recommendation six (6)

*..encourage facitly owners and managers 1o review access and Usage poicies fo enswre

women and Girls have a fai share of access 1o the highest qualty facilities af the besf and most

popular imes™
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and

Taciltating & universal adophon of [policies, strafegies and awdil lools] will drive change further”

As a defined entity of the Gender Equaiity Act 2020, Councl will be required from 31 March 2021 to conduct
Gender Impact Assessments (GIA) on 2l new policies, programs, communications, and sarvices, inciuding those
up for review, which directly and significantly impact the public {(Gender Equality Act 2020). The access and use
of community sports infrastructure is an exampie of policy that has a drect and significant impact on the public

SCOPE

The Policy enables effective and efficient integration of the requirements of the Gender Equalty Act 2020, the
Local Governmen! Act 2020 and the Public Heakth and Wellbeing Act 2008 and other legistative frameworks.

The scope of the Policy is 10 support Council 1o take positive action towards achieving gender equity in the access
and usage of community sports infrastructure. This complies with the Gender Equality Act 2020 and aligns with
Municipal Public Health and Welibeing Plans or Councll Strategies:

Reform Agenda

Objectives

To support Ararat Rural City Council to take
positive action towards achieving gender
equity in the access and use of community
sports infrastructure

To buiki capacity and capabities of Ararat Rural City
Coundd in the identification and elimination of systemic
causes of gender inequality in policy, programs,
commaunications, and delivery of senvices in relation to
community sport and recreation.

To ensure an eflective place-based response for the gender
equitable use and access of community sports
nirastructure.

To promote gender equaity in policies, programs,
communications, and seqvices as they relate 10 community
sports infrastructure.

For Ararat Rural City Councd, the Policy applies 1o the following community sports nfrassuctureaciities:

Facility Location
1__| Alexandra Oval Community Centre Waratah Avenue, Ararat
2 | Gordon Street Recreation Reserve Gordon St Ararat
3 | Araral Finess Centre 61-73 High St, Ararat
4 | Willaura Recreation Reserve Delacombe Way. Wilaura
5 | Pomonal Recreation Reserve Ararat-Habs Gap Road, Pomenal
6 Tatyoon Recreation Reserve Tatyoon Road, Tatyoon
T | Mininera Recroabon Resenve Mac Stroet, Minnera
8 Elmhurst Recreabon Reserve Green Street, Eimbhurst
9 | Lake Bolac Recreason Reserve Lake Bolac Complex Road. Lake Botac
10 Recreason Reserve Man Street, Buangor
1" Reserve Willaura-Wickife Road Wickifle
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POLICY FRAMEWORK

The Policy is designed 10 comply with the Gender Equality Act 2020, and the wider Victoran Govemment gender
equality strategy.

1. Ararat Rurad City Council is commitied to an equitable, dverse, and sotially indusive community. Council
supports residents from Aboriginal and Torres Strait Istander hertage, people Iving with a disabiity, LGBTIQ+
and people form culturally and linguistically diverse backgrounds respective of ther gender identity

2 Councils phiiosophy ensures that products, buldings, environments, programs, services, and experiences arne
Innately accessible to as many people as passible, regardiess of age, disabiity, cultural background, gender
identty, or any other affareniating attribunes

3 Council ts committed % addressing inequity and creating accessible facilities for all communibes to participate,
connect, and contribute through sport and active recreation

4 Creatng an “equitable playng ekt requires action by Counc and all parners and stakeholders including. but
not imited 10 sporting dubs and their respeciive associations 10 address bamers 10 participation faced by our
diverse community

5. Council has zero tolerance towards antisocial, gender discriminatory and misogynistic behaviour lowards
women. Clubs, assodations and leagues will be expecied fo appropriately manage indescrebions. Councll will
consides sanctions if it is deemed that the situation has not been appropriately managed.

6. Councils recreation faciities and sports fedds must be made avadable for everyone. People of any gender
identiication should have fair and reasonable access 10 the “best” iraining and game imes as wed as 1o social
and change room facdities.

7. Council is committed %0 aigning with the Fair Access principies, ensunng access 1o and use of sport facilties by
the community.

8 Council will support Clubs and reserve commiltees with advice, guidance, and referral 10 relevant resources.

Ararat Rural City Council acknowledges
*  Ihe disadvantaged position some individuals have had in the sport and recreation secior because of heir
gender, and
« that achieving gender equality will require diverse approaches for women, men, trans and gender diverse
people 1o achieve similar outcomes for peaple of a8 genders.
Ararat Rural City Councll aims 1o

* angage fairly and equitably with all stafl, govemance working Qroups, state sporting organisations,
regional sport assemblies (where applicable) and members of our sport and recreation community,
regardiess of their gender, in a positive, respectiul, and construcive manner, and

Compiete gender impact assessments 10 assess the implcations for women, men, trans and gender diverse
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-

o:o-.:ah’-'«r L [ Ces and ¢o ahons. S IS 3 SUraieg 0 aking & DICES,
concems and experences, an inmegral dimension of the design, implemantation, of policies and
programs.

FAIR ACCESS PRINCIPLES

The Fair Access Principles have been developed by the Office for Women in Sport and Recreation, Sport and
Recreation Vicioria and VicHealth, in consultation with representatives from local govermment and the state spon
and recreation sector. This Policy and any resultant action plan are based on six (6) principles of iInclusivity, full
committed 1o equality.

Council considers that these principles provide clear dwection, while also enabling adapbon to the spacific
environment of our mundcipality.
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COMPLIANCE AND MONITORING
ACTIONS

Council commits 1o undertake a GIA on all current community sports infrastructure access and use policies and
processes, and 10 consider opportunities to strengihen gender equitable access and use of community Sporns
faciktes in aignment with the Fair Access Principles.

If the process of assessing current policies and processes identiies opportunities 1o develop or strengthen gender
equitable access and use of community sports faciities in alignment with the Fair Access Principles, Council
commits 10 deveioping and adopting a locally relevant gendar equtable access and use policy no later than 1
August 2024

Council acknowledges that the requirement 1o have a gender equitable access and use policy and action plan (or
equivalent) in place, and the abiity to demonsirate progress against that policy and action plan (or equivalent),
will Sorm part of the eligibilty criteria for Victonan Govemnment funding programs redating %0 community sports
nfrastructure from 1 July 2024

RESPONSIBALITY

Council senior officers including Chief Executive Officer, Governance and Rsk Lead, Human Resources
Business Pariner, Major Projects Lead Recreation Engagement Coordinator, and Community Asset Commitiees
will be responsible for impiementing this Fair Access Policy.

Management personned, stafl, volunteers, and stakeholders (for example commitiees of management, community
groups and sporeting cubs) within Ararat Rural Cay Council also have a shared responsibiity 1o suppon the policy,
as outiined In the table below.

* Topromote a gender-aware and gender-responsive culiure and community
and champion the Fair Access Policy.

* To promote, encourage and fachitate the achievement of gender equality and
mprovement in the status of women and girts in sport and active recreation.

« Develop and adopt gender equitable access and use policies/standards
* Tocommunicate policy updates to all staff and members
« To monitor compliance and issues

* Topromote, encourage and faciltate the achievement of gender equality and
improvement in the status of women and girts (away from tradtional roles)

* Support the undertaking of Gender Impact Assessment and submission of
progress reports as per the Gender Equalty Act 2020 oblgations
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: * Support the review of sport and recreation polcies and processes.
* Support the formal adoption process of a new of revisad gender equitable
policies.

o Undertake Gender Impact Assessment and submission of progress reports as
per the Gender Equalty Act 2020 obligations

To communicate and educate sport and recreation infrastructure user groups and
users.

| « Toadhere 10 and communicate the policy when required
«  Toatlend training / awareness programs

€ | « To use ther initlatve 10 undertake Gender Impact Assessments where
appropnate.
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CONSULTATION

COUNCIL CONSULTATION
All Councilor's were provided with the opportunity to contribute 1o the development of this Far Access Policy,
STAFF CONSULTATION

The Fair Access Policy was crcuiated 1o af Council staff, 1o seek their input. The policy was then deveioped

COMMUNITY CONSULATATION

The Ararat Rural City communily were provided with the opportunity to contribute 1o the development of this Fair
Access Polcy.
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RELATED POLICIES/LEGESLATION:

Gender Equality Act 2020

Local Govermnment Act 2020

Equal Opportunity Act 2010

Public Health and Welbeng Act 2008

Disabiity Discrimination Act (Cth) 1992

Disabiity At (VIC) 2008

Age Desorimination Act 2004

Australian Human Rights Commission Act 1985

Racial Discrimination Adt 1975

Sex Discrimination Act 1564

Child Weilbeaing and Safety Act 2005

Victoran Govemment Fair Access Policy Roadmap

Gender Equalty Action Plan 2011-2025 (Ararat Rural City Council)

Diversity and Inclusion Strategy 2023-2026 (Ararat Rural City Council)
Seasonal User Agreement Alexandra Oval - Araral Rats Foothall Netball Chuby
Seasonal User Agreement Alexandra Oval - Ararat Eagles Football Netball Chub
Gymnastics Club Ararat Faness Centre Agreement

Ararat Basketball Association Ararat Fitness Centre Agreament
Grampéans Cricket Association

Community Asset Commitiee Governance Guide
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DEFINITIONS

Committees of Management
For he purposes of this document, refers to commitiees apponted by the Department of Energy, Environment
and Climate Action (DECCA) (previously known as Department of Waler, Emvironment and Planning) under
the Crown Land (Reserves) Act 1978 %0 manage recreation reserves where community sport training and
games are held.

Community Sports infrastructure

Publicly owned local, rural, regional, or state level sport and recreation infrastricture operated and maintained
primariy for the purpose of faciitating community sport activities, including sporting grounds, surfaces,
facites, and pavibons.

Gender

How you understand who you are and how you inferact with other people. Many people understand their
gender as béing a man of woman. Some people understand their gender as a mix of these or nedther. A
person’s gender and thew expression of their gender can be shown in different ways, such as through
behaviour or physical appearance.

Gender diverse

An umbrela lerm for a range of genders expressed in different ways. Gender diverse people use maeny lerms
10 describe themselves. Language in this area is dynamic, particularly among young people, who are more
kel to describe themseives as non-binary.

Gender equality

The equal nights, responsibiities and opportunities of women, men and frans and gender-diverse
people. Equalty does not mean that women, men and trans and gender diverse people will become the same
but that their rights, responsibilities, and opportunities will not depend on their gender,

Gender equity

The provision of faimess and justice in the distribution of benefits and responsibilities based on gender. The
concept recognises that people may have dflerent needs and power related to thelr gender and these
differences should be identibed and addressed in 3 manner that rectifies gender related imbalances

Gender Impact Assessment, or GIA

A requirement under the Gender Equaiily Act 2020 to be cammed out on polickes, programs and sanvices which
have a direct and significant impact on the public. The assessmeant must evaluate the effects that a policy,
program of service may have on people of diferent genders

Transgender, or trans
Someone whose pender does not caly algin with the one assigned at bith. Not a1 trans people will use this
term 10 describe themselves.
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Introduction

The Fair Access Action Plan 2025-2029
(Action Plan) underpins the Fair Access
Policy by identifying specific actions to
progress gender equitable access and

use of community sports infrastructure.

The actions align with the aims of
Council's Fair Access Policy principles
and specifically address the Fair
Access Principles developed by the
Office for Women in Sport and

Recreation.
The Action Plan supports the Wormen and girls should be equitably represented in
commitment of Council and the leadership and governance roles.

municipality sports clubs to take
positive actions towards achieving
gender equity and removing barriers for
women and girls to participate in
community sport and recreation.

Prionties access, use and support to all user groups
demonstrating an ongoing commitment 1o gender
equitable access and use of allocated community sports
infrastructure
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Community sports infrastructure and environments are
welcoming, safe and inclusive

COUNCIL
ACTIONS

PROGRESS INDICATOR RESPONSIBILITY TIMEFRAME

1.1 * Provide unisex facilttics * Council 2025-2029
Develop all current and future sports * Suppont infrastructure such as adequate

infrastructure including pavilions and lighting and car parking where

active recreation facilities to support approprnate

gender equitable access

1.2 * Funding applications are submitted for * Council 2025-2029
Seck relevant State and Federal capital projects that support gender

Government funding opportunities to equitable access and participation by

suppont infrastructure upgrades and women and girls in community spont

participation projects that support fair

access

1.3 Conduct Gender Impact Gender impacts Assessments are * Counal 2025-2029
Assessments for all new and reviewed completed in accordance with the

policies, strategies, plans and designs Gender Equality Act 2020

relating to community sports

infrastructure
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COUNCIL Women and girls can fully participate in all aspects of ﬁ)
ACTIONS Community sports and active recreation, including as players,

Coaches, administrations, officials, volunteers and spectators

PROGRESS INDICATOR RESPONSIBILITY TIMEFRAME

21 * Council facilities relevant training ad * Council 2025-2029
Provide and promote training and development opportunitics

development opportunities focused on | « Training and development opportunitics

gender equity and fostering inclusive delivered by other organssations are

sporting environments to local clubs promoted to sports clube

22 * Increase awareness for grant * Council 2025-2029
Promote grant opportunities to sports opportundtics available to sports clubs

club that support increasing

patticipation among women and girls in

community sport
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Of the highest quahty available and most convenient

COUNCIL Women and girls will have equidable access to and use of
community sport infrastructure,

ACTIONS |
b

c

Al the best and most popular compelition and traiming and

To support existing and new participation opportunities and a vanety of sports

PROGRESS INDICATOR

RESPONSIBILITY

o

| TIMEFRAME

3 Women and girls have equal access to * Council 20252029
Encourage state sporting organisations the most popular and convenient * State sporting asscciations
and local sporting associations to competition times
consider fair access when fixturing Women and girs have equal access to
games the highest quality nfrastructure
32 The needs to women and girls are * Council 2025-2029
Target community engagement on represented in community engagement
sport and recreation infrastructure processes,
projects to reach people of all genders Community engagement is undertaken
in ine with Counails Engage Ararat
Policy
33 Increase participation on women and * Council 20252029
Investigate further opportunities to girls in programs delivered ot Councils
provide women and girls only programs Fitness Centre
and services at Council Fitness Centre
and recreation grounds
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PROGRESS INDICATOR RESPONSIBILITY TIMEFRAME

41 * Increased awarencss of opportunities for | + Council 2025-2029
Highlight and celebrate clubs that women and girls to participate in * Sports Clubs
support and encourage women and community sport in leadership and
girls in leadership and governance roles governance roles
through Council publications and social | « Encourage and support the
media engagement of women and girls in
leadership and governance roles within
the sports clubs
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PROGRESS INDICATOR RESPONSIBILITY TIMEFRAME

5.1 * Clubs demonstrate their commitmentto | = Counal 2025-2026
Update sports club Conditions of Use to fair access by accepting the Conditions | * Sports clubs
include reference to the Fair Access of Use as part of the seasonal allocation
Policy and Action Plan process
52 * Collect and analysc data pertaining to * Council 2025-2026
Develop and implement a Fair Access women and girls and gender diverse
Audit Tool (or equivalent) participation within sports clubs and
chub progress against the Fair Access
Action Plan
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ACTION PROGRESS INDICATOR RESPONSIBIUITY TIMEFRAME

6.1 Review and update sport and recreation » Council and sports clubs committofair | = Counal 2025-2026
leases, policies and user agreements to access within lease, policies and user

incorporate fair access practices and prinaples agreements

where applicable

6.2 Pnoritise sports clubs that demonstrate a * New allocations and leases prionties « Counal 2025-2029
commitment to gender equity in Expression of clubs that have a commitments to

Interest processes relating to the allocation and gender equity
leasing of community sports infrastructure

6.3 Explore the option of introducing discounts | * Sports chubs that demonstrate a * Counail 2025-2029
for sports clubs that demonstrate a commitment to providing opportundes
commitment to providing opportunities for for participation by women and girls and
participation by women and girls and diverse diverse groups are charges a discounted
groups through a review of fees and charges allocation fee
6.4 Review Council’s Community Grants criteria | * Council’s Community Grants Program * Counal 2025-202
to align with the fair access principles and critena pronties projects that benefit and
prioritics increase participation by women and girls
and diverse groups
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Community sports infrastructure and environments are
welcoming, safe and inclusive

CLUB
ACTION

PROGRESS INDICATOR RESPONSIBILITY TIMEFRAME

1.1 * All sports clubs communication is * Sports Clubs 2025-2026
Promote and demonstrate gender gender inclusive

inclusive communication within club

rooms and on socal media platforms

1.2 * Council and clubs develop an increased | = Sports Clubs 2025-2029
Complete the Fair Access Audit Tool (or understanding of participation by

equivalent) as requested by Council and women and girls and progress against

deliver on the actions within the Fair the Fair Access Action Plan

Access Action Plan

1.3 * Increased participation in social events * Sports Clubs 20252029
Enaure social events are inclusive and by women and girls

welcoming of women and girls and

provide a sense of belonging within the

club
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Women and girls can fully participate in all aspects of
Community sports and active recreation, including as players,

Coaches, administrations

PROGRESS INDICATOR

officials

RESPONSIBILITY

volunteers and spectators

20

TIMEFRAME

21 » Awarcness of meanngful opportunities * Sporting clubs 2025-2029
Support and promote oppontunitics to forinvolvement is increased * State sporting asscciations

participate in community sport in * Participation by women and girls

various capacities including to those in including those in marginalzed groups

marginalized groups such as culturally increased

and kinguistically divers communitics,

the LGBTIQA+ community and people

with a disabdlity

2.2 * Women and girls are provided with * Sporting clubs 20252029

Provide and share training and
development opportunities for women
and girls’ participation and involve ment
as a player, coach, administrator or
volunteer

appropaate training to undertake roles
within the clubs

State sporting associations
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CLUB Women and girls will have equiable access to and use of
community sport infrastructure;

ACTIONS a. Of the highest quahty available and most convenient %
b. At the best and most popular competition and training and O O
c. To support existing and new participation opportunities and a vanety of sports

PROGRESS INDICATOR RESPONSIBILITY TIMEFRAME

3 * Women and girs are equally able to * Sports Clubs 20252029
Consult with players, coaches and participate in matches and training at the | = State sporting asscciations
officials regarding preferred match and most popular and convenient times
tradning times

32 = All players have equal opportunitics to * Sports Clubs 2025-2029
Ensure women and girls have equitable access facilities as pant of a clubs * State sporting associations
usage of sports club faciitics, including scasonal allocation or lease agreement

sports grounds, courts or pavillions
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PROGRESS INDICATOR RESPONSIBILITY TIMEFRAME

41 * Increased representation by women on * Council 2025-2029
Advocate for and support a gender club committces and in other leadership | « Sports Clubs
balance within club coaching, roles

leadership and governance roles.
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51

Consider working with relevant sporting
associations to implement a flexble
uniform policy that removes barriers to
participate by women and girs and
gender-dwerse people

PROGRESS INDICATOR

* Women and gids feel more confident
and encouraged to participate in sport

RESPONSIBILITY

Sporting clubs
State sporting associations

TIMEFRAME

2025-2026

52
Club representatives to attend gender
equity training opportunitics

* Club representatives are upskilled and

increase knowledge on gender equity in
community sport and barriers to
participation by women and girs

Sports Clubs
Other organisations

2025-2029
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| PROGRESS INDICATOR | RESPONSIBILITY TIMEFRAME

6.1 * Clubs adhere to the Palicy Action Plan * Sports Club 2025-2029
Sports clubs demonstrate a commitment to fair and other related documents such as
access and support towards increasing the sports club Conditions of Use ctc

participation of women and girls
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34 ROADS TO RECOVERY - 5 YEAR PROGRAM
RESPONSIBLE OFFICER: CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

DEPARTMENT: CEO’S OFFICE
REFERENCE: 20629

OFFICER DIRECT OR INDIRECT CONFLICT OF INTEREST:
Officers providing advice to Council must disclose any conflict of interest.

No person involved in the preparation of this report has a conflict of interest requiring disclosure.

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

The Roads to Recovery (RTR) Program supports the construction and maintenance of the nation's local
road infrastructure assets, which facilitates greater accessibility and improves safety, economic and
social outcomes for Australians.

Funding under the RTR Program is available to all local government areas in Australia, for projects
delivered through councils, and state and territory governments in unincorporated areas, under
the National Land Transport Act 2014.

This report provides a suggested list of projects for evaluation and estimation for the five-year Roads
to Recovery Program for endorsement by Council.

DISCUSSION

Roads to Recovery is an ongoing federal program that operates on a five-year funding period,
providing a stable and predictable source of funding to local government. Flexibility is built into the
program, with funding recipients able to decide on the roads projects that deliver on local priorities
throughout the funding period.

From 1 July 2024, a new five-year funding period commenced with increased funding as announced
by the Australian Government in November 2023.

Ararat Rural City Council received a total funding amount of $12,859,997 for the five-year period of
the program broken down as follows:

2024-25 2025-26 2026-27 2027-28 2028-29
$1,899,772 $2,338,181 $2,776,590 $2,922,727 $2,922,727

Year One of the funding is currently allocated to stage one of the Buangor Ben Nevis Road construction
(approx. $840,000) and emergency repair works on the McCrows Road Bridge (approx. $200,000).

Conversations around appropriate projects for the five-year program have been undertaken with
investigation into design and construction costs to be undertaken.
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The suggested projects are below:

ROAD RECONSTRUCTION

Stevens Crescent, Ararat

Road Reconstruction
Road in very poor condition and surface below
road requires extensive stabilising.

Viewpoint Street, Ararat
Banksia Street to Temple Street
Road reconstruction - in poor condition

Viewpoint Street, Ararat

High Street to Lambert Street

Construction of kerb and underground drainage
(Currently still has brick drainage)

Dawson Street, Ararat

George Road to Banfield Street

Construction of kerb and underground drainage
(Currently still has brick drainage)

Laby Street, Ararat

Barkly Street to Clay Street

Construction of kerb and underground drainage
(Currently still has brick drainage)

Rundell Street, Ararat
Princes Street to Maude Street
Construction of kerb and underground drainage

Mt William Road - @ Bridge
700m across the Fiery Creek
CHMP completed and approved.

Burnetts Road
Bus Route

Woorndoo Streatham Road
at Moyne Boundary

Road Reconstruction as currently breaking up

Buangor Ben Nevis Road

Additional segments of current project

BRIDGES

Buangor Ben Nevis Road - Bridge 5

McCrows Road Bridge - Upgrade
Already approved

Barton Bridge
Moyston Willaura Road Bridge
Bellellen Road Floodway

Installation of a double span bridge at road height.
Across Nine Mile Creek
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KEY CONSIDERATIONS
Alignment to Council Plan Strategic Objectives

The key financial drivers align strongly with the thrust of the Council Plan 2021-2025, particularly the
following:

4.1 Ensure that asset development and renewal during the planning period matches that identified
in Council's Asset Plan 2021-2031.

4.1.1 Work directly with asset users to manage and develop new and existing assets.

4.2 Deliver infrastructure outcomes that support economic growth, promote community wellbeing
and safety and align with Council’s financial sustainability.

6.1 Deliver responsible budget outcomes, linked to strategy, that deliver value, innovation, and
rating fairness.

Budget Implications
Roads to Recovery makes up part of the Capital Works Program represents a significant element of
Council's Budget.

Policy/Relevant Law
The 2024/2025 Capital Works Program complies with the program funded in the 2024/2025 Budget.

Sustainability Implications

There are no environmental sustainability implications. Council is mindful of considering new
innovative approaches to improve its sustainability and environmental footprint as a part of the Capital
Works program.

Risk Assessment

The Capital Works Program was developed as a mitigation of the financial risks associated with market
volatility currently being experienced in the civil and building construction sectors. Roads to recovery
funding make up part of this works.

Innovation and Continuous Improvement

Development of the Capital Works Program represented an agile response to market conditions. A
capacity to rework strategy based on a changing environment is a critical element in developing an
innovative organisation.

Stakeholder Collaboration and Community Engagement

The Capital Works Program has been developed as an element of the annual Budgets. There is
extensive community engagement undertaken prior to adoption.

RECOMMENDATION

That:

1. Council endorse the suggested projects for the Roads to Recovery Five-Year Program
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MOVED CR SANDERS
SECONDED CR PRESTON

That:
1. Council endorse the suggested projects for the Roads to Recovery Five-Year Program
Cr Sanders and Cr Preston spoke for the motion

CARRIED 7/0
5123/25

ATTACHMENTS
There are no Attachments relating to this item
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3.5 2024/2025 CAPITAL WORKS PROGRAM - ALTERATION OF BUDGETED WORKS
RESPONSIBLE OFFICER: CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

DEPARTMENT: CEO’S OFFICE
REFERENCE: 20630

OFFICER DIRECT OR INDIRECT CONFLICT OF INTEREST:
Officers providing advice to Council must disclose any conflict of interest.

No person involved in the preparation of this report has a conflict of interest requiring disclosure.

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY
The Council has approved its 2024/2025 Capital Works Program as a pivotal component of the current
budget. With a substantial capital works investment totalling $15.513 million, more than half of the
budget allocated to:

¢ Mount William Road Stage Two Construction

e Buangor Ben Nevis Road Stage One Construction

DISCUSSION

The 2024/2025 Capital Works Budget has two major projects that are externally funded with a Council
co-contribution of approximately $2.5 million dollars being Stage two of the Mount William Road
Construction and Stage one of Buangor Ben Nevis Road Construction.

Both of these roads have required extensive native vegetation and cultural heritage works which have
been ongoing for the current financial year with final approvals expected in the near future, however
with this delay we have been unable to commence any works on the ground and the budget allocation
remains unspent.

To ensure that Council meets its asset replacement target it is recommended that works nominated
for next financial year be moved forward and once the cultural heritage management plans are
received for the large projects the works can commence in the new financial year and the allocated
funds for completed works moved to the project.

Suggested works include:
e Bringing forward the 2025/2026 Reseal Program at a cost of approximately $1 million.
e Shoulder Widening on Geelong Road in two locations (6km) and Rhymney Road (7km) at a
cost of approximately $220,000
e Alternative Seals (OTTA Seals) at the following locations:
o Sugarloaf Road (Gracies Hill Road to Winery) approximately 4km
o Warrayatkin Road (Western Highway to Warrak Road) approximately 4km and an
area of extensive grading annually.
Tunnel Road (Ararat Halls Gap Road to NGSC Border) approximately 3.6km
Graham Road, Lake Bolac approximately 700Im
Leach Road, Lake Bolac approximately 825Im
Tatyoon North Road (Geelong Road to Logans Road) approximately 3.5km
Railway Road, Ararat (Nott Road to Annies Lane) approximately 620lm and an area of
extensive grading annually
Nott Road, Ararat (Pyrenees Highway to End) approximately 260Im
Green Hill Drive, Ararat approximately 1.2km
o Bowen Place, Ararat approximately 205Im

O O O O O

o O
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e The approximate spend on these roads would be $910,000, and would be providing works
to a variety of areas within the municipality.

KEY CONSIDERATIONS

Alignment to Council Plan Strategic Objectives
The key financial drivers align strongly with the thrust of the Council Plan 2021-2025, particularly the

following:

4.1 Ensure that asset development and renewal during the planning period matches that
identified in Council's Asset Plan 2021-2031.

4.2 Work directly with asset users to manage and develop new and existing assets.

4.3 Deliver infrastructure outcomes that support economic growth, promote community wellbeing
and safety and align with Council's financial sustainability.

6.1 Deliver responsible budget outcomes, linked to strategy, that deliver value, innovation, and

rating fairness.

Budget Implications

The 2024/2025 Capital Works Program represents a significant element of Council's 2024/2025
Budget. In the current civil construction market, it is essential that Council manages capital works
expenditure carefully to ensure budget outcomes are met.

Policy/Relevant Law
The 2024/2025 Capital Works Program complies with the program funded in the 2024/2025 Budget.

Sustainability Implications

There are no environmental sustainability implications. Council is mindful of considering new
innovative approaches to improve its sustainability and environmental footprint as a part of the Capital
Works program.

Risk Assessment
The 2024/2025 Capital Works Program was developed as a mitigation of the financial risks associated
with market volatility currently being experienced in the civil and building construction sectors.

Innovation and Continuous Improvement

Development of the 2024/2025 Capital Works Program represented an agile response to market
conditions. A capacity to rework strategy based on a changing environment is a critical element in
developing an innovative organisation.

Stakeholder Collaboration and Community Engagement
The 2024/2025 Capital Works Program has been developed as an element of the 2024/2025 Budget.
There was extensive community engagement undertaken prior to adoption.

RECOMMENDATION

That:

1. Council endorses bringing forward next year’s scheduled works and reallocate funds to major
projects once cultural heritage approvals allow them to commence.
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MOVED CR SANDERS
SECONDED CR JOYCE

That:

1.  Council endorses bringing forward next year's scheduled works and reallocate funds to
major projects once cultural heritage approvals allow them to commence.

Cr Sanders and Cr Joyce spoke for the motion

CARRIED 7/0
5124/25

ATTACHMENTS
There are no Attachments relating to this item
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3.6 GRAVEL TO SEAL PRIORITY MATRIX
RESPONSIBLE OFFICER: CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

DEPARTMENT: CEO’S OFFICE
REFERENCE: 20631

OFFICER DIRECT OR INDIRECT CONFLICT OF INTEREST:
Officers providing advice to Council must disclose any conflict of interest.

No person involved in the preparation of this report has a conflict of interest requiring disclosure.

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY
At the February 2025 Council meeting a council motion was passed for a Priority Matrix to be created
for Council’s current and future gravel to seal program.

This report provides a demonstration of the matrix created by Council’s Civil Engineers for consultation
and endorsement by Council.

DISCUSSION
Based on the existing Gravel to Seal projects that are at a functional design stage the engineers have
created a matrix with the following explanation:

e Projects to the top left are higher value to community per dollar spent, and those to the
bottom right are lower value per dollar spent.

e Bubble size indicates individual total project cost (preliminary estimate).

e Construction costs are based on pavement type, project length, kerbing, veg removal,
drainage, and any other foreseeable significant costs. Allowances have also been made for
sundry costs.

e The cost per lineal meter puts large and small projects on a level playing field for evaluating
value per meter constructed.

e Value to community is an arbitrary comparison value, based on the following:
o +5 points per primary access to dwelling
o +1 point per secondary access to dwelling
o +18 points if road is a connector/through road (not laneway)

o Adjustment factors have been used to create greater distinction between projects for
evaluation.

e 0-1 projectvalue is a scaled figure, based on highest priority value to lowest calculated (from
the arbitrary figures). All projects are of value and are designed to address community needs,
0 does not mean no value!
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Justification of value assignment:

Calculations used:

C1: values o4; = value; fvaluepax

Through = c3
A,%tc—l—kj_gtﬂgt B ]
o2 value, — Not Through = 1 |
tL—|—|: Through = EE]-I—
“ Not Through— 0]
Where:

valuez o4j = normalised value as shown on chart
value; = calculated value per lineal meter
value yraxy = Mazimum value of all projects value,
Ay = number of primary access dwellings
As — number of secondary access dwellings
c1 = primary access factor = 5
co = secondary access factor = 1
ci = through road factor = 13
cs = length factor = 0.25
L = length of project (m)
c5 = through road factor 2 =1.25
cg = scale factor = 2
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KEY CONSIDERATIONS

Alignment to Council Plan Strategic Objectives

The key financial drivers align strongly with the thrust of the Council Plan 2021-2025, particularly the following:

4.1 Ensure that asset development and renewal during the planning period matches that identified in Council's Asset Plan 2021-2031.

4.2 Work directly with asset users to manage and develop new and existing assets.

4.3 Deliver infrastructure outcomes that support economic growth, promote community wellbeing and safety and align with Council’s financial

sustainability.
6.1 Deliver responsible budget outcomes, linked to strategy, that deliver value, innovation, and rating fairness.
Budget Implications

The Gravel to Seal Program represents a significant element of Council’'s Capital Works Program Budget. The introduction of this matrix ensures that we
are delivering best value for money to the community.

Policy/Relevant Law
e Ararat Rural City Council - Roads and Transportation Asset Management Plan
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Sustainability Implications

There are no environmental sustainability implications related to this matrix. Council is mindful of
considering new innovative approaches to improve its sustainability and environmental footprint as a
part of the Gravel to Seal Program.

Risk Assessment

The Gravel to Seal Program is developed as a mitigation of the financial risks associated within the civil
construction sector.

Obtaining best value for the community through this matrix mitigates potential reputational risk.
Innovation and Continuous Improvement

Development of the Gravel to Seal Program represents an agile response to market conditions. A
capacity to rework strategy and priority based on a changing environment and is critical in developing
an innovative organisation.

Stakeholder Collaboration and Community Engagement

The Gravel to Seal Program is developed as an element of the annual Capital Works Budget.
RECOMMENDATION

That:

1. Council endorse the Gravel to Seal Priority Matrix

MOVED CR WATERSTON
SECONDED CR SANDERS

That:
1. Council endorse the Gravel to Seal Priority Matrix
Cr Waterston, Cr Sanders and Cr Joyce spoke for the motion

CARRIED 7/0
5125/25

ATTACHMENTS
There are no Attachments relating to this item
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3.7 ORCHID GLASSHOUSE
RESPONSIBLE OFFICER: CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

DEPARTMENT: CEO’S OFFICE
REFERENCE: 20632

OFFICER DIRECT OR INDIRECT CONFLICT OF INTEREST:
Officers providing advice to Council must disclose any conflict of interest.

No person involved in the preparation of this report has a conflict of interest requiring disclosure.

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

The Orchid Glasshouse at the Alexandra Gardens was donated by the Ararat Rotary Club in 1980 to
celebrate the 50" anniversary of Rotary in the area, the original feature of the glasshouse was the display
of Cymbidium orchids from July to November annually.

Recent history of the glasshouse has seen significant vandalism damage and the eventual removal of all
glass from the structure due to the ongoing destruction.

This report discusses the response from community relating to the future use of the location of the
former orchid glasshouse.

DISCUSSION
At the March 2025 Council Meeting Council it was agreed to place the future use of the Rotary Orchid
Glasshouse out to community consultation.

The issue was opened to the public following the meeting and closed on Thursday 10 April 2025.

Twenty two responses were received and are as follows:

| would like to make a submission on the future use of the former orchid house site in the
Alexandra Gardens. | believe the site, including the unused fountain area at the rear should
become a restaurant and function centre. Many other Victorian regional cities have garden
restaurants/cafes, and they create a focus/meeting point for the gardens. The current Gardens
Lake Café has become very popular but if Council proceeds with its proposal to upgrade the
current outdoor pool it may not be compatible. Parking may also become an issue for café
users. A sympathetically designed restaurant would separate the uses and generate more
visitation to the gardens. The attractive William McCulloch Fountain could be used a centre
piece for a function area making the venue highly desirable for intimate weddings. Ideally, the
restaurant would be steel framed with low classic red brick walls. These walls would be topped
with panoramic, aluminium clad, double glazed, timber windows for durability, low maintenance
and energy efficiency. The end walls should be set out in a hexagonal pattern to soften the
building appearance and give diners a better view of the lake or fountain. The roof should be a
hip style and clad with solar tiles to minimise energy use and ensure minimal maintenance.
Stainless steel guttering, facia and downpipes would also minimise maintenance and maximise
building life. If done properly, the restaurant would remain an asset to the Ararat community for
a very long time. The current Parks and Gardens depot site, which appears to be under used,
could become the restaurant parking area with the current stockpile area on the west side of J
Ward developed for any ongoing gardens maintenance needs. Regardless of which option
Council chooses to replace the orchid house it should be in keeping with location and have a
long life, as all public infrastructure should.

Rotary will be considering further options today 9th April.

However current Priorities are:
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1- Renovate the structure with rust repair work and add a new steel roof for shade , removing the
steel shelving , and possibly adding shelter sides.

2- Remove structure, repair and move to another Community Park area eg Greenbhill Lake ,
Gordon Street .

3- Offer for removal by tender .

4- Rotary believes that this structure should still have a life and a builders advise backs this up !
5- Any different development at the current Site should be a project recognizing 100 years of
Rotary Service to the Community in 2029

A sensory garden, and performance space does sound nice.

DO NOT OBSTRUCT VIEW OF FOUNTAIN

With any type of construction.

Leave the space clean and tidy

It can be used for functions like weddings and funerals and family get-togethers,people can
bring their own seating etc. and the fountain makes a perfect backdrop for photographs.
The barbecue facilities are also convieniently close by for such gatherings.

A performance space including a digital screen would save lots of time and effort setting up
marquees for event at the gardens. Might need to increase security though.

Would be great to have another covered bbqg area, or a sound shell

| think an under cover play area for ages 0-4 would be amazing or a sensory area for children
with additional needs. That way it is enclosed and safe.

Maybe an area for seating under cover. Also do it in a way that people with disabilities could also
access it. So a bad weather escape.

The area would be suitable for a covered performance space (electricity would need to be
installed for music equipment), including seating for audiences.

A soundshell was always spoken about for Alexandra Gardens, and architecture students put
forward many designs, however, the project didn't move forward.

Soundshells in other centres are well used.

A monument of James Hosking showcasing all the great things he does for the Ararat City
Council.

Installing a digital screen for seasonal sports and events would be fantastic along with some
seating undercover and screen special community events and emergency warnings

Covered Music stage

A sensory garden or performance space would be wonderful for the community

Would it be able to be developed as a sound shell/stage.

Would love to see it as a place to hold outdoor birthday parties over winter months or another
bbgq area, the ones up the other end of the park are exposed to dust from driveway and get
quite windy over winter, we often use them but it's extremely cold

level it off, and keep it as it is for a performance space. Encourage bands and theatrical groups
to use it.

Please, can we have a performance space for live music etc? The park is a beautiful place and
would be perfect space to enjoy the Arts.

An orchid house, more of a conservation one for the endangered orchids in the area such as the
mt cole grevillea or the tawny spider orchid near stawell. Give the space to the royal botanical
gardens for their efforts.

Hello ARRC team, my suggestion is to prioritise pathways to the McCulloch fountain and to
maintain the historical bones of the gardens rather than to impose a “sensory garden” or some
other mad modern idea. The long term vision for the Alexandra Gardens should be to gain
Federal, State and philanthropic funding to fully restore the Gardens to their nineteenth century
glory, including fully restoring all the water features in the gardens.

A covered area with some seats for gatherings with family etc

A music/ vocal Sound Shell free for the public.

I'm not in favour of a digital screen. | would prefer an area for picnics, gatherings or seating with
a sensory garden.

<&

Ararat Rural City

Any future works in the area will not obstruct the McCulloch Fountain and will continue to be the
centrepiece of the area.
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Eleven responses (50%) suggested that the area be used as a location for the arts, performance space
and sound shell. Other suggestions submitted were for use as a picnic space and spaces for birthday
parties or other gatherings as well as philanthropic and conservation suggestions including funding to
return the gardens to their 19" century glory’ or a conservation space for endangered orchids from the
area. The suggestion of a restaurant in the space would require significant building work and significant
funding to allow the works to proceed.

The suggestion of a performance space with associated staging/screening is the most popular concept
from the engagement process.

As a part of the works, it is recommended that a plaque signifying the history of the donation by the
Ararat Rotary Club of the Orchid Glasshouse be placed in an area of significance for the public to admire.

Key Considerations
Alignment to Council Plan Strategic Objectives
1 Growing our Place

Budget Implications
There are no current budget implications arising, when decisions are made for the area appropriate
applications for budget will be made to the property capital line items.

Policy/Relevant Law
e Local Government Act 2020
e Avrarat Rural City Council Procurement Policy

Sustainability Implications
There are no economic, social or environmental implications in relation to the item

Risk Assessment
These works are considered low risk.

Stakeholder Collaboration and Community Engagement
Community engagement has been undertaken through Engage Ararat.

RECOMMENDATION
That:

1. the location of the Rotary Orchid Glasshouse be upgraded to a new performance space with
associated staging/screening.

MOVED CR SANDERS
SECONDED CR JOYCE

That:

1. Council moves that the current Orchid House structure be removed and to leave the site
open to explore further options for the Alexandra Gardens as a whole

Cr Sanders, Cr Joyce and Cr Waterston spoke for the motion

CARRIED 7/0
5126/25

ATTACHMENTS
There are no attachments in relation to this item

10542




29 APRIL 2025 '@
COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES

Ararat Rural City

3.8 MONTHLY PERFORMANCE REPORT
RESPONSIBLE OFFICER: CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

DEPARTMENT: CEO’S OFFICE
REFERENCE: 20633

OFFICER DIRECT OR INDIRECT CONFLICT OF INTEREST:
Officers providing advice to Council must disclose any conflict of interest.

No person involved in the preparation of this report has a conflict of interest requiring disclosure.

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY
The financial statements and performance indicators have been prepared for the period ended 31
March 2025.

Based on the information provided by responsible officers and managers Council’s overall financial
performance is in line with budget.

DISCUSSION
Council must establish and maintain a budgeting and reporting framework that is consistent with the
principles of sound financial management.

Key Financial information:
Income Statement (Attachment 1)

The Income Statement measures how well Council has performed from an operating nature. It reports
revenues and expenditure from the activities and functions undertaken, with the net effect being a
surplus or deficit. Capital expenditure is excluded from this statement, as it is reflected in the Balance
Sheet.

Attachment 1 shows that Council generated $30.336 million in revenue and $25.238 million in
expenses to 31 March 2025. This has resulted in an operating surplus of $5.098 million for the nine
months ended 31 March 2025.

Income

Rates and charges account for 50% of the total budgeted income for 2024/25. Rates and charges are
recognised when the rates have been raised, not when the income has been received. An amount of
$17.876 million has been recognised as income for the nine months ended 31 March 2025.

User fees account for 4% of the total budgeted income for 2024/25 and $1.316 million has been
received to 31 March 2025. The majority of this relates to transfer station fees, fitness centre income
and commercial waste management charges.

Recurrent Operating Grants total $8.330 million to 31 March 2025, including $4.583 million from the
Victorian Local Government Grants Commission for general purpose grants and $2.975 million for the
local roads grants.

Non-recurrent Operating Grants total $1.235 million to 31 March 2025. Council has been successful
in obtaining several grants that had not been budgeted for, as detailed in the table below. The
amounts shown as unearned income will be treated as income in future accounting periods once the
performance obligations of the grant have been met.

10543



29 APRIL 2025 @
COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES

Ararat Rural City

Budget Income Unearned
Non-Recurrent Operating Grants 2024/25 2024/25 Income
$'000 $'000 $'000
Ararat Housing Transition - - 300
Digital Twin Victoria - 5 949
Free Public WiFi Services - 47 1,196
Supported Playgroups 65 50 -
Ararat Rural City Sport, Active Recreation & Open
- - 36
Space Strategy
CALD Outreach Workers Initiative - 64 -
Tiny Towns Fund - Pomonal Community Hub - 83 117
Tiny Towns Fund - Buangor Recreation Reserve 5
- - - 5
Pavillion Redevelopment
Natural Disaster Relief - 151
Council Support Fund - Pomonal Fires - 750
Other Minor Grants (under $30,000) - 85 -
65 1,235 2,623

Non-recurrent Capital Grants total $0.454 million to 31 March 2025, as detailed in the table below.
The amounts shown as unearned income will be treated as income in future accounting periods once
the performance obligations of the grant have been met.

Budget Income Unearned
Non-Recurrent Capital Grants 2024/25 2024/25 Income
$'000 $'000 $'000
Mt William Road reconstruction 5,000 -
Back Bolac Road reconstruction - 229
Churchill Avenue reconstruction 843 -
Pedestrian Infrastructure Program - 70
Tatyoon Oval Upgrade Grant - 225 -
5,843 454 70
Note
It is important to note the following:
1. Unearned revenue received in prior years has been adjusted between the Original Budget and

Current Budget with an additional $2.936 million for Grants Operating (non-recurrent), $0.366
million for Grants Capital (recurrent) and $0.070 million for Grants Capital (non-recurrent)
included in the Current Budget on the assumption that each of the grant projects will be
completed during the 2024/25 financial year.

2. These changes in the budget, plus the note reported under expenses, create a change in the
reported surplus position from a projected surplus of $8.163 million to a surplus of $9.205
million for 2024/25. The year-end variance is a deficit of $1.019 million when the actual year to
date expenses are compared to the year to date budget.

Expenses

Employee Costs account for approximately 40% of the total budgeted expenditure for 2024/25. For
the nine months ended 31 March 2025 Council has incurred $8.912 million in employee costs, which
includes additional wages for emergency management relief and recovery, and organisation
restructure costs. Workcover premiums have increased by $0.104 million compared to 2023/24.

Materials and Services account for approximately 29% of the total budgeted expenditure for
2024/25. For the nine months ended 31 March 2025, Council has incurred $8.508 million in materials
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and services costs. There are a number of projects, including those carried forward from 2023/24 that
are expected to be completed before the end of the financial year.

Depreciation totals $7.295 million to 31 March 2025. The higher than budgeted depreciation has
resulted from increased asset valuations being received as at 30 June 2024 after the budget was
finalised.

Note

It is important to note the following:

There has been an increase in expenditure on materials and services from $8.259 million in the
Original Budget to $10.589 million in the Current Budget for 2024/25. This has resulted from a carry
forward amount of $2.330 million from the 2023/24 financial year surplus and unspent grant funds
which will be used for additional activity in 2024/25.

Balance Sheet (Attachment 2)

The Balance Sheet is one of the main financial statements and reports Council’s assets, liabilities and
equity at a given date, in this case 31 March 2025. Comparative figures have been provided as at 30
June 2024.

Council’s current assets have increased by $5.210 million from $11.732 million as at 30 June 2024 to
$16.942 million as at 31 March 2025. Cash and cash equivalents have increased by $8.299 million from
$3.049 million to $11.348 million. Trade and other receivables have increased by $0.265 million from
$5.212 million as at 30 June 2024 to $5.477 million as at 31 March 2025.

Total liabilities have increased from $8.777 million in 2023/24 to $8.971 million in 2024/25. Trade and
other payables have decreased by $0.134 million and trust funds and deposits have increased by
$1.305 million. Unearned income/revenue decreased by $0.679 million, which includes grants
received by Council, where in accordance with accounting standards, they are held as a liability until
grant-related performance obligations have been met.

Statement of Cash Flows (Attachment 3)

The Statement of Cash Flows shows how changes in the Statement of Financial Position and Income
Statement affect Cash and Cash Equivalents, and breaks down the analysis to operating activities,
investing activities and financing activities.

The Cash and Cash Equivalents at the beginning of the financial year of $3.049 million have increased
by $8.300 million to $11.349 million as at 31 March 2025.

Net cash of $13.001 million was provided by operating activities, $4.317 million was used in investing
activities, and $0.384 million was used in financing activities.

Investing activities includes payments for property, plant and equipment, and infrastructure.
Financial Performance Indicators (Attachment 4)

The Local Government Performance Reporting Framework requires Councils to report various
performance indicators at the end of each financial year.

A full list of financial performance indicators is included in Attachment 4.
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Indicator 30/6/2024 | 31/03/2025
Working capital 162% 229%
Measure - Current assets compared to current liabilities.

Expected values in accordance with the Local Government

Performance Reporting Framework 100% to 400%

Indicator of the broad objective that sufficient working capital is

available to pay bills as and when they fall due. High or increasing level

of working capital suggests an improvement in liquidity

Loans and borrowings 1.71% 1.08%
Measure - Loans and borrowings compared to rates.

Expected values in accordance with the Local Government

Performance Reporting Framework - 0% to 70%

Indicator of the broad objective that the level of interest-bearing loans

and borrowings should be appropriate to the size and nature of a

council’s activities. Low or decreasing level of loans and borrowings

suggests an improvement in the capacity to meet long term

obligations

Indebtedness 7.49% 8.08%
Measure - Non-current liabilities compared to own source revenue

Expected values in accordance with the Local Government

Performance Reporting Framework - 2% to 70%

Indicator of the broad objective that the level of long-term liabilities

should be appropriate to the size and nature of a Council's activities.

Low or decreasing level of long-term liabilities suggests an

improvement in the capacity to meet long term obligations

Rates concentration 73.82% 59.91%
Measure - Rates compared to adjusted underlying revenue

Expected values in accordance with the Local Government

Performance Reporting Framework - 30% to 80%

Indicator of the broad objective that revenue should be generated

from a range of sources. High or increasing range of revenue sources

suggests an improvement in stability

Expenditure level $4,592 $3,388
Measure - Expenses per property assessment

Expected values in accordance with the Local Government

Performance Reporting Framework $2,000 to $10,000

Indicator of the broad objective that resources should be used

efficiently in the delivery of services. Low or decreasing level of

expenditure suggests an improvement in organisational efficiency

Indicator - Revenue level $1,993 $2,002
Measure - Average residential rate per residential property assessment

Expected values in accordance with the Local Government

Performance Reporting Framework - $700 to $2,000

Indicator of the broad objective that resources should be used

efficiently in the delivery of services. Low or decreasing level of rates

suggests an improvement in organisational efficiency
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Indicator 30/6/2024 | 31/03/2025

Indicator - Percentage of total rates collected 88.1% 76.0%
The internal audit conducted in 2019 on Rates Revenue and Rate
Debtor Management found no routine or regular reporting of large
and long outstanding rates debtors.

The outstanding Rates Debtors is reported in the Annual Financial
report.

As at 31 March 2025 the outstanding Rates Debtors totalled $4.555
million compared to $2.320 million as at 30 June 2024, an increase of
$2.235 million. In percentage terms 76.0% of the rates raised have
been collected at 31 March 2025 compared to 77.4% up to 31 March
2024.

Outstanding rates are currently charged 10% interest.

Council issues approximately 7,900 rate notices. In 2024/25 there are
2,158 assessments paying by instalments compared with 2,640
assessments in 2023/24.

Indicator - Asset Renewal & Upgrade 124.63% 94.43%
Measure - Asset renewal & Upgrade compared to depreciation
Expected range in accordance with the Local Government
Performance Reporting Framework - 40% to 130%

Assessment of whether council assets are being renewed or upgraded
as planned. It compares the rate of spending on existing assets
through renewing, restoring, replacing or upgrading existing assets
with depreciation. Ratios higher than 1.0 indicate there is a lesser risk
of insufficient spending on Council’s asset base.

The Local Government Performance Reporting Framework provides “Expected ranges” for each
indicator. The framework has been developed to consider results at the end of the financial year so
some results during the year are outside the expected range due to the timing of receipts and
payments.

Explanations are provided in Attachment 4 for those indicators that are outside the "expected ranges”.

KEY CONSIDERATIONS

Alignment to Council Plan Strategic Objectives

6 Strong and Effective Governance
We will work hard to build models of governance that place delivering public value at the centre
through effective financial management; well measured risk management; and implementation
of effective community engagement practices

6.1  Deliver responsible budget outcomes, linked to strategy, that deliver value, innovation, and
rating fairness

Budget Implications

Council’s financial performance is in line with expectations. Council’s cash position was expected to
reduce in the first half of the year, and then increase in the third quarter with many ratepayers electing
to pay their rates in full due 15 February 2025 and the third instalment due 28 Feb 2025.

Policy/Relevant Law
Section 97 - Quarterly Budget Report of the Local Government Act 2020 states:
1. Assoon as practicable after the end of each quarter of the financial year, the Chief Executive
Officer must ensure that a quarterly budget report is presented to the Council at a Council
meeting which is open to the public.
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2. A quarterly budget report must include—
a. acomparison of the actual and budgeted results to date; and
b. an explanation of any material variations; and
c. any other matters prescribed by the regulations.
3. In addition, the second quarterly report of a financial year must include a statement by the
Chief Executive Officer as to whether a revised budget is, or may be, required.

Sustainability Implications
There are no economic, social or environmental implications in relation to the item

Risk Assessment
Council is required to establish and maintain a budgeting and reporting framework that is consistent
with the principles of sound management and this report assists Council in meeting that requirement.

Stakeholder Collaboration and Community Engagement
Council’s financial performance reports will continue to be published monthly.

RECOMMENDATION
That:
1. The Comprehensive Income Statement, Balance Sheet, Statement of Cash Flows and Financial

Performance Indicators for the period ended 31 March 2025 be received and adopted

MOVED CR SANDERS
SECONDED CR PRESTON

That:

1. The Comprehensive Income Statement, Balance Sheet, Statement of Cash Flows and
Financial Performance Indicators for the period ended 31 March 2025 be received and
adopted

Cr Sanders, Cr Preston and Cr J Armstrong spoke for the motion

CARRIED 7/0
5127/25

ATTACHMENTS
Comprehensive Income Statement, Balance Sheet, Statement of Cash Flows and Financial Performance
Indicators are provided as Attachment 3.8
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Artachment 1
Compeehensive Income Seatement for the mne months ended 31 Masch 2025
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Toral income 6186 39558 284865 30337 1,672
Expesnven
Employes covty 1L333 11353 5588 8912 b ) o~
Mstecals ad secvions 825% 10589 7667 5308 84l 11%
Bad and doubeful debrs . . . . . %

. 7681 7651 5761 2% 154 %
Amoctisanon - oght of we asecs 302 32 24 229 2 "%
Boowing covy 6 6 5 6 ! 2%
Fuizce conts - leases T4 74 55 58 3 L2
Orher expenses 368 M8 246 229 an %
Total expenses B023 30353 2546 25237 250 12%
Suspls for (e year 8163 9206 69 5300 (1019) A%
Orher comprehensive income
Net amet eradnatios incoement - - - - -
Total comprebensive cevult 5163 9,205 6,119 5,100 1.019)

Pristed 17002025
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Arachmens 2
Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2023

31/03/2028 30/06/2024
$'000 $'000
Assets
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents 11,48 3049
Trade and other recervables 5477 5212
Financaal assets . 3.040
Inventones 17 bt
Prepayments - 360
Total current assets 16,942 —__uge
Non-curtent assots
Trade 20d other tecervables 5 5
Investments in joent veatuce 998 498
Property, plant and equpment, mfrastrisctuare 307,876 308,261
Right of use assets 1,163 1359
Investment propesty 1,535 1535
Total non.current assets Jgﬁ Jw
Total assets 328,519 323 390
Liabilicies
Current liabilities
Tiade and other parables 890 1.024
Trast funds and deposits 1,608 303
Uneamed Income 2693 3372
Promimons 2095 2104
Intecest-beanng loans and botrowungs 37 150
Lease Labdities 72 275
Total current liabilities 7,393 7,228
Non-current liabilities
Provisions 293 293
Intecest-beaning loans and borrowings 156 156
Lease habskitses 1,129 1,100
Total non-current labilities 1,578 !&
Total labilides 897 8777
Net Assets 319,548 314,613
Equity
Accamulated susplas 103,225 98,126
Resesves 216,323 216,487
Toral Equiry 319 548 314,613
Printed 17/042025
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Artachmenst 3
Scatement of Cash Flows for the nine months ended 31
March 2025

Nine Forecast Year
months to End to
31/03/2025 30/06/2025
Inflows/ Inflows/
(Ourflows) (Ouflows)
$'000 $'000
Cash flows from operating activities
Rates and charges 16913 17943
Statutory fees and fines 191 72
Usex fees 1373 1,515
Graats - opeaating 9813 10,270
Grants - capital 1957 7304
Contnbutions - monetary 92 100
Inteest recerved 247 500
Trust funds and deposts taken 259 .
Orher receipts 1n2 22
Net GST refund/payment 1641 .
Employee costs (9.557) (1.527)
Mazesals and secvices (9.209) (10,666)
Trust funds and depossts repaid (305) =
Ocher payments (226) (368)
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities 13,001 15,565
Cash flows from investing activities
Paypments for property, plant and equipment, imnfrastmactuce (7,020 (15,513)
Proceeds from sale of propesty, plant and eqaipment,
mfrastouctace 163 163
Proceeds from investments 3040 3040
Papments for investments (300) (1,000,
Net cash provided by (used in) investng actvides (4.317) (13,3510)
Cash flows from financing activities
Fumaace costs (6) (6)
Repayment of bosrowings (13 (150)
Proceeds from borrowings <
Intesest paid - Jease kability (38) 4
Repayment of Jease labiltses (207) (283)
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities (384) (513)
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 8,300 1,742
Cash and cash equarvalents at the beginning of the financial year 3049 3049

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the period 11,349 479

Prided 1704720208
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Arnactenent 4
Pasancial Pecformance Indicsson for the nine months ended 31 March 2023 Revals Muterial Varatioos

ANJUIINIY

Derention - Opetaeg potitin

Toticasor - Adjueted undecying recalt

Mescwry - Adurond snderiying sorpdes for dehc) 15430

[Adpnind cadecining soepien (delc) | Adpaned wndesiing cevesoe) X100 No mawml TInEmon
Expecaed sange 15 accoadance TvE the Lock Gorenumen: Peiformaace Repoang 0% 10 0%

Pamework

Incheator of the beoad objective Bt ks afjevted endeciying susphe thould be penected = e
AN cotF e Of DULDeTL A SRS OF BTeTng P SRgerts 30 URpIoTeIMG! B S opentng
poamos

Disension - Liquidity

Toaticaror - Working cspical

Masoerr - Curvens anies comparsd v corvess Baiie 229%% No maneziil vanason
[Current 215e¢s / Cumsent labidimes] X100

Expected tasge in scocodunce wrd the Locd Comeonment Pasformusce Repocting 100%% 5o 400%
Fomerork

Endicaror of the Bocad objectre 2at wfficwnt Todkng Sapes # sralatie © par bl 31 and when they
fall due. FHigh o¢ intsexiing level of woding capital Suggests an inprovennent in Squsday

Taxticaroe - Unrestricsed caele

Uresvicnd cacd compared to cxrvrat Sobuives PE6™% No sunesiyl vasisson
[Vnseesmctad cand / Crmmens kabalizas] x100

Expected fange s acccedance Tid the Lockl Goswnument Peiformance Repocng 10% 20 200%

Paswwok

Endicaros of the Bosad objectrre Sat wfcwat canh whach & Gee of ortctions i aralable to par By
25 and when they Ll doe. High or iscreasing Jevwl of unsesmoned cash Saggests a0 Mnproveooest in
hediey
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Pmancial Pecformance Indicasces for the nine monthe snded 31 March 2005 Reoalr Marenal Varisnom
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Irdecaror - Losns sowd bovrowings
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Tadicazor of the Booad obyectrre dat te vl of mterest Seanng Joans and bomoTings thouid be
appeopeiate (o the L dod narere of 3 comnell's actvities. Lowr ¢ decrensing Jevwl of Jouns and

DOGUTING) 1HRReIT 0 ERPITTEIANT I the CIPASET 10 meet lOng W bigancas

Lase: and borvszangs repwrets comgaved & rate: 0.6™% No mutesil vasivson
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Pamerod
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Prmerock
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Faowrok
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Pmancial Pecfoemance Indicasces for the nine months saded 31 March 2008 Recalr Masenial Varisnons
EFFICIENCY

Diencon - Eficescy

Irtocaror - Expendiae

Metsare < Exgenies fer seupenty atvessment $3,36797 No musedil vacison
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Pomerork

Iadicator of the Bocad obyectre at sencasoes Rockd be uied efficecdy is the delitery of werTces.
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aresumenn) Expecoed mueramens i 3ghoy above the
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SECTION 4 - INFORMATION REPORTS

4.1 CRAZY IDEAS COLLEGE: ARARAT YOUTH ACTIVATORS 2024
RESPONSIBLE OFFICER: CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
DEPARTMENT: CEO’S OFFICE

REFERENCE: 20634

OFFICER DIRECT OR INDIRECT CONFLICT OF INTEREST:
Officers providing advice to Council must disclose any conflict of interest.

No person involved in the preparation of this report has a conflict of interest requiring disclosure.

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

Last year, the Ararat Rural City Council and the Crazy Ideas College collaborated to deliver the Ararat
Youth Activators 2024, which saw almost 600 local young people participate, 6 schools and 16
community partners and local employers involved. The Ararat Youth Activators 2024 has showcased
new and creative ways for young people to build key skills and make their mark in community and
economic life.

DISCUSSION

Crazy Ideas College (CIC)

The CIC started in 2018 with a view that young people ought to have the capabilities, confidence and
connections to shape the world around them. Their team consists of people with a broad set of work
experiences including corporate leadership, futures consulting, marketing, education and community
development. CIC are transforming the way young people, schools, Council, business and community
connect and create value for each other. CIC is a purpose driven entity and operates as a Social
Enterprise.

Ararat Youth Activators (AYA)
The AYA taps into the wisdom and brilliance of Ararat's young people. AYA focuses on:
1. Lifting aspirations and building confidence amongst young people that their future
will be bright.
2. Deepening the connections young people have with their local community.
3. Building skills for the future (including problem solving, creativity and collaboration.

The AYA 2024 programs delivered the following outcomes:

e Social Innovators (Sl): Young people work in teams to generate crazy good ideas that
showcase new and ingenious ways to care for our planet and enable more people to live,
healthy, fulfilling, prosperous and connected lives.

¢ Ideas to Life (i2L Lab): i2L supports teams wanting to bring their idea to life. The i2L Lab
provides teams with the coaching, skills and resources they need to collaborate with business
and community to bring their idea to life.

e Future Ready (FR): Young people explore the future world of work, clarify their talents, consider
career options and identify the contribution they want to make through their careers. Young
people establish a Future Ready Plan that sets out the actions they will undertake to set
themselves up for vocational success.

e Values in Action (ViA): Young people are challenged to explore their personal values, reflect
on what matters in their own lives and the community and identify actions to discover their best
selves.

e Lead4impact (L4i) - Levelling up to high school: Extends the capacity of young people to lead
change in their own lives, in their school and in their communities. This program is targeted at
senior primary students and supporting them to make a successful transition to secondary
schooling.
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KEY CONSIDERATIONS

Alignment to Council Plan Strategic Objectives
The key financial drivers align strongly with the thrust of the Council Plan 2021-2025, particularly the
following:

5. Enhancing Community Life
5.3 Partner with community groups, not-for-profits, and traditional owner organisations to develop
Ararat Rural City as a more inclusive and diverse community.

This initiative also aligns with the following strategic objectives from the Municipal Public Health and
Wellbeing Plan 2021-25:

1. Building effective partnerships

We will develop effective, long-term partnerships focussed on delivering positive health and wellbeing
outcomes to the communities of Ararat Rural City.

1.3 Commit to strong local partnerships with key providers and social enterprises in delivery of health
and wellbeing initiatives.

2. Developing socially and emotionally strong and diverse communities
We will develop community-based approaches that support improved mental health, encourage
diversity, and build social capital.

Budget Implications
There are no current budget implications arising. A previous investment of $80,000 was made to support
the continuation and expansion of the AYA Program for 2024.

Policy/Legal/Statutory
None identified

Sustainability Implications
None identified

Risk Assessment
None identified

Innovation and Continuous Improvement
AYA 2024 built on the 2023 initiative and delivered an improved program.

Stakeholder Consultation and Communication

CIC engaged with Council on adapting the AYA program for 2024. Community, schools, businesses,
organisations and other stakeholders had the opportunity to meaningfully engage and support the
delivery of AYA 2024.

RECOMMENDATION

That Council:

1. Receive the Ararat Youth Activators 2024 Impact report & Case study
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MOVED CR WATERSTON
SECONDED CR R ARMSTRONG

That Council:

1. Receive the Ararat Youth Activators 2024 Impact report & Case study
Cr Waterston, Cr R Armstrong and Cr Kaur spoke for the motion

CARRIED 7/0

5129/25

ATTACHMENTS
The Youth Activators 2024 Impact Report and Case Study are provided as Attachment 4.1
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Ararat Youth Activators 2024 @

Impact Report

Ararat College | Marian College | Lake Bolac P-12 College | Ararat Primary School
Ararat North Primary School | Willaura Primary School

2024 saw nearly 600 local young people
step up to participate in the Ararat Youth
Activators (AYA) initiative established by
Ararat Rural City Council in collaboration
with Crazy Ideas College (CIC).

AYA was established in 2023 to
demonstrate what can be achieved when
we design new and creative ways for
young people to build skills and
participate in civic and economic life.

CIC has specialist expertise in engaging
young people and supporting them to fift
their sights and step into game changing
opportunities.

DG 096

Schools Community and Students
Employment Partners

AYA focuses on:

« Lifting aspirations and building
confidence among young people that
their future will be bright.

« Deepening the conneclions young people
have with their local community.

= Building the skills young people will need
for their future, and allowing them to
practice these skills in a real-world
context,
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The CIC Model enables young
people to:

« Build their confidence to share their ideas
and opinion. This better positions young
people to actively participate in a
changing workforce, as influenced by the
rise of artificial intelligence and
compounding social and environmental
issues.

« Tap into their connection with their
community, helping them to connect with
business, young people and community
partners alike. Forming meaningful and
advantageous connections promotes the
construction of shared futures.

« Learn new skills that are highly valued by
business and community. Slnnloduthe
imagination, ingenuity and agency of
young people to invent services and
products that enrich the lives of their
fellow citizens,

* Make an impact in their community by
bringing their ideas to life. Now is a
crucial time for action, and to
meaningfully support young people vying
for a better future. Through embedding
these longer-term initiatives into the
community, the benefits will continue to
ripple.

Cultivate
Develop personal L
agency & hopeful enterprise &
visions of the
future

YOUNG
PEOPLE

Step Into rew
opportunities for
ic & civic |
‘ participation

Build meaningful
& sdvantag
comxtbm

®,
®’® -

N
’

-

<&

Ararat Rural City

Programs delivered in 2024
include:

Social Innovators (SI)

» Young people work in teams to generate
crazy good ideas that showcase new and
ingenious ways to care for our planet and
en_lblempcophtolve,_ham'ly,

umuufom.m)

. mmmmmmm
mmmmmmmm
with the sﬂhmdm
MM&MM&NM
~ and community to bring their idea to life.

Future Ready (FR)

. YwmmmehMMd
Mdldfvﬂadrhluumidnm
options and identify the contribution they
want to make through their careers.
Young people establish a Future Ready
Plan that sets out the actions they will
undertake to set themselves up for
vocational success.

Values in Action (VIA)

» Young people are challenged to explore
thelr personal values, reflect on what
matters in their own lives and the
community and identify actions to
discover their best selves.

Leaddimpact (L4i) - Levelling up to high
school
« Extends the capacity of young people to

lead change in their own lives, in their
school and in their communities. This
program is targeted at senior primary
students and supporting them to make a
successful transition to secondary
schooling.

Wiksh ot o, 2023 Acstralion Youth Serometer: Usderstanding Young Pecple in Acstralia Today, Monesh Youth Policy and Educelion Practice, 2005, 9. 3.6
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Program Snapshots

Social Innovators and ideas2Life
Lab

70 Young people were equipped with
the skills, confidence, and
capabilities to bring an idea to life.

16 Ideas were generated with idea
drop posters created for each and

¢ e b “ loved it! It's such a great tool
for kids to connect and network.
9+ Wﬂmmumnplmmg a You can really see their growth
Pitches and assist with bringing ressvonn, @ they share ideas, even though
their ideas to life. womn  they'll all go their own ways.
63 AT -
ARLRAY b
Some of the great ideas generated were: <oy coumen. It's awesome to have others
¥ i ‘ : ; focused on the same goals to
« RARPET: A household carpet that bounce ideas off. Plus, involving
doubles as a treadmill keeping the local community and
' ' step with feedback and
« Bee Better Book: A book that educates networking. It's a fantastic ideal”

it's reader on the plants that bees likes 4
STt deed T readérs b pladitn ek Values in Action

garden
Year 7's developed a clearer
« Telepathic Top Hat: A portal which 130-!- understanding of their personal
friends can reconnect over great and school values.
distances by pressing a button on the
hat. Promoting friendships 2 Schools involved in this program -
Ararat College and Marian College
Check out all the brillant .
G : In the workshops young people:
« Explored their personal values
/‘/ﬁ “I thought it was a good « Built an understanding of school values
W 4 opportunity to help expand on and how they affect their community
o class knowledge and build on snd hesiseies
——ea  some skills that you don't
really generally leam In « Developed a personal Values in Action

school.” Plan to take with them into the future
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Future Ready and First Jobs

Matter
Young people have dared to dream
big, crafting their own inspiring
270 visions of what a great career
journey can be,
Young people from Marian college
selected to extend their career
7 Journey by exploring their first or
next job through the FJM Program
and Pitch Event.
This year saw the return of both Marian
Employment Partners connected College and Ararat College to the Future
7 with the Students to hear their FJM Ready Program. We also saw student
Pitches and network with them numbers more than double, and expand to
around first jobs. include more year levels (9-11) in the
5+ ln?“::tlmmhsmamd
e ki “It's been really uplifting for
1 mx&&wa g reaffirming for them to think
participant of the FJM Program. swmn about their futures and all
o o their strengths and skills that
community, it's been awesome
to see them flourish.”

*| liked that we had to
challenge ourselves and put
ourselves oul there, | think this
is really difficult but it gave
some incentive to do it.”

“It’s fantastic to see local
businesses, schools and young
people coming together.
Creating a platform like this
encourages young people to
engage with local business
operators and gain exposure to
industry they may not have
known existed in their local
Ararat Rural City patch.”
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Lead4impact Grade 5-6
Transition: Powering up for High
School

Upper primary students took part
in the Lead4impact Transition
Program, equipping them with
the skills and confidence to thrive
as they step into senior primary
or secondary school.

100

Schools involved in this program -

Ararat Primary School, Ararat
4 North Primary School, Lake Bolac
P-12 College and Willaura Primary
School.
In the workshops, students:

* Uncovered the skills they already have
to crush it in life.

memm
mmmmwmm
thrive in the future. ‘

+ Mapped out a 2025 game plan, packed
with tips and transition hacks to set
them up for success!

Educators shared they loved the program!
It gave students the confidence to talk to
teachers about transitioning, even outside
the workshops. Plus, it brought schools
together, helping Grade 6 students form
meaningful connections to assist with
their transition.

*1 thought it was realfy good for the
kids to mave into high school but we
also had the opportunity 1o bring the
grade 5's as well s0 they get to learn
wmscan-  how to be efficient leaders but also

take those choices in | think a lot of
the students have taken o fair bit

away *

Looking to 2025!

2025 is set to be next-level with even more

young people stepping up to join the AYA.
New programs will roll out, engaging
students across every year level—from
upper primary through to Year 12.

The incredible stories of young people and
their bold ideas will be shared far and wide,
mmmmmlumof
Mmmmwm.

mmummmm
bﬂMMﬁMM-ﬂmm and
participants will showcase the valuable
skills they're building through AYA.

2025 is all about unleashing potential and
making an impact like never before!

AYA was initiated by the Ararat Rural
City Council

"N

Ararat Rural City
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Ararat Youth Activators: Unleashing the wisdom
and brilliance of Ararat’s young people!

The Ararat Youth Activators (AYA) initiative
helps build a pool of talented young people
who are confident, capable, and actively
participating in the workforce and social
spheres.

AYA is a collaboration between Ararat City
Council and Crazy Ideas College (CIC) In
partnership with local schools, young people
and community to demonstrate what can be
achieved when we design new and creative
ways for young people to build skills and
participate in civic and economic life.

AYA leverages the power of a collaborative
and integrated approach. It is designed and
staged in accordance with the CIC
framework, which focuses on I-vlng,m :

AYA was established to:

« Equip young people with skills and
confidence to enter the workforce.

« Build strong connections between young
people and local businesses.

» Create pathways for young people to

contribute to the community and economy.

« Showcase the value first job experiences
have in building lifelong career skills.

Ararat Rural City Council: Case Study

First Jobs Matter!

One such initiative delivered through AYA
is the First Jobs Matter (FJM) program
which provides young people with the
opportunity to develop a personalised
career plan and connect them to potential
employers in the community.

FJM exemplifies how targeted initiatives

can equip young people with skills,

FJM Highlights:

» Workshops and Coaching: young
people attended a Future Ready
Workshop conducted by CIC, gaining
essential job-seeking and
communication skills.

« Pitch Event: participants presented
their career plans to local employers,
who offered feedback and advice.
Eight employers participated, including
representatives from the Council and
local businesses.,

« Networking Opportunities: Following
the pitch event, young people and
employers engaged in informal
discussions to explore potential
opportunities.
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Meeting Maiara!

Maiara, a Year 10 student with aspirations to
become a film director and actor,
participated in the FJM program. Through the
process, she enhanced her confidence and
strengthened her network.

“I liked that we had to challenge
ourselves and put ourselves out there.
It gave some incentive to do it.”

During the pitch event, Maiara presented her
career aspirations to the panel of
employment partners. Paula Davidson,
Human Resources Business Partner at the
Council, recognised her potential and saw a
way she could work with Maiara to form a
reciprocal relationship.

Feeling more confident after her pitch,
Malara reached out to Paula from the Ararat
Rural City Counclil to follow up on their
conversation at the event.

*I mentioned that | was interested in
doing paid work since | already
volunteer... After hearing my pitch,
she suggested that we might be able
to work something out where | could
get paid for the work I'm already
doing. She gave me her card, and |
reached out."

Maiara is set to underlake paid work with
Ararat Rural City Council over the summer
break.

Maiara's story showcases how great
partnerships between schools, councils, and
businesses can support young people to
confidently step into their futures.

- J——

o “It's fantastic to see local businesses,
i MI#MMW
mm.mh
_‘nuﬂﬁlwhmm
“1 Joved it! It's such a great tool for
iids to connect and network. You can
really see their growth as they share
ideas.._ it's awesome to have others
“ e focused on the same goals to bounce
s ideas off, Plus, involving the local
""'_"."“;"" community snd workplaces gives
coacs them that next step with feedback
and networking.”
B *It's been resily uplfting for the kids,
 motivationad and reaffirming for them
10 think about their futures and all
el their strengths and skills that they
mocrw wo  Can bring to our communaty, it's been
wmws  @wosome to see them flourish *
AN Lo
AYA was initiated and @
enabled by the Ararat
Rural City Council. Ararat Rural City
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4.2 ARARAT RURAL CITY COUNCIL 2024 LOCAL GOVERNMENT ELECTIONS
RESPONSIBLE OFFICER: CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

DEPARTMENT: CEO'S OFFICE
REFERENCE: 20635

OFFICER DIRECT OR INDIRECT CONFLICT OF INTEREST:
Officers providing advice to Council must disclose any conflict of interest.

No person involved in the preparation of this report has a conflict of interest requiring disclosure.

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

The Victorian local government general elections are held every 4 years as set out in the Local
Government Act 2020 (Vic). In 2024, general elections were held for Ararat Rural City Council with 26
October 2024 marking election day. In accordance with section 263(1) of the LG Act, the Victorian
Electoral Commission (VEC) is the statutory election service provider for the conduct of local
government elections in Victoria.

This report provides information on the 2024 Ararat Rural City Council general election including details
of the end-to-end service delivery of electoral activities throughout the election timeline. This report also
provides details of post-election activities including compulsory voting enforcement.

DISCUSSION

The Local Government Amendment (Governance and Integrity) Act 2024 (Vic) received Royal Assent on
25 June 2024, introducing several reforms to local government electoral legislation. In response, the
Victorian Electoral Commission (VEC) implemented the required amendments to the 2024 local
government election program to ensure compliance with the new legislative framework.

Ararat Rural City Council is comprised of seven Councillors elected under an unsubdivided structure,
with the most recent representation review conducted in 2019.

In accordance with section 8(2)(c) of the Electoral Act and section 249 of the Local Government Act (LG
Act), the VEC prepared and subsequently certified the voters' roll for the election under section 249(4)
of the LG Act. At the time of certification, the voters’ roll included a total of 8,331 enrolled voters for the
2024 Ararat Rural City Council general election.

Atotal of 12 candidates successfully nominated for election. Following the close of nominations, a ballot
draw was conducted to determine the order of names on the ballot paper.

Between Monday 7 and Thursday 10 October 2024, the VEC distributed 8,331 ballot paper packs to
enrolled voters. During the voting period, 189 packs were returned to the election office as “Return to
Sender,” likely due to recipients no longer residing at the listed addresses. Voters who did not receive
their ballot pack or who had lost, spoiled, or destroyed it were eligible to apply for a replacement. A
total of 272 replacement packs were issued throughout the voting period.

The VEC received 7,135 completed ballot paper envelopes. Of these, 155 were excluded from the
extraction and counting process due to unsigned declaration envelopes.

The extraction process involved two stages to maintain voter anonymity: first, declaration flaps
containing voters’ details were removed from each admitted envelope; second, the ballot papers were
extracted. This process also enabled accurate reconciliation of envelope counts.

10565




29 APRIL 2025 @
COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES

Ararat Rural City

Following extraction, all admitted ballot papers were entered into the VEC's computer counting system.
Preferences were distributed using the proportional representation method once data entry was
completed. The official count was conducted at the election office on Thursday 7 November 2024.

The results of the 2024 Ararat Rural City Council general election were formally declared at 3:00 pm on
Friday 8 November 2024 at the steps of the Municipal Offices.

The participation rate for the election was 84.85%, which is higher than the state average of 83.79% but
slightly lower than the 85.68% participation rate recorded in the 2020 general election.

In accordance with section 267 of the LG Act, the VEC has now commenced its compulsory voting
enforcement program.

KEY CONSIDERATIONS

Alignment to Council Plan Strategic Objectives

6. Strong and Effective Governance
We will work hard to build models of governance that place delivering public value at the centre
through effective financial management; well measured risk management; and implementation

of effective community engagement practices.

Budget Implications
The cost of the general election was budgeted for in the 2024-2025 budget.

Policy/Relevant Law
Local Government Act 2020

Sustainability Implications
There are no economic, social or environmental implications in relation to the item

Stakeholder Collaboration and Community Engagement
Collaboration with the Victorian Electoral Commission

RECOMMENDATION
That:
1. Council receive the Election report: Ararat Rural City Council 2024 Local Government Elections

MOVED CR JOYCE
SECONDED CR PRESTON

That:

1. Council receive the Election report: Ararat Rural City Council 2024 Local Government
Elections

Cr Joyce, Cr Preston and Cr J Armstrong spoke for the motion

CARRIED 7/0
5129/25

ATTACHMENTS
The Election Report: Ararat Rural City Council - 2024 Local government elections is provided as
Attachment 4.2
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Letter of Transmittal
14 Apeil 2025

Dr Tim Marrson

Chiaf Executive Officer
Ararat Rural Oty Council
PO Box 246

Ararat VIC 3377

Dear Dr Matrison

Pursuant to Regulation B3 of the Local Government
(Electoral) Regulstions 2020, | submet this report to the
Chiof Executive Officer of Ararat Rural City Councd on the
general election held in October 2024,

Yours sincerely

/7

Sven Bluemmel!
Electorsl Commisioner

Acknowledgement of Country

The Victoran Electoral Commission {VEC) acknowledges
the Aborigine! and Torres Stralt Islandes people of

this nation, as the traditional custodians of the fands

on which the VEC works and where we conduct our
businets. We pay our respects to ancestors and Elders,
Past, present, and emerging. The VEC is committed 1o
honcaering Aboriginal and Torres Strait islandser peoples”
unique cultural and spiritual refatiorships to the land,
waters and seas and their rich contribution to sodaty.
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Voter turnout (fromt cover) %

Graphic reprasentation of the Coundl's voter turnout rate

for the 2024 and 2020 Local Government elections,

Rings are grouped into units 1o visualise the tumout

percentage, axch ring representing 1%. Data for 5%
2024 15 depictad using colowred rings, while data for

2020 & shown In white,

Ararat Bural Gty Councll

Tumout (2024). 83,54%
Tumout (2020): §3.80%
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Araryt Rural Crty Courst Introduction

1. Introduction

The Victorian local goverrenant genical slections are held
very 4 yaars as et out In the Local Government Act 2020
(ViQ) (LG Act). In 2024, genaral alactions were held for

78 of the 79 Victorian councils with Saturday 26 October
marking election day. In accordance with section 263(1)
of the LG Act, the Victorian Electoral Commission (VEC)

Is the statutory dlection service provider for the conduct
of local government slections in Victoria

This report provides information on the 2024 Ararat Rural
City Councll genaeral election Includng detals of the
ond.to-end service delivery of electoral activities
throughout the alection Bmaline. This roport abso
provides detalls of post-elecson activities induding
compulsary voting enforcament.

About the Victorian Electoral Commission

The VEC s an independent statutory authomty
established under the Electoral Act 2002 (Vic)
(Electoral Act). The VEC's principal functions areto
condhuct State elections, local government alections,
certain statwtony elections and polls, commercial

and community slections, and to support sdactoral
representation processes for local coundls and the
Electoral Boundaries Commission for State electoral
boundaries. The VEC is also responsible for maintaining
the Victorlan registor of olectors and adminéstering
political funding and donation disdosure laws, The VEC
has a mandated role to conduct dlectoral resesrch,
provide communication and ecucation senvices, and
inform and engage Victorians In the democratic process.

Svon Blusmmael & the appointed Electoral Commissioner
and Dana Feming s the appointed Deputy Electoral
Commissioner. The Electoral Commissioner and Deputy
Elecroral Commissiones report to the Victorian Parliament
In relation to the VEC's opesations and activities,

The flectoral Comankisioner haads the VEC's Executive
Management Group that comprises the Deputy Bectoral
Commissioner, the Executive Director, Corporate Secvices
and 7 Directors, each leading the main functional areas of
the VEC, Each Director acts a3 subject matter axperts and
oversen legislative responsibilities under the LG Act and
the Plectonal Act,

The VEC has a dedicated local government election
program framowork that incorporates a range of
programs, projects and activities that ace supported
through strategic planning, project managament, and
peocess mapping. The program is oversesn by the VECs
Delivery Group and has sponsoeship from the Exsoutive

Management Group,

VK Iean thectanal Comm ison $
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Koy changes Ararst furdd Cry Councd

2. Key changes

Changes in legiskation

The Local Government Amendment {Governance

and Integrity) Act 2024 (Vic) recolved royal assent

on 25 June 2024 and introduced a number of changes
to local governmant electoral legislation.

The VEC irplemaented the necessary changes %o the
2024 local government election program In response
to the reforms as thoy apphed to the olections.

Key changes from Local Govermnment Amendment (Governance and integrity) Act 2024

Close of roll The date for the dose of roll was axtended from 57 days to 80 days before the election,
For all shactions after the October 2024 general elections, Indudng by-elections, the date
for the dose of roll will ba 73 days before election day.

The peevious tmelines were no longe viable due 10 an increase in the scale and complexity
of local government elections, induding changes to enrolment entitlements, population
growth, highar number of wards, lkely increase in the rumber of candidatas, and
reducson in mail services offerad by Australia Post,

By moving this date earker, other koy dates induding nomination day, the lodgemant

date for candidate statements and questionnaires, and the period for malling cwt of

ballot materials have been brought forward through the Local Governmeont (Electoral)
Regulstions 2020 (Vic) (LG Regulations) providing more time 10 ensure they are sustainable.

Cortfication of the roll The timeframs for rol certification was increased 1o 23 business days (previously
13 busingss days) 10 ensure CEOs (or thelr delegates) and the VEC have adequate tme
to process enrolment applcations and complete related roll certification processes.

Candidate statemaent In response to the pendemic, the LG Regulatons permitted candidate statements to be
word mit Increased from 200 1o 300 words for the 2020 local govermnmaent elections, acknowledging
that cancidates at the 2020 elections would face restrictions in campaigning,

As candidates would no longer face pandemic-based barriars 1o campaigning activities,
the word limit was roverted to 200 words. Equivalent amendments were also appled to
the City of Melbourne (Electaral) Regulstions 2022 {Vic).

Returming to the origing woed limit allowed the VEC 10 produce smaller candidate
statermont booldets, redudng assodated printing costs and administrative burden.

Rojection and amendment  The time allowed for 8 candidate to amend thelr staternent was reduced by one diy

of candidate statements to now be the day after the dose of nominations (or 38 days before election day).
This aligned the periods for rejections and amendments with the eardier deadline
for lodging a candidate statement, alowing additional time to print ballot packs.

Close of candidate The deadine for submitting a candidate statement, photograph and questionnaire was
statements, photos amended to dose the same day s the dose of nominations st 12 noon, facltating a more
and guastionnaires efficiont process for candidates and allowing the VEC more time 10 peint ballot packs.

The timoline for mnducﬁo the mabiout of baflot materials was -Qnad.ﬁun oaxmr;o
over 3 business days to 4 business days, allowing the VEC to manage the risk of mail
service leved reductions and perovide addetional safeguards against election fraud.

iﬁléut of baﬁoc padt

‘ WACIonan Siec ol Commission
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Ararst Rursl ity Counct Chection date
3. Election dates
Key timaelines for the 2024 local government elections
Deadline fixed by the VEC for councll primnary ervolment data Monday 15 July 2024
Close of roll A pm Wednesday

7 August 2024
Opening of the slection office to the peblic ‘Monday 9 September 2024
Certification of the voters’ roll and opening of nominations Monday 9 September 2024
Cose of nominations 12 noon Tuesday

17 September 2024
*Deadline for lodging candidate statemaents, photographs and quastonnaives 12 noon Tuesday

17 Septembar 2024
*Baliot deaw From 10 am Wednesday

18 Septomber 2024

*General mail out of ballot packs 1o voters

Monday 7 October to
Thursday 10 October 2024

*Close of voting 6 pm Friday 25 October 2024
Day prescribed as Election Day Ssturday 26 Octobor 2024
*Close of extended postal vote receipt period 12 noon Friday

1 November 2024

Dedaration of eloction resufts

No latar than Friday
15 November 2024

*Dates with asterisks refate to contested elections only.

VK Iean thectanal Comm ison
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About Araeat lural Criy Councsl Ararst furdd Cry Councd

4. About Ararat Rural
City Council

Ararat Rural Oty Councl & comprised of 7 councillors
elocted from an unsubdivided structure.

The structure was bist reviewed in accordance with
the Local Government Act 1589 through an dlectoral
repraentation review in 2019,

Fagure 1 The eleciensd structime of Arsest Rural Oty Couvnal st
The general slection held on 26 October 2004

. WACIonan Siec ol Commission
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Araryt Rural Crty Courst Votery' coll

5. Voters' roll

The VEC prepared the voters” roll for the election under
section 8(2)(c) of the tlectoral Actand in accordance
with saction 249 of the LG Act. The dose of roll for

the election was 4 pm on Wodnesday 7 August 2024,
Pursuant to section 249(4) of the LG Act, the VEC certified
the voters” roll on Monday 9 Septembaer 2024,

Al certfication, the voters' roll for the 2024 Ararat Rural
Oty Council general alection induded 8,331
enrolied voters.

Composition of the voters’ roll

Section 249 of the LG Act specifies that the voten” rell
for a local gowernment election is formed by combining
2 separate ksts of veters

1. The Electoral Commissioner's §st(EC Mst) - list of
State aloctors that are enrolled within that local
Qoverrmont area,

2. The Chief Executive Officer's Ist (CEO list) - list of
coundl-entitled voterss.

Refar to Appendix 1 for a braakdown of the Ararat Rural
Gty Councll general election votars’ roll.

Amendments to the voters’ roll

In accordance with section 250 of the LG Act, the VEC s
able to amend any error or omiision in the preparation,
printing or copying of the voters' roll, or comect any
misnomsar of inaccurate description of any parson,
place or thing on the voters’ roll. Amendments to

the voters’ roll are to be certified by the VEC.

All voters added 10 the roll were siued with a ballot
pack. Where » votar was temoved from the ol after
the mail-out of ballot materal, the VEC had systems in
place to ensure that returned ballot papars from the
deletad voters could be identified and exduded from
the extraction and count. Where roll amendments
weore required, the total numbaer of voters on the rolt
was updated.

Following the dose of roll, no amendments were required
to the council's voters' roll.

VK Iean thectanal Comm ison ’
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6. Advertising and
communication campaign

State-wide advertising

The VEC delvered a state. wide advertising campaign

to maximine public swareness and partidpation
amengst all ebgible voters, Campaign activites and
consirtent messaging were dalivered across 2 phases -
enrolment and voting - and through multiple traditional
and emerging mediums, iIncuding radio, digital and
socal media, and offlinefoutdocr advertising.

Public notices

The VEC published a seres of public notices on the

VEC webiite throughout the election as required by the
LG Act. The notices included critical information relevamt
to each milestone of the election tmeline.

For the 2024 gereral dection, Ararat Rural City
Councl nominated the following newspapers for
the public notices:

»  The Ararat Advocate
+  The Ararat Advertiser | The Stawell Times News

Rofer to Appendix 2 for further information in relation to
the public notices,

VEC website

The VEC provided coundl spedfic information regarding
the election on Its website. The VEC wobsite went kve

for the local gowernment elections In early July 2024,
Whilst some council.spedfic data romained static during
the eection, the website was regularly updated with
content relevant 10 the election and at each key milestone
such as close of roll, nominations, vosing and results,

Media liaison

An online madia brisfing was held on Monday 29 July 2024,
The briefing was made available to view on the VEC
wobsite for media representatives unabile 1o join the live
evert, The madia briefing provided an overview of the
planning, imaling, legislative changes and other key
Information for the 2024 local cowndl elections,

Meodia outlots were provided with a media handbook
that outhined the election timaline and kay indormation,
and provided the VEC's head office media comacts,

This was made available along with other rescurces

from the VEC's media contre webpage The VECS
COMMUNICAtion team supported eadch Hection manage
with managing media interest locally In their cound| area.

Ararat Rural City

Ararst furdd Cry Councd

The VEC's media liakson program prindpally festured
schaduled state.wide and tadlored coundl-specific media
redesses simed at highlighting key milestores during the
election and capitalse on existing general news covrage.

Mora information on the VECs media release schedule
s avadabls at Appendix 3.

The media program alio involved a responsive media
enquiry service, & woll as the translstion and distribution
of 3 key media releases for multiple non-English news
outiets in Victona,

Social media campaign

As part of its state.wide advertning campaign,

the VEC used paid promotions on sockal media
platforms inchuding Facebook, Instagram, Saspchat,
TikTok and WeChat, targeting voters theough
audience segmentation,

This advertising was supported by a defined timeine
of organic sodal meda posts on the VEC's channels,
designed to cover each of the key messages of the
communication campaign %o further extend the reach
1o the commaunity and promote comversation about the
demOcratic process,

VoterAlert advisories

State-onrolied votars can sign up to VotecAlert,

owr free SMS and omail service, to recoive remindar
messages about dections that aMect them, They aan
subscribe to messages via SMS, emad, or both

During the genaral slection, we used VoterAlert to send
diroct massages onc

Wednesday 17 to Wednesday 31 July 2024 -

4,059 voters wero comtacted by VoterAlert messages sent
by SMS and /for email reminding voters to enrol or wpdate
thaeir details by the close of roll,

Monday 7 October to Monday 14 October 2024 -
4,053 votors were contacted by VoterAlert messages sent

by SMS and for email advising that we had commenced
posting ballot packs,

Tuesday 22 October 1o Wednesday 23 October 2024 -
2,727 vorers were contacted by VolarAlert messages sent
by SMS andfor email reminding voters that It was the last
woek 10 post their ballot material badk to us,

More information on VoterAlert is avadable at Appendix 4
Voter engagement

The VEC delivared an extersive voter engagemant program
throughout Victeria, spedfic to local demographics,

WACIonan Siec ol Commission
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Ararat Rural Cry Councs Advertning and Lomm UNication CATRIGN

Appendix § comains the full Ist of Inftiatives for the
2024 local government elections.

Democracy ambassadors

The VEC delivered aducation sesdons conductsd by
our Democracy Ambassadors 1o a range of counals,
The sesstons focused on enrolment and voting for
the election These sessions were offered to councis
in priority areas and delivered a1 no cost to coundl.
Whiere resourcing allowed, requests for sessions that
were not in the priority ares were also fulfilled,

One session was delivered for the Ararat Rural City
Counci olection.

Blind and low-vision services

Beaille and large print ballot material was avadable 10
blind and low-vision voters who registered for these
products by S pm on Tuesday 17 September 2024

The VEC received and processed no requests for brallle
ballot material and one request for large print baliot
matoerial for Ararat Rural City Counal.

Interprating services

The VEC engaged the Victorian interpreting and
Language Services” Language Loop to prowde a
tolophone Interpreting service for telephone enquines
from votars who had a first language other than English,
The VEC advertised direct ines for 20 languages other
than English and a genecal Bine for all other inguages.

Public enquiry service

A contralzed contact contro was establshed to respond
to telephone public enquires. This ersured consistency
In messaging, early Identification of themes and tronds
along with the opportunity 1o enable ol ection offices
0 focus on election administraticn. The call comtre was
also responsible for emails received during the local
government elactions, Any calls regarding CRO list
applications were refarred to the relevant councils.
Outside the call centre hours of operation, a recorded
sarvico was avallable that provided Information on
encolment and voting.

Fhaction offices fisided phone quenss from local candidates
on Issues directly related to their candidacy {as separate
to gonsral quaries about running as a candidate).

A total of 121 telephone calls were recoeded for
Ararat Rural City Coundl during the 2024 local

government alections, An overall total of 11,758 senail
queries were received for all coundls,

VK Iean thectanal Comm ison "
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Clection manager Ararst furdd Cry Councd

7. Election manager

The VEC mantains a pool of trained senior election
officials from across Victoria to fill election management
roles for State and local governmant slections. Election-
specfic training Is provided to senlor election officials
before they are appointed for each election.

The size of election management teams depends on the
size of the council, Under the LG Act. an election manager
Is appoinad to conduct sach coundl's election and s
supported by one or more assistant slection managers.

In accordance with regulation 21(1) of the LG Regulations,
the VEC appointed Alan Dennis as the election manager
for the 2024 Ararat Rurad Oty Coundl general dection.

The appointed asstant election mManiger wirs
Robyn Shaw.

” WACIONan Llecnoral Comuession
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Ararst Rural Oty Counct Uection office

8. Election office

The election manager was responsible for establishing
and managing the election office at Gum San Chinese
Hertage Cantre, 31-33 Lambeort Street, Ararat.

The premises were provided by the Coundl

VK Iean thectanal Comm ison L
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9. Candidates

Nominations opened at 9 am on Monday 9 September
and dosed at 12 noon on Tuesday 17 September 2024,
Candidates were required to lodge their nomination
forms In person at the election office. The nomination
foe was $250

Candidate information

The VEC devel oped résources 10 support prospectve
candidates with the noménation process, Including a
canchdate handbook. From mid-July, candidates could
access information about nominating as a candidate for
the election. The online Candidate Helper, accessiblo via
the VEC website, went kve on Tuaday 20 August 2024,
Candidato Melpar anabled candidates to complete mest
of their nomination forms and ather forms cnline before
lodging them In person with the slaction manager.

For the Ararat Rural Oty Council 2024 election, the VEC's
candidate information session was delivered in person
by the dlection manager. Additionally, a candidate
Information video was available on the VEC webiite from
Toesday 20 August 2024,

Nominations

At the close of nominations, 12 candhdates had
successfully nominated for the alaction, which

Includes arry condidates who retired after the dose of
nominations. Candlidates who withdrew befoce the dose
of nominations are notinduded,

The ballot draw to determine the crder of the names on
the baliot paper was hold at the olection office following
the dose of nominations using the VEC's computerbed
ballct draw application.

See Appendix 6 for the list of candidates in
ballct draw order,

Candidate statements and photos

In accordance with regulation 39 of the LG Regelatiors,
canchidates were able to wubmit a 200-word statement
and o recent photograph for indusion in the balot packs
$ent 10 voters. The deadiine for these items was 12 noon
on Tuesday 17 September 2024,

Se0 Appendix 6.1 for a breakdown of submitted
statoments and photos and 6.2 for sampia ballot material

Ararat Rural City

Ararst furdd Cry Councd

Candidate questionnaires

In accordance with regulation 41 of the LG Regulations,
candidates could also submit answers to a setof
prescribed quastions. The election manager accepted
questionnalres from 12 of the 12 candidates at

the electon.

Voters coudd read the completed questionnaines on
the VEC wabsite or access them by contacting the
wlection office

Retirement of a candidate

In accordance with the LG Regulations, at any time
after the dose of nominatiors and before election
day, a candidate may rotire, or be ratired by the

VEC, A candidate can only tetire if it will result in an
uncontested olection or if they are not qualified 10
be a Coundlior. If the VEC balives a candidate was
not entithed to nominate, it must formally query the
candidate’s qualification and Irwite written reasons why
they are entitied. # the VEC remains satisfied that the
candidate is not entitied, it must retire the candidate
from the election,

When a candidate & retired from an election, the VEC
Is required to take all practicable stops to remaove the
retired candidate’s name from ballot papers. f itis
not practicable to do so, during the counting of votes
the retired candidate’s votes are passed on to other
candidates according to voters’ praferences.

There were no candidate retirements at the Asarat Rural
City Council dlection,

WACIonan Siec ol Commission
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10. Voting

Ballot pack preparation and redirection

Artwork for ballot papers and candidate statemants

Is genarated using the VEC's automation tool. This tool
selects from a range of pre-defined artwoek templates
and populates thom with the rolevant candidate
information directly from the VECS dection management
systemn database

Following an extensive quality assurance process,
print-roady artwork files wero securoly trarsmitted
directly to the VEC's contracted ballot matorial printer
ready for production. The VEC's contracted maill house
directly peinted the voters’ addresses imafing and
ontidement addross) and barcodes on the ballot paper
enwvalopes in preparation for assembly and delivery

of ballot packs. The VEC utilsed multiple third party
providers to assemble the ballot packs prior to the
mall howse lodging with Australa Post. The mad house
allocated a secure aroa within its oparations that was
used solely for the printing, irser tion, and dispatch

of ballot material, This ensured the highest standards
of security were met,

Flectors could apply to have their ballot material
redirectod to an address other than their ontifermont
address. Voters had until the certificstion day for

the voters’ roll {also the day that nominatiors opeon)

10 spply for their ballot material 10 be redirected.

The VEC arranged for ballot material 1o be delivered to
any voter applying for redirection to the address specified
in their request. For the 2024 local government slections,
voters had until Monday 9 September 2024 to submit
redirection roquests.

The election manager received 2 requests for redirection
of ballot packs for the election,

Early votes

Voters could request an early postal ballot envelope
(earty vote) before the general mail out of ballot

packs. The election manager processed requests and
Issued oatly votes whero the request was mssessed 93
remonable. Requests for early votes could be processed
from Wednesday 18 September 2024, the day after
nominations closed, until the start of the genaral mad cut
of ballot packs on Monday 7 October 2024,

Duae to the timing of early votes, some early votars
may not have had access to the candidate statements,
PhHotographs of Guestionnaines.

The election manager Issued a total of 10 sarly votes for
the election.

VK Iean thectanal Comm ison

Ararat Rural City

Mail-out of ballot packs

The VECmailed 8,231 ballot packs between
Monday 7 and Thursday 10 October 2024,

Soo Appendix 7 for a breakdown of the padks sent on
sach day of the general mail cut The VEC did not mail
ballot packs to voters who passed away betweon the
dose of roll and generation of the mail-out file.

This included 2 ballot packs which were recirected to
altermative addresies for voters who had applied to
redirect their ballot pack by Monday 9 September 2024,

In accordence with regulation 49(3) of the LG Rogulations,
no more than 35% of ballot packs were mailed o¢
delivered to voters on any one dey during the mall-out
period, All ballot packs wese lodged with Australia Post
under the priceity paid delivery timetable.

The VEC hatsed dosely with Australa Post during the
mall-out period to confirm that ballot packs had been
delivered to voters. Australla Post confirmed all ballot
packs had been delivered by Tuesday 15 October 2024,

During the voting period, 189 ballot packs were returned
10 the slection office by Australia Post as retum 10-sende
mall. in most cases, this was likely due 1o the addressee
no longes residing at the address,

Unenrolled votes

The election manager sued unervoled votes 1o pecple
whose names could not be found on the voters’ roll

bt said thay were entided 1o vote at the election,

The unenrolled ballot pack induded a dedaration for
the voter to sign. The alection manager assessed the
dedaration and docided to admit or dsafiow the vote.

The election manager ssued 2 unencolled votes
and following relevant checks, none were admitted
10 the count.

Replacement ballot packs

Following the general mail out of ballot packs, a votor
who claimed that their ballot pack had not boen received,
o had been lost, spailt, or destroyed, could apply for

o replacement vote by completing an online application
form or comacting the public enguiry service.

A contralised twam processed applications and maded
replacoment ballot packs to the postal address provided.
\Voters also had the option to attend the election office
in the coundil for which they hold entitiesnent, to have

# replacomant vote tssued ovwer the counte:

272 replacomant ballot packs during the voting pericd
wore issued. Ploase refer to Schedule 1 for further
Information on replacemeont ballot packs lssued.

1"
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11. Return of ballot paper
envelopes

VEC provided votars with a prionty reply pald envelope
to return thekr completed ballot paper and ballot paper
etwvelope. The return mail was delivered to the election
office from local postal Eacilities or mail datribution
contres, Voters could also put ther ballot papers and
envelope in a ballor bax at the election office,

As ballot paper enwelopes were retumed, they were
progressively checked by the slection manager to eraure
they had been signed by the voter. Additionally, processes
wore in place to ensure that only one returned ballot
papec from aevy one vote could proceed 10 the extraction
and count.

The election manager received a total of 6,315 returned
ballct paper envelopes by the cdose of voting at 6 pan on
Friday 25 October 2024,

In accordance with regulation 57(3) of the LG Regulations,
the dection manager could accept returned ballot paper
envelopes until 12 noon on the Friday following the
close of voting, if they thought the voter had signed

the sewelope before voting dosed.

The slaction manager acceptod 820 ballot paper
envelopes during the extended postel vote recelpt
period

The total retumed ballot paper enwelopes for Ararat Ruml
City Coundll was 7,135,

The election manager sat aside 155 returned ballot paper
emvelopes that were not admitted to the extraction and
counting process due 1o the voter not having signed

the declaration ervelopa oo, In the case of unenrolled
declaeation votes, an entitoment was not found for the
person, o the declaration erwelopa was not returned
with the vote.

Refor to Schedule 1 for the total cortified record of
ballct papers and dedaration envelopes for Ararat Rural
City Coundl.
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12. Results

Extraction

The axtraction process involved separating the dedaration
flaps containing voters’ details from each admitted ballot
paper ermvelope, and then extracting the badlot papers
from the ervelopes. This 2.5tage process maintaing
anceryreity and ansuras the VEC can wack the number of
enveopes for engoing recondlason.

A total of 6,980 bafiot paper envelopes were admetted to
the extraction process.

Ballot papers wera extractad at the election office from
Tuesday 29 October 2004, The extraction of all admitted
balict paper envelopes was complated on Waednesday
6 Noveenber 2024, following the dose of the extended
postal voto receipt period.

If the VEC found any returned ballot paper envalopes that
did not comtain a ballot paper, contained more than one
ballot paper, or did not contain the correct ballot paper,
thase were requined 1o be rajected and not counted. Thare
were 20 returmed balot paper ervelopes rejected during
the extraction activity,

Following the axtraction of ballot papers from the balot

paper ermvolopes, & total of 6,960 ballot papers proceedod
to the count.

Computer count

A computer countinformation session sxplaining the
process was recorded and asvadable for online streaming
from the VEC wabsite from Friday 18 October 2024,

Following the axtraction of ballot papers admitted

10 the count for Ararat Rural City Coundl preferences on
baliot papers wese data entered into the VECS compxter
counting application at the election office. The application
disuibutes preferences using the propertional
reprasentation method once data entry of ballot paper
praferences & complete. Renults were calculatod at

the election office on Thursday 7 November 2024,

The VEC published provisional results on its website & they
bacame avallable. Results were updated as finalsed once
dedaratiors had takon place.

For a breakdown of first proference results, refer to
Appendix 8.

Recounts
At any tma before a candidate is declared elocted,

the election manager or a candidate may initiate
2 recount. Bection managers Inftiate recounts if margins

VK Iean thectanal Comm ison

Ararat Rural City

in 2 preference distribution are dose or critical. Candidates
mast ask for 2 recownt inwriting, with the reasors for
theit request. The dection manige and head office stall
assess candidate recount requests and sither accept or
dery them,

The slection manager received one request for a recount
for Ararat Rural City Coundl. This request did not proceed
10 the recount process,

Sarutineers

Scrutinesrs halp deliver fair and transparent slections
by observing olection activities. Thay contribute

to slectoral iImagrity and heolp bulld public trust.
Scrutinedrs can observe ol activities irvolved in
ballot paper and envelope processing.

Candidates are not parmitied in election verwes

during extraction and counting activities and instesd
appoint scrutineers. Each candidate could appeint one
scarutineer per election official Involved in an activity.

To appoint scrutineers, candidates completod 2
hardcopy ‘Appointment and dedaration of scrutineer
form', which the candidate signed and submitted to the
election managér. AR scrutineees then had 10 tign the
form's formad declaration in fromt of an election offidal.
The dedaration meant the scrutingess committed 1o
eligibibty and |egal requiromants and the VECS conditicns
of entry.

A Scrutineer handbook wes made available to all
candidates and scrutineers with infoarmation on the role
and resporaibility of scrutineers during clection activities,
It indhuded overviews of the activities so that scrutineers
could undsrs tand what to expect during election actvitios
they may attend. Whan sarutineers attended election
venues they wore briefed on thelr responsib fities and the
procesies thay would witness. Scrutinesrs were instructed
whan and how thay could challenge activities whon ballot
paper formality was being decided and votes wire being
counted, Sarutineen weee allowed 1o notify election
managers if thay disagreed with the decision made by

an slection official on balot paper formality or whether
votes were countad for the selected candidate. Hection
managers reviewed the challonge and made a final
decsion on the baliot paper.

Declaration of results

In tho Service Man, the VEC committed to complete 2l
resuits dedarations by Friday 15 Novembee 2024.

Theresults of the 2024 Ararat Rural Qty Counal
general eloction were doclared at 3 pm on Friday

8 November 2024 a1 Steps of the Munidpal Offices,

59 Vincent Street, Aranat,

The VEC website was updated following the dedaration
toreflect the elected candidates.

"
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13. Election statistics

Participation

Participation ks measured by the number of voters marked
off the rofl as a porcentage of the total erwolment and
con vary froen turnout. The overall participation rate in
the Ararat Rural City Coundil election was 84 85%, which
is higher than the state average of 83.79% (excluding
Melbourne City Coundl) and lower than the 85.68% rate
atthe 2020 Ararat Rural Oty Councll general election.

Analysts of votor partiopation for the different enrolment
categories shows that participation is lower for voters
who are ervolied on the EC's list (84.67%) compared to
voters enrolled on the CEO's bt (94.67%).

Refer 1o Appendix 9 for furthae information
on par tidpation, Induding a beeakdown by
enrolmsent category.

Tumout

Voter trmout s measirad by the rumber of formal
and indoemal ballot papers counted in the election as a
percentage of voters on the votens” roll for the slection.

The overall votar turnout for the 2024 Ararat Rural City
Councd general election was B3 .54%. This is compared
to the state average tumout of 81.46% (axchuding
Mebourne City Coundl). The voter turnout ot the
2020 general elaction for the councl was 83 80%,

Informality

The overall nformal voting rate recorded at the
2024 Ararat Rural Cty Cound| general election was
4.78%, compared with the State average of 3.47%.

An informality rate of 410% was rocorded at the Ararat
Rural City Council general edection held in October 2020,

" WACIONan Llecnoral Comuession
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14. Complaints

Type of complaints

At local government elections, complaints genarally fall
into 2 broad categories:

1. Eloction Adminstration

Complaints about the conduct of the elaction and
SOrVICEs to voters,

2. Election participation and conduct

Complaints sbout candidates and other partidpants in
the election, at tienes alleging a breach of the LG Act or
local laws,

Most complaints at the 2024 local government elections
related to the second category, and often alleged
Inappropriste or flegal action by a person or group
assocated with the election,

Complaints process

Thée VEC have a streamlined complaints process
during elections, developed with local coundls and
onforcement agendaes. Complaints must be lodged In
writing, then processed at head office. For the 2024
local government eloctions, customars could provide
feedback and complaints online.

Complaints akeging a breach of the LG Actare
forwarded to the Local Government inspactorate.
Complaints refating to local laws are refecrad to council
Complaints about the VEC's services, or the bohaviour
or actions of VEC staff and election officlals, are the

responsbilty of the VEC

The VEC s committed 1o responding to each complaint
within 5 working days.

Complaints received

The VEC recetved 2 writton complaints relating to the
oloction for Ararat Rurad Oty Counil,

Plense see Appendix 10 for a description of complaims
recaived by the VEC.
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15. Post-election activities

Storage of election material

The VEC will keep all recceds from the slection safely
and secrotly in accordance with regulation 79 of the
LG Regulations,

Refund of nomination fees

Nomination fess were refended to eligible candidates on
Tuszdey 17 December 2024, Eligible candidates Include
those electad or who received at least 4% of the first
praference vote. Ary forfelted nomination fees were
remitted to the coundl on Tuesday 17 Decomber 2024,

Courts and tribunals

The Victorian Civil and Administrative Tribunal (VCAT)
1s responsible for hearing disputes on the validty of an
election under section 311 of the LG Act.

Applications for & review of the declsration of the
results of an election must be lodged within 14 days
of the dedaration and can be made by a candidate in
the slection, 10 persons who wre entitied to vots at
the slection, or the VEC.

There were no spplications to VCAT daputing the reselt
of tho Ararat Rural City Councl general election.

» WACIONan Llecnoral Comuession
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16. Non-voter follow up

In accordance with section 267 of the LG Act, the VEC has
commenced its compulsory voting enforcemsnt program.
Ary person who was required to vote at the election and
failed to vote will be Issued with an ‘Apparent falure to
vote’ notice in February/March. Apparent nonyoters
have 28 days to respond.

Pecple who do not respend 1o the notice, of do not
provide a satisfactory response, may be issuad withan
Infringement notice in Apnil/May that will incur a penaity.
Further follow-up with a penalty reminder notice in July
may also occur - this stage Includes the original penalty
and a penalty reminder notice fee. Penalties collacted

on behalf of council will be reimbursed at the end of

the infringement and reminder notice stages.

Additionally, during the infringement and penaity
remindsr notice stages, non-voters may ask for their
matter to procesd directly to the Magistrates’ Court.

These requests will be actioned at the conclusion of
the nfringement and penaity remindee notice stages.
The VEC will lodge the fille of any reemaining nonvoters
with Fines Victoria at the end of the penalty reminder
notice stage.

VK Iean thectanal Comm ison n
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17. Evaluating VEC services

Thae VEC Is committed to providing high quality election
services to its local government cents. Through a formal
feadback and debriefing program, the VEC can gauge its
performance and seck advice for future local government
election projects.

Feedback from councils

The VEC irwited faedback from councils on its
sorvices in Decomber 2024. Addtional feedback can
be provided to the LG2024 Program Manager by
emaling LG Program2024@vecyicgovau

Internal debriefing program

After evory slectoral event, the VEC conducts an

Internal debriefing program that inchedes input from

all areas of its workforce, Internal debriefing following
the local governmant elections began in Decomber 2024,
The VEC will publish a cornolidated report on its
performance and key statistics from the elections,

This will be tabled in Pacliament and avadabile on the
VEC wabsite,
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declaration envelopes

Ararat Rural City

Scthedale t Record of Baliot papers and dedanation snvelcpen

Ararat Rural City Council election

Ballot papers printed

Victorian Electoral Commission 10,001
Eloction manager 15
Total 10,016
Ballot papers Issued

General mal out 833
Early and replacoment votes 282
Uneeroied dedaration votes 2
Spoilt 0

Sub total 8,615
Unased 1,401
Total 10,016
General mall out admitted 10 the extraction 6,774
Early and replacemaent votes admitted to the extraction 206
Unecwolied dodarstion votes admitted 1o the axtraction 0
Returned declarations unable to be admitted 1o the extraction 155
Dedarations returned 10 sender 189
Sub total 1324
Dedarations not returned 1,29
Youl 8,615
Vitonan thectaral Comnbsion n
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Schedule 2:
Certification statement

In accordance with Regulation 77, | certify that Schedule 1
of this reporton the conduct of the 2024 Ararat Rural
City Coundl local govermment election is a true and
correct account of the number of ballot papers sued,
retumed and not used in this election and declaratiors
not retaned,

S#2

Sven Bluemmel
Electoral Commbsioner
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Appendix 1: Breakdown
of the voters’ roll

Ararat Rural City

Appendix 1 Breakdown of the votery' roll

Aramt Rural ity Councll Voters enrolled through Voters enrolled through Total voters envolled
election an entitlement under entitlements under
section 241 of the LG Act  sections 242-245 of
the LG Act
Ararat Rural City Counal 8181 150 8331
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Appendix 2:

Public notices

Schedule of public notices

Close of roll notice

VEC website/public notices 24 July 2024

Ti\o Ararat A&mh 26 m 2624

The Ararat Advertiser | The Stawell Times Nows 26 July 2024
Notice of election

VEC wabnite/public notices 12 August 2024
The Ararat Advocate 16 Auguit 2024
The Ararat Advertiser | The Stawell Times Nows 16 August 2024
Voting detalls notice

VEC website/public notices 20 September 2024
The Ararat Advocate 4 Octobar 2024
The Ararat Advertiser | Tha Stawell Times Nows 4 October 2024
Reminder notice

VEC website 13 October 2024
The Ararat Advocate 18 October 2024
The Ararat Advertiser | The Stawell Timaes News 18 October 2024
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Notke of result
VEC website/public notices 8 November 2024
The Ararat Advocate 22 November 2024
The Ararat Advertiser | The Stawell Times News 22 November 2024
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Appendix 2.1: Sample public notices
Close of roll

Sample Councll postal election
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Sample Councll postal election
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Reminder notice

Sample Councll postal election
My councl, my vote
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Declaration of results
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Appendix 3:

Schedule of media releases

and advisories

Arasat Rural City Councll council-specifk media releases and advisories

Encol nowfor the Aracat Rurad Gity Coundl edection Monday 29 luly 2024

Call fot candidates fov Ararat Rural City Cmd clection l'hundoy 22 August 2024
Ballot packs mailed for Ararat Rural ity Councll election Monday 7 October 2024

Voting (lounoon «; Aracat RBural Cty Cound| election

Tuesday 15 October 2024

New councillors for Ararat Rueal City Coundll Frickey 8 November 2024
Statewide media releases and advisories

Victorians urged to enrol for upcoming bocal council slections Monday 22 July 2024
M_oc-laodmory. 2024 local coundl elections btwf;\o Monday 22 July 2024
Last chance to ervol for Victorian counal elections Fridsy 2 August 2024

News alert: Enrolment closes tomeoeeow for October's council local electiors

Tuesday 6 August 204

Nominations open soon for Victorian local coundl elections Monday 26 August 2024
Maodia advisory: Accessing candidate information for the 2024 Victorian Friday & Septomber 2024
local councl slections

Nominations for the 2024 Victoran local council dlections now open Monday 9 Septembaer 2024
M45mﬂlonmolodfmbakmldoﬂom Tuesday 10 Septembar 2024

Time k running cut to nominate for this year's local coundl| elections

Monday IGSoptombU 2024

Electoral Commissionaer calls for transparancy in the use of Al in upcoming
local council elections

Tuesday 17 Septembar 2024

Madia advisory: Media attendance at local coundl slection ballot draw

Tuesday 17 September 2024

Naminations are in for October local counal elections

Wodnesday
18 September 2024

Democracy ambassadors help community volces ‘Be Heard"

Thursday 19 September 2024

VEC retires 16 local council election candida tes

Vating starts next week for Victoria's local coundl eections

Monday 30 Septeember 2024
Fricay 4 October 2024

VK Iean thectanal Comm ison
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Appendix 3 Schedule of media rebeanes snd ach Asarat sl CRy Councd
Statewide media releases and advisories

Police imvastigate break.in at the Ballarat election office Thurscay 10 October 2024
Voters wged to request a replacement ballot pack following van theft Friday 18 October 2024

Local cound] elections voting deadling looms

Manday 21 October 2024

Voters urged to request a replacement ballot pack following theft Thuesday 24 October 2024
Fird day of voting Friday 35 October 2024
Media advisory: Results timelines for Victorian kocal coundil elecsions Friday 25 October 2024
Madia advisory: Media attendance at results declarations Wodnesday

6 November 2024
Suspacted postal vote tampering in 2 local cound elections referred for inquiry Wednerday

13 Novembar 2024
Didn't vote in the 2024 local councll elections? Monday 17 February 202%
Non-voters asked to explain why they didn't vote in the 2024 local counal dlectiors Friday 7 March 2025
Infringements sent to 2024 local coundl election non voters Scheduled for

Monday 14 Apeil 2025
Act on penalty reminder notice or risk enforcement action Schaduled for

Thuesday 1 July 2025
n WACIONan Llecnoral Comuession
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Appendix 4:
VoterAlert advisories

Appendix 4.1: SMS alerts

Close of roll - sent from Wednesday 17 July to
Wednesday 31 July 2024

VotarAlert: Vic councll elactions wil
be held by post this Oct. Make sure
Your details are cormect before 4pm
Ved 7 Aug. Mote info Ditoy.
YOG RorauG24 if you'd rather
not open Bnks in this message, ook
o the VEC webale or call 131 832
to check. Unsubscribe Hitsos If
VLS DY aulveter o

need 1o vate. More infe: Pos )/
VECYS 00 AN 24 If you'd rather
not wisit inks in this message, look
P the VEC website or call 131 632,
Unsubscribe: hitos /Ivec vic ool
voraent

Mall-out of ballot packs - sent from Monday 7 October
to Monday 14 October 2024

VotarAlert: ballot packs for the ocal
councll elections are on ther way,
wriving by 15 Oct, Comglete and
roturn befcee Gom on Fri 25 Oct.
For more info visit o

VEC website or call 11 532
Unsubscribe: Mipavoc vicsocaw
votetalen)

VK Iean thectanal Comm ison

Ararat Rural City

Reminder close of voting - sent from Tuesday
22 October to Wednesday 23 October 2024

VoterAlert: roturn your counsil
election baliot pack by Bpm Fri Oct
25. ¥ your baflot pack hasn't

VISt Iinks in this message, ook up
the VEC website or call 131 832
Unsubscribe: hiips ives v gov.md
yoler aen

»n
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Appendix & Vosetlert advhiorien Ararst furdd Cry Councd

Appendix 4.2: Emall alerts Uncontested election emall
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Ballot pack mall.out emadl
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Appendix 5: Voter

335 Program and nitiatives Ararst furdd Cry Councd

engagement program

and initiatives

Program Program detalls

Be Hoard Democracy Ambaisador This program provics free peeeled electornal education and kformation

program sessions 1o those underrepresentad In the electoral process, This inchudes
poople with disabikty and their carers, cutturally and Inguistically diverse
(CALD) communities, people experiendng homelesiness and young people.
A total of 238 sessions were provided across the state roaching over
10,000 participants,

Spodo‘ Im mobc' "b wolmo. m n\u program dol\ond poar-lod omolmm' Imee $0sshons In prisons, homlns

services, schook and tertiary education settings to reach young people and
Aboriginal community settings across Malbourne and ragional Victoria.

CALD In-langusage sodal media videos

This project produced a seres of videos In 11 differant languages Including
Auslan. Languages were choten to reach language grougs most in need of
additional support. The videos provided alectoral infoemation on how to envol,
how to vote by post, and how to respond to an Apparent Failure 1o Vote Notice,
These ware widely distributed and shared theough the VEC's social media
platforms, community networks, and partner organisations.,

Active Otizership program

Electoral and dvics education workshops were delivered to CALD me
leaders in 2 locations across regional Victonia.

Abotiginal engagement

This program delvered information and engagemaent sessions across the
greater Mabourmne area and reglonal Victoris, These were designed 1o raise
awareness that voting was compulisary and taking place via post. Culturally
appropriate resources were produced to provide information on how to
respond to an Appatent Fallure to Vota Notice, Induding a video which

was distributed and shared through the VEC's soclal modia platforms and
partner organisations.

Easy English guide

This was produced for people with low English profidency and designed as
0 -1e0d peoduct whixe a person supports the reader. These were distributed
by Democracy Ambassadors as a key resource, and also svaidable for download
from the VEC's website.

WACIonan Siec ol Commission
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Ararat Rural Oy Courcct Apperdi & Fimal it of candidates In balat paper order

Appendix 6:
Final list of candidates
in ballot paper order

The candidates, in ballot paper order, were as follows:

Araeat Rural City Councll election

ARMSTRONG, Rob

PRESTON, Luke Matthew

SCHERGER, Daryl

MEAD, Amanda

SANDERS, Bob

KOKCU, Osmnan

WATERSTON, Bill

KAUR, Toll

JOYCE, Pater

ARMSTRONG, jo

Appendix 6.1: Candidate statements

and photographs

Aramt Rural Oty Courcll  Total number of candidates Number of candidates Number of candidates

aloction at cdose of nominations that lodged a candidate that lodged a candidate
statoment photograph

Ararat Rural City Council 12 2 12

VK Iean thectanal Comm ison »
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Appencix & Final Int of candiclten in ballct papec order Ararst furad Cry Councd

Appendix 6.2: Sample ballot material

Outer envelope

==
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Wture Cgm wo Sk 7 Ot Lavgee Bucmey Omow
e b e 4t L a0y s S Tevpss Wod
S e,

Ballot paper envelope

Ballot paper  Hewwws

L Geagasyre bt pges
envelope g N

B N T

Lt e Le i L e R
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:) r 7 i, The et et S S et et

R e e )

“a . & P R S g -
-l
= 0) R oo

= S

» WACIONan Llecnoral Comuession

10606




29 APRIL 2025 ﬁ
COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES N

Ararat Rural City

Ararat Rural Oy Courcct Apperdi & Fimal it of candidates in balat paper order
Candidate leaflet How to vote multi-language leaflet
¥ applicable

_ —

Voting doses H

So ey Candidate

25 October 2024 leaflet How to vote
e leaflet

e e Sampie Coundil

Sammsmemmes | | sl

VIN IR O DT YV W 04 Sy —

L RV o

Adown o |

Adoes e

AdSwa wa )

L e

L T R Bt B M

Voting Is compulsory

e e e e - m

ey kv L

e —ar mmnu—n-h*

T e 113

vp.—.-.:::nu( cu—.o.-:.-:.

-:":- :.--.-.-— B e

3 Qe L a0 Natg e #e hd ke o
e ahtann s nu.-—-:n’cum

==r e~

— S 3=
Ballot paper

e —

Sampte Cowmch

e v

P -

=ml~‘-0=~

| CANDOATE, e

| CANDOATE N

| CANOORTE N
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Appencix & Final Int of candiclten in ballct papec order Ararst furdd Cry Councd

Appendix 6.3: Sample uncontested ward leaflet

Sample Coundl sbettion 2024
Sarmple Ward

W e

B Masage W
[ -
o e o (0 T B

40 WACIONan Llecnoral Comuession
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Ararat Rural Oy Courcct Appendix 7. Datly braak down of the general mad out

Appendix 7:
Daily breakdown of the
general mail out

Ararat Rural ity 7 October 2024  $October 2024 9 October 2024 10 October 2024 Total general

Council election mall out

Ararat Rural 2833 2832 1333 1332 8331

City Counall

VK Iean thectanal Comm ison &
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Appanciix B: Rk (ré Aok Byrad CRy Qotes

Appendix 8:
Result information

Ararat Rural Oty Council count summary

Envolment 8331
Formal votes 6,627

informal votes 333 (478% of the total votes)

Voter turnout 6,960 (83 54% of the total ervoiment)

E;udm (in ballot ;;; ;M First preforence votes Porcantage
ARMSTRONG, Rob 24 518%
BEALES, Pater 180 272%
TIPPING, Fiona 134 200%
PRESTON, Luke Matthew ) 10.00%
SCHERGER, Daryl 286 a37%
MEAD, Amands a97 750%
SANDERS, Bob ™ 1038%
KOKCV, Osman 28 289%
WATERSTON, il a86 733%
KAUR, Toll 743 1n21%
JOYCE, Poter 592 893%
ARMSTRONG, Jo 1757 2651%
Succasstul candidates

ARMSTRONG, Jo (¥t elected)

SANDERS, Bob (2nd elected)

KAUR, Tell Gird electad)

JOYCE, Patar {4th olected)

PRESTON, Luke Matthew (Sth olocted)

WATERSTON, 818 (5th elected)

ARMSTRONG, Rob (7th slected)

4 WACIonan Siec ol Commission
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Araryt Rural Crty Courst Appendix ¥ Dectionp P

Appendix 9: Election
participation statistics

Participation is measurad by the number of marks on the roll s a percentage of total enrolment and can vary from
turnowt (total ballot papers counted as & percentage of total enrolment).

Araat Rural Oty Courl] election participation 2020 2024 Statewide LG
2024 - excluding
Meolboume
City Coundll
18.19 85.91% 8393% B6.64%
2024 76.23% 71559% B80.02%
5-29 T2.55% 5% T409%
30-34 7BE5IN 7063% 733M%
3539 20.68% 2.17% 76.18%
40-44 80.58% 77.19% 78995
45-49 83.28% B1.68% 81L92%
5‘6-54 8744% 85.47% B4 69%
5555 89.49% 89.94% B7.46%
60-64 91.59% 90.24% B89.16%
65-69 93.69% 9246% 9047%
704 BIBT% 91.30% 88 77%
Voters enrolled through 8745% BAETS BE2T%
section 241 of the LG Act
\)otm enrolled through 66.40% 94 67% 6096%
sections 243-245 of the
LG Act
Total voters envolled 85.68% 84.5%% B4 2%
Vran Ehectaral Comm bsion &
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Appenciix 10 Complainty Ararst furdd Cry Councd

Appendix 10: Complaints

Written complaints received by the VEC

Whae an outcome & a follow-up responsae, the customer
may have replied to the VEC's response and the VEC has
theredore replied 10 that follow.up email

Whace an outcome has no action taken, this could be an
anceymous submisson that doesn't contain feedback
and therefore can't be passed on to another team.

Date Nature of complaint Action taken by the VEC

Tuesday 22 October 2024 VEC Complalm - VEC comms othwes Response provided
channels; Postal voting process

Wodnesday 23 October 2024 VEC Complaint - Voting centre Response provided
procedures; Postal voting process

az WACIonan Siec ol Commission

10612




29 APRIL 2025 -@
COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES N

Ararat Rural City

10613




29 APRIL 2025 -@
COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES N

Ararat Rural City

10614




29 APRIL 2025 ﬁ
COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES N

Ararat Rural City

© State of Victoria
(Victorian Electoral Commission)
Aprd 2025

Thi work, the 2024 Local
government electiony

Azarat Rural City Coundl
Election report, is licersed
under a Creative Commons
Artribution 4.0 lcence [httpoy
aeatvecommons. org/licerses/
by4.0/). You are free to share
this work under that icence,

on the condition that you do
not change any content and
you credit the State of Victeda
(Victorian Electoral Commission)
as author and comply with the
other licence terms. The licence
does not apply 1o any branding,
induding Government logos.

Level 11,570 Collns Straet
Melbourne Victoria 3000
Ti1832

Info@vecvic gov.au
vecvicgov.au
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4.3 ARARAT RURAL CITY COUNCIL 2025-26 BUDGET, REVENUE AND RATING PLAN 2025-29,
AND FINANCIAL PLAN 2025-35 UPDATE

RESPONSIBLE OFFICER: CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

DEPARTMENT: CEO’S OFFICE
REFERENCE: 20636

OFFICER DIRECT OR INDIRECT CONFLICT OF INTEREST:
Officers providing advice to Council must disclose any conflict of interest.

No person involved in the preparation of this report has a conflict of interest requiring disclosure.

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

The Draft 2025/2026 Budget, Rating & Revenue Plan 2025-29 and the Financial Plan 2025-35 have been
prepared and released for community consultation and engagement on 11 April 2025 in line with the
requirements of Sections 91, 93, 94 and 96 of the Local Government Act 2020. Community engagement
sessions have been organised in eight locations throughout the municipality, and submission of
feedback on these documents are open until 9 May 2025.

DISCUSSION

Council officers have developed the Draft 2025/2026 Budget, Rating & Revenue Plan 2025-29 and the
Financial Plan 2025-35 based on the Key Financial Drivers adopted by Council at the July 2022 Council
Meeting.

These Key Drivers are:

Rating
Maintenance of the “pie model” to provide some form of long-term rating equity and reduce
rate shock across rating sectors based on annual valuation fluctuations.

Debt
Debt is only used to fund strategic infrastructure outcomes with an emphasis on
intergenerational equity

Asset Preservation
Maintain the asset renewal and upgrade ratio to at least 110% of depreciation

Surplus budgets
Maintain cash and operating surpluses in each financial year

Managing expenditure
Managing expenditure is a key driver of financial sustainability at Ararat Rural City Council

Rate rises
Rate rises will be kept to a minimum based on seeking organisational efficiency. These
efficiencies will be returned to the ratepayer as a dividend through lower rate rises or rate cuts.

Service standards
Expenditure savings and ratepayer dividends will not come at the price of lower service
standards.

10617



29 APRIL 2025 @
COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES

Ararat Rural City

The development of the 2025/2026 Budget is proceeding in accordance with the timeframe adopted
at the January 2025 Council Meeting, summarized in the table below:

Activity Timeframe

Budget development by Council December 2024 - April 2025
Public release of Draft Budget 11 April 2025

Closure of public submissions 09 May 2025

Consider any matters or submissions, as required, at the May 27 May 2025

2025 Council Meeting

Adopt 2025/2026 Budget 24 June 2025

KEY CONSIDERATIONS

Alignment to Council Plan Strategic Objectives

Council's Budget is a key strategic document that resources delivery of the upcoming Council Plan 2025-
29. In particular the Budget 2025/2026 relates to the following:

6. Strong and Effective Governance We will work hard to build models of governance that place
delivering public value at the centre through effective financial management; well measured risk
management; and implementation of effective community engagement practices.

6.1 Deliver responsible budget outcomes, linked to strategy, that deliver value, innovation and
rating fairness.

Budget Implications
As this item relates to the 2025/2026 Budget it has no direct or significant budget implications for the
2024/2025 Budget.

Policy/Relevant Law

Sections 94 and 96 of the Local Government Act 2020 (LGA 2020) requires that Council prepare and
adopt a budget for each financial year and the subsequent three financial years by 30 June each year.
Section 96 requires that Council undertake community engagement around its budget in a form that is
consistent with its Community Engagement Policy.

Sections 91 and 93 of the LGA2020 requires Council to prepare and adopt a Financial Plan for a period
of 10 financial years and a Rating & Revenue Plan for a period of 4 financial years.

Sustainability Implications

The draft documents have been prepared with a focus on financial sustainability of Council whilst
maintaining service standards, including in the areas of waste and environmental management in line
with the Draft Council Plan 2025-29: 3 Preserving Our Environment.

Risk Assessment

The development and release of the Community Vision 2035 and the Draft Council Plan 2025-29 has
occurred alongside the development of the 2025/2026 Budget, Rating & Revenue Plan 2025-29 and the
Financial Plan 2025-35 to ensure these documents are aligned.

Stakeholder Collaboration and Community Engagement

Sections 91 and 96 of the Local Government Act 2020 requires that Council undertake community
engagement around its Financial Plan and Budget in a form that is consistent with its Community
Engagement Policy. Community consultation is not required for the Revenue and Rating Plan 2025-29
but this draft Plan is also available during the community consultations period for the budget.
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Council will use several mechanisms of engagement during the community consultation period,
including:

e use of the Engage Ararat website

e distribution of plain language budget summaries across the municipality

e face to face community engagement sessions

e social media posts to encourage community engagement

e summaries be placed in local newspapers

e mainstream media engagement around major 2025/2026 Budget initiatives

The process is designed to ensure maximum engagement with key geographic locations and
communities of interest across the municipality. Residents and ratepayers will be encouraged to
engage with the budget process and to make submission on matters of interest or concern.

Engagement Activity Timeframe

Posting of Council's 2025/2026 Draft Budget on Engage Ararat | By 5:00pm on Friday 11 April
2025

Development of a one-page summary of key budget Friday 11 April 2025

deliverables - available at a number of sites across the
municipality

Ararat Community Engagement Session, Tuesday 29 April 2025, 11am
Ararat Town Hall, Corner Vincent and Barkly Streets

Buangor Community Engagement Session Wednesday 30 April 2025, 2pm
Buangor Community Sports Centre Pavilion, 196 Coach Rd

Elmhurst Community Engagement Session Tuesday 29 April 2025, 2pm
Mechanics Institute, High Street

Lake Bolac Community Engagement Session Thursday 1 May 2025, 7pm

Lake Bolac Complex Road (next to the swimming pool,
entrance from Montgomery St)

Moyston Community Engagement Session Thursday 1 May 2025, 11.30am
Moyston Community Hall, 12 Brooke St
Pomonal Community Engagement Session Thursday 1 May 2025, 3pm
Pomonal Community Hall, 3360 Ararat-Halls Gap Rd
Tatyoon Community Engagement Session Wednesday 30 April 2025, 7pm
Tatyoon Hall, 2728 Tatyoon Rd
Willaura Community Engagement Session Thursday 1 May 2025, 5.30pm
Willaura Memorial Hall
Drop-in Sessions Friday 2 May 2025, between 9am
Ararat Rural City Council offices, 59 Vincent St and 2pm
Promotion of key budget elements across mainstream and Ongoing during the budget
social media consultation period
RECOMMENDATION
That:

1. Council receive this report and the Draft Budget 2025/2026, Rating & Revenue Plan 2025-29 and
the Financial Plan 2025-35 that was released for community consultation on 11 April 2025.
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MOVED CR R ARMSTRONG
SECONDED CR PRESTON

That:

1.  Council receive this report and the Draft Budget 2025/2026, Rating & Revenue Plan 2025-
29 and the Financial Plan 2025-35 that was released for community consultation on 11 April
2025.

Cr R Armstrong and Cr Preston spoke for the motion

CARRIED 7/0
5130/25

ATTACHMENTS
The Draft 2025/26 Budget Snapshot, Draft 2025/26 Budget, Draft Rating & Revenue Plan 2025-29 and
the Draft Financial Plan 2025-35 are provided as Attachment 4.3
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$1.49M FOR
ARARAT

PONY
CLUB

Supported by

the Australian
Government’s Play Our
Way Grants Program,
this significant upgrade
will deliver a state-of-
the-art, covered equine
arena complete with
lighting to provide an
all-weather riding space
to stimulate increased
particapation in sports
and offer greater
opportunities for
physical activity all year
round.

$399K ON
BICYCLE

NETWORK
UPGRADE

Driven by Council's
Ararat on the Move
strategy, a $399K
upgrade - including

a $133K Counail
contribution - will
significantly expand
the Ararat Active
Transport Bicycle
Network, improving
connectivity to key CBD
locations like the train
station, Barkly Street,
schools, workplaces,
community groups, and
recreational faalities.

<&

Ararat Rural City

$1M FOR
BUANGOR-
BEN NEVIS
ROAD

This essential link
between the Pyrenees
and Western Highways,
which services freight,
residents, and tounsts,
will receive a further
$1M reconstruction

in addition to the
previously pledged
$2.143M. The major
route will undergo
renewal works to
reduce heavy vehicle
traffic through Ararat,
alleviating the impact
on local roads and
improving transport
efficiency.

MESSAGE FROM OUR MAYOR
CR JO ARMSTRONG

Council are pleased to present the Draft Budget for the upcoming financial
year, which clearly signifies cur ongoing commitment to enhancing
the services and infrastructure which matter most to our community
With over $12 million earmarked for capital works, this figure includes
$1.8 milion for the continuation of rural gravel road renewal through
re-shooting and innovative sealing treatments, and $750,000 towards
Year 4 of Council’s five-year urban drainage system upgrade plan.
There is $200,000 assigned to Council’s various grants programs for
our community groups and businesses, and almost $1.5 million secured
in grant funding for 3 wonderful new arena at the Ararat Pony Club.

Council have alio pledged co-contributions on top of secured funding
for major projects such as the Pomonal Hall Community Battery Project, the Woorndoo-Streatham
Road reconstruction project, the Ararat Active Transport Bicycle Network upgrade, and more.

We welkcome the community’s invaluable input in shaping these initiatives, and look forward to delivering
some very exciting projects over the next 12 months.
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S148K FOR
POMONAL HALL

POWER
UPGRADE

Supported by the
State Government's
100 Neighbourhood
Batteries Grants
Program, Pomonal's
Community Hall will
receive a battery
storage and solar PV
integration upgrade
that will future-proof
the Hall as an energy
resilient hub for
residents of Pomonal
and surrounding areas
to access in the event
of an extended gnd
outage.

4

$60K FOR
BUANGOR
COBB & CO
REPAIRS

This funding has been
secured to carry out
essential repair works
to this state heritage-
listed site. it will support
the replacement of
damaged guttenng
downpipes, and roofing
to prevent future water
damage from extreme
weather, prioritising the
site’s cultural hentage,
improving flood risk
management, and
supporting community
resilience and heritage
appreciation.

<&
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$683K FOR
WOORNDOO-

STREATHAM
ROAD

These funds have

been allocated to

the upgrade of
Woorndoo-Streatham
Road, delivered in
partnership with
Moyne Shire Council,
and supported by the
Federal Government’s
Roads to Recovery
Grants Program. This
key section of rural
road plays a central
role in fadlitating heavy
vehicle transport and
supporting our region’s
agricultural sector.

OTHER 2025/2026 BUDGET HIGHLIGHTS:

» $500,000 contribution to an ongoing partnership commitment to Ararat Housing Enterprise P/L
* $100,000 for young peopla’s programs across schools, largely through the Crazy Ideas College
» $100,000 for Community Support Grants
o $100,000 for the successful business Fagade Improvement and Kick Start Grants Programs

* $100,000 towards planning for a new indoor sports facility and an upgrade to Ararat outdoor pool

$100,000 of grant funding secured for a new dog park in Ararat

$1,800,000 for renewing rural gravel roads through re-sheeting or sealing treatments such as OTTA Seal
$750,000 to fund Year 4 of Council's five-year commitment to improve urban drainage systems

$400,000 to upgrade footpath network

$312,232 secured in grant funding for pedestrian safety upgrades in the Ararat CBD

$300,000 to renew kerb and channel assets

Continuing funding for free access to cutdoor pools

Continuing delivery of the $6.25 million Mount William Road reconstruction major Infrastructure initiative

10623



29 APRIL 2025 -@
COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES N

Ararat Rural City

Ararat Rural City Council encourages community members to
have their say on the 2025/2026 Council Draft Budget, as part of
its ongoing commitment to community consultation.

Remember that your rates fund the Budget, and Council's job is to work hard to serve you by doing what is
best for the community we live in.

The full 202572026 Draft Budget is available on the Engage Ararat websitee www.engage ararat.vic.au
Residents can also make submissions by writing to Ararat Rural City Coundl — PO Box 246, Ararat, VIC, 3377
- or by emailing engage@ararat.vic. gov.au. Submissions are open until Friday 9 May 2025 at Spm.

Councll encourages residents to attend one of the upcoming Draft Budget Community Engagement
Sessions, to learn more about the Draft Budget and understand how it impacts your district. You'll have the
opportunity to ask questions and get answers directly from your Councillors, and share your peiorities for
our community.

Can't make it to a session? We're also hosting individual drop-in sessions on Friday 2 May 2025 at the
Ararat Rural City Council offices, 59 Vincent St, Ararat between $am and 2pm.

Draft Budget Community Engagement Sessions will be held at the following venues:

Location Verne Address Date a0d Time

Ararat Ararat Town Malk Comer of Vincent 5t and Barkly St, Ararat Tusaday 29 April 2025, 11am
Buangor Buangor Community Sports Centre Pavillon 19% Coach Rd, Buangor | Waednaesday 30 Apnl 2035, 2pm
Eimburst Mechanics Institute: Migh Street, Eimburst Tuesday 29 Apeil 2025, 2pm
Tl [
Moyston Moyston Comemurity Halt 12 Beocke S, Moyston Thursday 1 May 2025, 11.30am
Pomoral Pomonal Cornmunity Hall 3340 Ararat-Mals Gap Rd, Pomonal Thursday 1 May 2025, 3pm
Tatyoon Tatyoon Halt 2726 Tatyoon Rd, Tatyocn Wednesday 30 Apni 2035, Tpen
Wilzura Wilura Memorial Malt $3 Main 5t, Wiiaura Thursday 1 May 2025, 5.30pm

Ararat Rural City
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Traditional Acknowledgement

Ararat Rural City Council acknowledges the
Traditional Owners of the land on which we
live and work, the Eastern Maar, Wotjobaluk,
Jaadwa, Jadawadijali, Wergaia, Jupagulk,
and Wadawurrung peoples, and recognise
their connection to the land and waterways.

We pay our respects to their Elders past,
present and emerging, and to all Aboriginal
and Torres Strait Islander people.
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Executive Summary

Council’s 2025/26 Draft Budget represents a continuation of Council’s fiscally responsible approach
that has been in place over the past seven budget cycles, The headiines of the 2025/26 Budget
continue to revolve around returning an efficiency dividend to the community through a minimal rate
rise and an ongoing dedication to renewing the community’s assets through a $12,437,000 investment
in capital works.

Council will ensure strong financial management, high-quality services, and on-time completion of
projects through focusing on service delivery and capstal works programs, and on in-house service
provision.

Counxil’s commitment to ensuring financial sustainability of the municipality & illustrated through
delivering a budget result that projects a comprehensive operating surplus of 52,050,000, an
underlying operating surplus of $560,000 and a net cash increase of $588,000 for 2025/26.

Key things we are funding

The 2025/26 Budget reflects Council’s continued commitment to support service delivery, £conomic

development and responsible delivery of community and transport infrastructure during a period of
volatile markets in the construction sector,

Highlights and new initiatives for 2025/26

$1,490,000 secured in grant funding for a new covered sports arena for the Ararat Pony Club
$683,000 contribution towards the Woormdoo-Streatham Road reconstruction project
$500,000 contribution to an ongoing partnership commitment to Ararat Housing Enterprise P/L
$148,760 Pomonal Community Hall Battery Project, supported by the 100 Neighbourhood
Batteries grants program

$133,000 Council contribution towards a $399,000 upgrade of the Ararat Active Transport
Bicycle Network

$100,000 for young people’s programs across schools, largely through the Crazy ideas College
$100,000 for Community Suppoet Grants

$100,000 for the successful business Fagade improvement and Kick Start Grants Programs
$100,000 towards planning for a new indoor sports facility and the outdoor pool upgrade
$100,000 of grant funding secured for a new dog park in Ararat

$60,000 secured for repair works to the former Cobb & Co Staging Stables in Buangor
$1,000,000 to reconstruct a section of Buangor = Ben Nevis Road, on top of the 52,143,000
previous reconstruction works on this road

$1,800,000 renewing rural gravel roads through resheeting or sealing treatments such as OTTA
Sesl

$750,000 to fund Year 4 of Council’s five-year commitment to improve urban drainage systems
$400,000 to upgrade footpath network

$312,232 secured in grant funding for pedestrian safety upgrades in the Ararat CBD
$300,000 to renew kerb and channel assets

Continuing to fund free access to Outdoor Pools

Continuing the delivery of the $6.25 million Mount Wiliam Road reconstruction major
infrastructure initistive

‘l""
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Key Budget Influences

a) Ararat Rural City Council’s 2025/26 Budget has a 1.5 percent rate rise, which is half the rate cap
for 2025/26 of 3 percent and the first net increase in seven years.

By contrast, had Coundl increased rates to the level allowable under the State Government’s Fair
Go Rates System over the eight-year period including 2025/26, this would have increased the
total burden to ratepayers by 19.25% during that same period.

FGRS increase

ARCC Rate increase

2019/2020 2.50% 250%
2020/2021 ~1.00% 2.00%
2021/2022 -1.50% 1.50%
2022/2023 0.00% 1.75%
2023/2024 0.00% 3.50%
2024/2025 0.00% 275%
2025/2026 1.50% 3.00%

TOTAL 1.50% 19.25%

b) In July 2022, Council adopted key drivers of financlal sustainability, which form the basis for
developing the 2025/26 Budget. These drivers of financial sustainability are:

Rating
Maintenance of the “pie model” to provide some form of long-term rating equity and reduce rate
shock across rating sectors based on annual valuation fluctuations,

Debt
Debt s only used to fund strategic infrastructure outcomes with an emphasis on
intergenerational equity.

Asset Preservation
Maintain the asset renewal and upgrade ratio to at least 110% of depreciation.

Surplus Budgets
Maintain cash and operating surpluses In each finandal year.

Managing Expenditure
Managing expenditure is a key driver of financial sustainabiity at Ararat Rural City Coundil,

Rate Rises
Rate rises will be kept to a minimum based on seeking organisational efficiency. These efficiencies
will be returned to the ratepayer as a dividend through lower rate rises or rate cuts,

Service Standards
Expenditure savings and ratepayer dividends will not come at the price of lower service
standards.,

,ll*n(-
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Key Statistics
otal Revenue $36.186 $34.430
Total Expenditure $28.023 $32.380
$8.163 Surpius|  $2.050 Surplus
Refer income Statement in Section 3)
Underlying operating result:

{Note: Underlying operating result is an important measure of fina $2.320 Surplus| 50,560 Surplus
m\talmbilnv as it excludes income which Is to be used for capital
g allocated to cover operating expenses)

Cash result:

{Refer Statement of Cash Flows In Section 3) $2.063 Surplus| 50,588 Surplus
is the net funding result after considering the

Fﬁmﬁ to meet foan principal repayments and the

ansfers.

Total Capital Works Program $15.513 $12.437

- Counc operations (rates funded) $8.209 $8.609
External grants $7.304 53828

Bl Fage
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1 Links to the Integrated Planning and Reporting Framework

The Budget is dosely associated with three key long term Council plans: Community Vision 2035, Asset
Plan 2025-2035, and the Financial Plan 2025-2035. There are links to the planning window of the
current Cound! through the Council Plan 2025-2029 and the Revenue and Rating Plan 2025-2029.

1.1  Legislative Planning and Accountability Framework

The diagram below depicts the integrated strategic planning and reporting framework that applies to
local government in Victoria. At each stage of the integrated strategic planning and reporting
framework there are opportunities for community and stakeholder input. This is important to ensure
transparency and accountabiity to both residents and ratepayers. The Council Budget is a key element
of resource planning both for the current financial year and for its projected impact over a four-year
planning cycle, The Council Budget 2025/26 will provide the basis for Counal planning across the 2025-
2029 window.
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To provide focus in resource planning Council has developed a local model, ARCC Planning and
Budgeting Framework, which picks up the key elements of the planning and accountability model, This
is shown on the model provided on the next page.

LI
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FINANCIAL FLAN ASSET AN

by

COUNCIL MLAN 2023 - 2029

PEVENUE & RATING FRLAN WONKFONCE PLAN
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1.1.1 Key Planning Considerations

Service Level Planning

During 2018/2019, Council undertook a substantial intemal review of all services, The review provided
an opportunity to evaluate the efficiency and effectiveness of Coundl services, and yielded significant
organisational savings.

The implementation of the Local Government Act 2020, and Council’s adoption of the Community

Engagement Policy and Public Transparency Policy provided a timely juncture for Council to undertake
more broad-based reviews of its services, Involving higher levels of community engagement and

participation. Reviews of key community-facing services will continue in 2025/26.

W|Frage
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1.2 Our Purpose
Council’s purpose is defined by the Community Vision 2035,

Over the next ten years Ararat Rural City Council will develop into a community characterised by:

¢ Strong population growth trajectories that buck trends in rural Victoria.

¢ Continuous and sustainable economic development, which is focussed on job creation, through
value adding in agriculture, advanced manufacturing, and tourism.
Leadership in pragmatic approaches to local environmental management,
Sustainable and effective local transport networks underpinned by careful technical and financlal
planning undertaken jointly between asset users and asset owners.

o Communities that are enhanced by access to artistic, cultural, sporting, and recreational
opportunities that meet needs and expectations.

e Strong and robust democratic processes underpinned by transparent governance, good financial
management and organisational innovation,

1.3 Strategic Objectives
The following table identifies and describes Council’s six strategi objectives for the period 2025-2029.

1. Growing our place We will create the settings to support growth across our
municipality theough an improved planning scheme, actively
pursuing new housing options and exploring models for in.

migration.
2. Builiding robust local We wil develop strong relationships to bulld and strengthen a
SCONOMies diverse local economvy, focussed on creating jobs and wealth

through adding value to existing strengths in agriculture,
manufacturing, tourism and hospitality.

3. Preserving our environment We will take pragmatic approaches to ensuring that Asarat
Rural City Council takes 3 regional lead in responiible
environmental management and engagement with the croular
economy.

4 Developing and maintaining We will endure that we plan, fund, and deveiop new

ey enadiing infrastructure infrastructune in ways that defivers strong public value, Existing
infrastructure will be managed, renewed, and maintained to
ensure that it continues to serve identified public needs.

S. [nhancing comanunity ife We will work with the communities of the Ararat Rural Gty to
maintain social cobesion, support community activity and
cuftural life, and enhance safety.

& Strong and effective We will work hard to build models of governance that place

governance delivering public value at the centre through effective financial
management. well measured risk  masigemant; and
implementation of effective community engagement practices

B|rage
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2 Services and service performance indicators

This section identifies the alignment between strategic objectives in the Coundil Plan 2025-2029, key
areas of Councll service delivery, new initiatives related to strategic outcomes, and the budget
allocated to the key services and activities, To support transparency and accountability, Council is
required by legisiation to identify major initiatives and major service outcome indicators in the Budget
and report against them in the Annual Report. The relationship between these accountability
requirements in the Coundil Plan, Budget and Annual Report is shown below.
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2.1  Strategic Objective One ~ Growing Our Place

We will create the settings to suppoet growth across our municipality through an improved planning
scheme, actively pursuing new housing options and exploring models for in-migration.

We will do this through:
¢ Developing a strategic land use planning framework with annual targets to support sustainable
urban growth.

e Supporting innovative housing models that work to overcome market failure and create the
capadity to increase the population of Ararat Rural City,

e Working with other levels of government, business, educational institutions and not-for profits
to develop programs 10 increase in-migration to Ararat Rural City to grow our population,

RfFage
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2.1.1 Services

Planteng The statutory plasning wervice I8 responsible oo
sdminhitering the Ararat Roral City Counal Manning
Scheme, It ders rew pl g wheme A
proposals and reviews the Municipal S i St t of (626) (536)
the Ararat Plarming SCheme. (411} (303)
Suldisg Control  This service provides statutory Buliding wenvicer to the 62 n
Councll community nchading processing of bulding permits, 297 (33%)
fire safety spections, audits of swimming pool barriers and 235} 1263)
' ipations of ¢ faients and Blegal works.
(rvronmental This secvice protects the communty’s health and well-being L4 20
Meakh by cocrdnating food safety programm, Tobacco Act 219 (241)
AU, and  Oovenees watewaler Systems  and 134 1161)
italiations. The service also works to rectify any public
heath concems rel. b

g o none
howsing standards and pest controls.

2.1.2 Service Performance Outcome Indicators and 2025/26 targets
These indicators are currently based on appropriate LGPRF performance measures with targets set for

2025/26.
Performance Indicator Expected range 2025/26 target
FS1 Time taken to action food complaints 1to 10 days 1 day
F52 Food safety assessments S0% to 120% 98%
FS3  Cost of food safety service $300 to $1,200 $350
FS4  Critical and major food safety non-compliance 60% to 100% 100%
outcome notifications
S$P1  Time taken to decide planning applications 30 to 110 days 30
SP2  Planning applications decided within required 40% to 100% 90%
time frames
SP3  Cost of statutory planning service $S00 to 54,000 $2,100
P4 Coundl planning decisions upheld at VCAT 30% to 100% 100%
CSS Planning and Buliding Permits - 60

2.1.3 Major Initiatives
Coundil will undertake the following major initiatives during 2025/26 to support Growing Our Place:

W rage
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Initiative Budget 2025/26

b dribidnhori s daises e

2.1.4 Strategic Performance Indicators and 2025/26 targets

Performance Indicator 2025-2029 target 2025/26 target
Strategic tand use planning framework Annual targets met Develop framework
targets
Available residential land increase 600 lots 150 lots
Residential housing stock Increase 300 properties 7S properties
% of new residential housing is 25% 25%
affordable
ARCC populstion increase 1000 250

Wl rage
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2.2 Strategic Objective Two - Building Robust Local Economies

We will develop strong relationships to bulld and strengthen a diverse local economy, focused on
creating jobs and wealth through adding value to existing strengths in agriculture, manufacturing,
tourism and hospitality.

We will do this through:

*  Partnering with Federation University Australia to deliver the Ararat Jobs and Technology Precingt
with a focus on engaging with local agribusiness, industry and community.

o Working with other levels of government, local business, and private investors to develop a
business park within Ararat Rural City, focused on agricultural value adding and advanced
manufacturing, potentially leveraging “behind the meter” power,

o Engaging with Grampians Wimmera Mallee Tourism and local businesses to improve the guality
of experience and drive growth in high yield tourist outcomes,

2.2.1 Services

ption of services provided

Economic The sconomic dewiopment service salts in facdtation of ps )
Development business opportunity across the municipalty. it ams 10 (764) (608)
prow the local betiness sector and provide suppornt for
(741) 578
growth and develop B amploy This service
nchudes the Vianor nfor Centre ope .

2.2.2 Service Performance Outcome Indicators and 2025/26 targets

These indicators are currently based on appropriate LGPRF performance measures with targets set for
2025/26.

Performance Indicator Expected range 2025/26 target

Community Satisfaction Survey - 67
Business/community development tourism

LY
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2.2.3 Major Initiatives
Coundil will undertake the following major initiatives during 2025/26 to support Building Robust Local

Economies:
Initiative Budget 2025/26
Contribution to Gramplans Wimmera Maliee Tourism $75,000
Continuation of business Facade Improvement and Kick Start $100,000
Grants programs

2.24 Strategic Performance Indicators and 2025/26 targets

Performance Indicator 2025-2029 target 2025/26 target

Percentage increase in jobs in local economy 15% 5%
Ararat Jobs and Technology Precinct annual 8 2
engagement and development targets
Circular economy business park and lead 2 1
tenants In agricultural value-add sector established
Increase in tourism visitation to Ararat Rural City 50% 10%
Increase 4 star and above accommodation options 80 20
Establish a municipal measure of economic growth Economic  growth Targets met for
for annual reporting. on target 2025/26

W rage
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2.3 Strategic Objective Three - Preserving our Environment

We will take pragmatic approaches to ensuring that Ararat Rural City Council takes a regional lead in
responsible environmental management and engagement within the dircular economy.

We will do this through:

o Positioning Ararat Rural City Council as a prime mover in driving circular economy policy in waste
management, including local processing and management of recyclables, and In use of renewable
energy for Coundl purposes.

Developing innovative energy solutions utllising locally produced waste,

Partnering with local organisations and scientific experts to implement the Environment Strategy
2024-34, with a focus on the circular economy, emissions reduction and sustainable management
of Council assets,

2.3.1 Services

Waste This service provides for collection and processing of fowr 1852 1561
Manage terials streams from household collection: paneral waste, 13,0104 (1.054)
mbxed recyclables, glads, and preen orpancs. Councl has [154) “"}"‘

committed 10 jocal procesung where possitle. Council has
local peocessing of preen onganics asd glass Mt he Ararat
Transder Station.

To achieve budget eficiencies and maintain low rates,
Councl will cossoldate waste services By closing the
Wilkaura, Dimherst, Moyston and Py al Tracuter 5

on 30 ne 025 Declning wiage aslongside ongoing
operaticnal costs render the sies no longer Snaacially
viable, Ararat and Lake Bolac Tramfer Stations will remain
open to serve the community’s needs.

Natural Thin  service e ' alty b n "
Revources & deveopment principles, coordnates and  imph (79 (™
Sustainadiiey environmental projects and works with other services 1o ©) 3]
mprove Counclls esvironmental performance. Projects
nchude roachide pest, plant sad animal and renewable
energy projects.
Parks & Garders  This service covers 3 range of areas sich a5 grass and turl 0 0
cutting. tree pruning, planting, remaoval, plarning and street {1,552) (L538)
tree strategies, management of comenation and parkland (1.552) (158

areas, creeks, and other arean of environmental significance,
The furction is responsible for playground mamtenance and

safety Inprovement programa.
Emergency This service inchd Feacy Jervicet 25 and (%) 180
Manage e pr (145) (15%)
Addtional grant-fusdieg will xsist with funding the service t82) 3%
n2005-26.

<&
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2.3.2 Service Performance Outcome Indicators and 2025/26 targets
These indicators are currently based on appropriate LGPRF performance measures with targets set for

2025/26.
Performance Indicator Expected range 2025/26 targot
WC1  Kerbside bin collection requests 10to 300 30 requests

requests

WC2  Kerbside collection bins missed 110 20 bins 2 bins
WC3  Cost of kerbside garbage bin collection service $40 to $150 $135
WC4  Cost of kerbside recyclables collection service $10to $80 §75
WCS  Kerbside collection waste diverted from landfill 20% to 60% 40%
CS5S Waste management - 68
CSS Appearance of public areas - 78
5SS Disaster and emergency management 280

2.3.3  Major Initiatives

Council will undertake the following major initiatives during 2025/26 to support Preserving Our
Environment:

Initiative Budget 2025/26

Seck environmentally and economically beneficlal outcomes for Existing internal
compost derived from Garden Organics processing resources and grant
funding

resources and grant

funding

2.34 Strategic Performance Indicators and 2025/26 targets

Performance Indicator 2025-2029 target 2025/26 target
Decrease waste to kandfill 20% 5%
Decrease total waste and recyclables tonnage 20% 5%
collected
Achieve annual Environment Strategy outcomes Implimentation Plan Year 1 initiatives
on target completed
L
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2.4 Service Objective Four - Developing and Maintaining Key Enabling
Infrastructure
We will ensure that we plan, fund, and develop new infrastructure in ways that delivers strong public

value. Existing infrastructure will be managed, renewed, and maintained to ensure that it continues
1o serve identified public needs,

We will do this through:

Ensuring that asset development and renewal during the planning period matches that identified
in Council’s Asset Plan 2025-2035,

Working directly with asset users to manage and develop new and existing assets.

Delivering infrastructure outcomes that support economic growth, are mindful of
intergenerational equity and enhance community wellbeing and safety. These approaches will
explore strategic use of debt to fund long-term assets and ensure Council’s financial
sustainabllity.

241 Services

2024/25

Budget

Description of services provided

Dwiign & Project  This secvice conducts capital works plannng for Council's n n

Management main civil infrastructure aasets including roads, neways, (478) (534)
cir parks, foot/bike pati, desins, and bridges. This service a5 5

undertakns design and sopervision of Councills capetal works
program. Most stafing and design costs are capitalised

withia completed projects.
Property TS Sereice prepanes mak 3 g programs 0 0
Maistenance &  for Counol's property assets including municipal buldings, (1,001) 25
Capetal paviions, and other community Buldings. The service abo 11.001) 2%
Indhudes emergency bulding and faciity maimtenance.
This service inchades capital expenditure o Council’s
property maets to Optimie their strategi value and service
poteraad
City Services This service inciudes street lighting, aerodrome cperations H) s
and oper e, and cleaning of pubiic {823) (776)
comeniences throughout the ssunicipaliny, 815) o
nirastructure This service inCludes peivate works, maintenance of water 3 0
Macellanecus supplies and emergency bores. (75 s
{7 (%)

¥l Fage
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——
2025/26

Budget

This service provides for management and mantenance on

Mantenance Councl’s  indrastructure  Incorporating  roads,  Bridges, (3344) 3,335)
drainage, foctpaths, kerh and channel, street fumiture, ine (3.344) 3,33%)
marking and ugnage.

Major Mant This service opersies, maintans & purchases Councl's (4] 0
major plart and equipement, 1o meet functionalty aad wfety {1,040} (L4500
needs and 10 madmise the parfoemance and misimice (1.040¢ [LAS0)
operstional cout of the feet.

Major Plant Plant used on works penerates plant Nre income wed 10 (4] 0

Recovps fund operations and malntenance and the replacement of 1,450 1450
the major plant. 145% 1450

Minor Mant This service purchases and mantans Councl's minor plant o 0
and eguipment, including traflers. (56) (5€)

(56) |56}

Infrastrocture - This service provides for capital penditure on Councily A7 S5

Capitad nfrastructure  Iscorporating  roads, bridges, deainage, {7,107 (9.258)
footpaths, ker® and chamnel, streeticapes, and car parks. 2.732) [4.342)
This bodget inciudes recurrent grants from Victonan Grams
Commasion and Roads to Recovery.

Funded This service provides for capital expenditure on Counclly 54 0

Infrastrocture nfrastructire  iscorporating  roads, Bridges, deainage, {7.393) 0

Projects - Capital  Tootpaths, kerd and channel, streetscapes, and car parks. {1.550¢ 0

There are no non-recurment capital grants for infrastructure
projects inchuded in the budget for 2025/26.

2.4.2 Service Performance Outcome Indicators and 2025/26 targets
These indicators are currently based on appropriate LGPRF performance measures with targets set for

2025/26.
Performance Indicator Expected range 2025726 target
Rl Sealed local road requests 10to 120 8 requests
requests
R2  Sealed local roads maintained to condition 80% to 100% 100%
standards
R3  Costof sealed local road reconstruction $20 to $200 $8s
R4 Cost of sealed locad road resealing $410530 6
CSS sealed local roads - 60
CSS unsealed local roads . 50
CSS local roads and footpaths - 65
Wlrage
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2.4.3 Major Initiatives

Council will undertake the following major initiatives during 2025/26 to support Developing and
Maintaining Key Enabling Infrastructure:

Initiative Budget 2025/26

Gravel road resheeting or alternative treatment 1,800,000
Road resealing $1,000,000
Urban Road and Laneway Sealing or alternative treatment $1,000,000
Contribution to Woorndoo-Streatham Road reconstruction, delivered $683,000
in partnership with Moyne Shire Council

Road reconstruction program $2,324,000
Urban drainage renewal $750,000

2.4.4 Strategic Performance Indicators and 2025/26 targets

Performance Indicator 2025-2029 target 2025/26 target

Staged progress on Aradale Development Strategy Impimentation Plan Targets met for
implementation on target 2025/26

Quarterly meetings with the Rural Roads Group Quarterty meetings Meetings held for
achieved 2025/26

Completion of 2025/26 Capital Work program Complete by 30 June

2026
N|Fage
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2.5 Service Objective Five - Enhancing Community Life

We will work with the communities of Ararat Rural City to maintain social cohesion, support
community activity and cultural life, and enhance safety.

We will do this through:
o Opening up Council's arts and culture assets to greater community pasticipation, ownership, and
engagement in decision-making.

e Developing models of volunteering that recognise, support, and properly utilise the kills that
community volunteers bring to community |ife,

¢ Partnering with community groups, not-for-profits, and Traditional Owner organisations to
develop Ararat Rural Gty into a more inclusive, welcoming, tolerant and diverse community.

2.5.1 Services

Gallery TAMA Thes service inchudes the operations, peojects, exhiitions,

qet and ad tion of the Acarat Gallery TAMA (446) (451
B‘il (ggu
Town Mab Thn service operates and manages the Acsrat Town ol s 10
which provides arthai program for the region. Savings have (615) (738)
been made through projected increases in usage and bar (4400 w25
talet
Gu San Management of Gues San has Been handed over to the o 0
Chnese Friends of Gum San. Councl has an MOU with the group and (23) f24)
Hertlage contineet 1o provide Snancial and . L. 73) T
LLEVEY
Communty & Thn m provides for the employment of Comesunty rey s
Tvents Support develope Mo who work with communities 10 develop [233) (131)
community action plans and implement other communty 156 156)
budding intiaties.
Community Ths senvice provides grants 10 COmMUunty onganisations for ] 0
Support Geants projects, swents, ponionhipy, and misce capital and (5009 (100)
comemunity nfrastrocturs. [100; {100
Youth Services Thin service provides services to young pecple, o 0
(1009 (100
(400) (1009
Ararat Fitness This service operates and maintains a range of recreational 534 539
Cerere & facilities inciuding aguatic facilties, indoor (1) and outdoor (L2190 (L2251

Qutdocr Pooh swimnening pools (5], The Acacat Fitnens Contre provides an
extensive range of recreational programs and opportunities
accessible 10 indviduals of all ages, sewes and abiities which
contribute o the penersl wellbemng of the community.

(676) nan

Rrage
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Description of services provided

This service cperates and mantais the Aleundrs Oval
Community Centre, Gordon Street Racreation Reserve and
Great Hal. The faclities provide the Ararst and greater
Geampaass  community, cholbs, and Dusioesies with a
centrally located, high quality, modern, Sesible, dynamic,
Mdtiparpose COMMUNty and recreation 1paces.

This service provides publc Bbrary services at the Ararat
Libeary, the Lake Sclac Business and lofcemation Centre
and theough the mobile Sbrary outraach senvice to rural
communitien.

This service provedes famiy.or d wpport services
ncluding maternal and child health, imewniation and
warly chikihood sducation and support.

This senvice maintains and improves the health and safety
of pecple, aimah, and the environment in the
municipality by providing animal management sensces
ncluding 2 cat trapping program, a dog and cat collection
Wrvice, & pound serice, & regatration and admisistration
service, and an after Bours emergency service.

This service also includes the operations of school crossings
and parking enforcement.

This service includes the delivery of one-off Capital buliding
projects partly or wholly funded by non-recurment
gOvernment granty.

2024/25

(136) (196)
1) 41)
19 165
(459) 476)
{90} 011
EES 55
1324) (409
(%0 144)
137 139
(268) (280)
{131) (141)
0 1490

0 (1.490)

0 0

B Fage

Ararat Rural City

10647



29 APRIL 2025 @
COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES

Ararat Rural City

2.5.2 Service Performance Outcome Indicators and 2025/26 targets

These indicators are currently based on appropriate LGPRF performance measures with targets set for
2025/26.

Performance Indicator Expected range 2025/26 targot

AF2  Health inspections of aquatic facllities 1 to 4 inspections 4 inspections
AF6  Utilisation of aquatic facilities 1 to 10 visits 4 visits
AF7  Cost of aquatic facilities per visit $0to0 530 $20
AM1 Time taken to action animal management 110 10 days 1day
requests.
AM2  Animals reclaimed 30% to 90% 0%
AMS  Animals rehomed 30% to 90% 45%
AMG Cost of animal management service per $3 10540 $16
population
AM7  Animal management prosecutions S0% to 200% o%
181  Physical library collection usage 1109 items 3 Rems
LB2  Recently purchased library collection (< 5 years £0% to 90% 65%
old)
L84  Active library borrowers in municipality 7% to 40% 20%
185  Cost of library service per population $101t0 590 $25
MC2  Infant enrolments in the MCH service 90% to 110% 100%
MG Costof the MCH service $50 to $200 $75
MC4  Participation in the MCH service 70% to 100% 85%
MCS  Participation in the MCH service by Aboriginal 60% to 100% 85%
children
MCE  Participation in 4-week Key Age and Stage visit SO% to 110% 100%
CSS Art centre and libraries - 80%
CSS Recreational facilities - 5%
CSS Elderty support services - 75%
CSS Community and cultural - 5%

2.5.3 Major Initiatives

Council will undertake the following major initiatives during 2025/26 to support Enhancing
Community Life:

M| age
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Initiative Budget 2025/26
Early Years CALD Outreach Initiative, supported by the Victorian $129,400
Department of Education
New multicultural events $10,000

2.54 Strategic Performance Indicators and 2025/26 targets

Performance Indicator 2025-2029 target 2025/26 target

Increase in annual visitation to the Ararat Art Gallery

Increase in audience sizes at commercial and funded
performances at the Town Hall

Increase participation in community organisations in
Ararat Rural City

80% 20%

Increase In community use of the Town Hall A0% 10%
80% 20%
20%

”'l:(o
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2.6  Service Objective Six - Strong and Effective Governance

We will work hard to buikl models of governance that place delivering public value at their centre
through effective financial management, well measured risk management, and implementation of
effective community engagement practices,

We will do this by:
o Delivering responsible budget outcomes, linked to strategy, that deliver value, innovation, and
rating faimess.

o Ensuring appropeiate risk management is appied 1o Council and organisational decisions.
Council’s internal function is applied to areas of perceived riskc

o Continwously improving Council's community engagement process and practices in line with
deliberative engagement practices, while ensuring that Councillors’ roles as elected community
representatives are understood and reflected in decision making.

2.6.1 Services

2024/25%

Incomae

Corporate This service includes Council's rates and Charpes revenue, 5 20,556 Ll’l

Rarverue interest income and generalparpose grant fusds receved 0 0

from the Victoran Local Go Granty C 20556 70158
Francial This service predominantly provides Snancial based services “w 76
Services & w0 both imomal and extemnal Customers including the (9709 (531)
Corporate management of Councl’s finances, procurement practioes (9109 (905)
Swpport sod contracting of wervice, raluing rates and chanpes and the

processing of accounts payable and receivables. This service
Includes coporis  @xpemes  induding | stationery,
tobec atonn £ fees and valustions.

Customer This service inciudes the Oustomer senvice funclion. 0 0
Services (244) (252
(284; (52
Property This service is responsble for the operations of Council's 234 243
Operatiom aets, nchoding inwurances and uslety charpes such as water (152} (164)
#od slectricity. The service aho iIndudes Councl’s budding, 82 k)
land and progerty leases and licenies.
Property This service inchodes the purchane and sale of Council 0 950
Develcpment - properties. In 2025-26 Councll propodes 1o sell an industrial 0 (950)
Capitad block of kand on the East side of Ararat, and will review ) )
further land which is surphus %o Council require s,
Vehicles This service operates, maintains and purchases Councd 12 108
vehicles, machuding major plant and equpment, 50 meet 207 an
functicnality and safety needs aad 20 muximite the (195) (139

performance and minimise operational cost of the fleet.
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MNMMMG&-MM
support. It ako inchedes cow Ao, ‘.

strategy. community engagement and government
relations.

The finding of ol signficant Councll funded projects s
managed from the CLO"s Office

Ths service provides Councll with strategic and operational
organiation developmant support. The senice develops
and implerments strategies, polices, and pmaam
theosgh the proviion of human resowces and inds

relations services. The service includes training programs
and business excellonce. This service alse includes payment
of salanies and wages to Councl employwes.

Thes service provides support 1o the Mayer, Councillors, and
enecutive support, This service provides statutory and
corporate  suppont  senices 10 Council,  Inchuding
coordimation of business papers for meetings of the Counal
and of y registens. This service aho
provides faokmes maintenance grants for recreation
reserves & pubiic halls and coordnates risk management.

Ths service clodes service meviews and  Dusiness

Lol

Tha service provides, sopports, nd maketain rellable and
cont-affective Micns  and P
Oocﬂmwmmoco(mndu‘mmm
deliver tarvices in & smart, productive, and efficent way.

(L12%) (L202)
(1,129 (1,202)
s 750

1) 7
2 21)

o o
(407) (89)
407) 49
0 0
(1279 (1.329)
(127%) (1.329)
0 0
(492) ()
(452) “s2)
0 0
(738) 97%)
(738) 57%)

HARET L
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2.6.2 Service Performance Outcome Indicators and 2025/26 targets
These indicators are currently based on appropriate LGPRF performance measures with targets set for

2025/26.
Performance Indicator Expected range 2025/26 targot
Gl  Council decisions made at meetings dosed to the 0% to 30% 15%
public
G3  Councillor attendance at council meetings 80% to 100% 95%
G4 Costof elected representation $30k to $80K $42,500
CSS Overall performance - 5%
CSS Overall council direction - %%
CSS Customer service - 5%
CSS Informing the community - 75%
CSS Community declsions . 5%
CSS Consultation & engagement - 75%
CSS Lobbying . 75%

2.6.3 Major Initiatives
Council will undertake the following major inttiatives during 2025/26 to support Strong and Effective

Governance:
Initiative Budget 2025/26

2,64 Strategic Performance Indicators and 2025/26 targets

Performance Indicator 2025-2029 target 2025/26 target

Return  efficiency dividends to Annual rate rise within 1.5% rate rise,
community through rate reduction the rate cap haif the rate cap of 3%
Maintenance  of  effective  risk  Annual approval by Audit  Annual approval by Audit
management regime and Risk Committee and Risk Committee
Growth in participation in Growth of 40% Annual growth of 25%
engage.ararst.vic.gov.au

MW|Fage
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2.7 Reconciliation with Budgeted Operating Result

Growing our glace iy 1.112 385
Buddrg robust local economies s 0o 23
Preserveg our esvironment 4111) 4 800 715
Developng and mantanng key enablng infrasyucture {12.900) 15,000 2304
Enhanang comerunity e (2.408) 5,040 323
Srong and efetve QOvemnance (6.424) 7.052 2528
Total (26.444) 35 ro2 5258
Expenses added in:
Coptal sxpendture 12437
Deprecaton (10,463
Amarasanon - nght of e assets (308)
Written down value On assets sold ("m
Loan repayment 15
Lease repayment %
Trarader Som reserves (763
Tracader 1o resarves 1208
Contriution 10 jont verdure 500
Surplus| Defict) bedore funding scurces (24.422)
Funding yources added in:
Rates and charpes revenus 15924
Waste charge revenue 2501
[+ | purp - o gant 0047
Todtal fumdhing sowoes mA72

~Operating perplonijdeficit) for the year 0%
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3 Financial Statements

This section presents information regarding the Financial Statements and Statement of Human
Resources. The budget information for the year 2025/26 has been supplemented with projections to
2028/29,

This section includes the following financial statements prepared in accordance with the Local
Government Act 2020 and the Local Government (Planning and Reporting) Reguiations 2020.

Comprehensive Income Statement
Balance Sheet
Statement of Changes In Equity
Statement of Cash Flows
Statemnent of Capital Works
Statement of Muman Resources

W |rage
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Comprehensive Income Statement
For the four years ending 30 June 2029

Rates and charges
Suattory fees and fres
User foes
Grants - Operatng
Grarts - Capitad

Net gnifions ) on dapoaal of property,
frastructue, plant, acd

Other ncome
Total income

Surplusi|deficn) for the yeor

Tetal comprehensive result

a1
412
413
414
414
4150

418

417
410
410
4110

411

17 550 18,425 15878 19,544 H0EM
w2 o 254 0 248
1518 .01 1872 1.7 1757
8323 9,526 0420 9,530 n7s8
T304 IEn m 2023 203
100 83 ] 3 <]
Fo 0 20 0

72 Q0 0% o0 =1
34,188 34,80 33,766 34,524 35251
1 11,961 > 4 .re e
8209 3,186 a.870 8701 805
7001 10,455 nm 0.0 1nare
& 144 s 08 08 15

° 2 . . .

T4 o0 Q@ 23 5
oz e 404 a4 424
2023 2380 2,718 33,273 34008
(R~ 2,000 1,048 129 1200
818 205 1,048 1,251 1,283

n

<&
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Balance Sheet
For the four years ending 30 June 2029

Cash and cash equivalents 7508 8488 8830 7.8 1707
Trade 3n3 cther recervaSen @ 2258 2982 2044 1,042
Inverdories o4 0 %0 80 0
Prepayments 51 . . . x
Total oument assets 421 7581 4813 9,101 8,402 9,799
NON - CuTent assets
Tracke and cther recencaion E b ] 1 . -
Ivesiments ."“ associates, jeint 1.001 1508 1968 1,968 1,998
m —— 300,843 4678 315,434 318 350 37,312
Fugrt-cdune ansety 107 m 4T w02 2
Invesament property 1,001 1,535 1,535 1,538 1,538
Total non-current assets a1 310,200 M8 992 .08 320,054 20847
Total assets 318,365 327 805 129,532 129,456 330,656
Labilities
Current labétes
Trace and other payaties 221 1024 104 1004 1.024
Trust funds and deposits 304 03 03 0 *0
Provaom 2004 2,104 2104 2104 2104
Iterevi Seanng katdses 4213 1 - - . .
Lease latites 424 0 e prtl 15 -
Total cument Kabiities 422 5,063 3,745 3,784 3,614 340
Non-current Dabilees
Provrsectn 2 m = =3 b
Interest Seanng katdnes 422 . - .
Lease Latdtes 424 (1) 19 190 2 -
Total non-cerrent abilites 422 ”m "2 o Fell b
Total Rabilites 5908 4,557 4,243 3,909 3724
Net asvets 425 n2an a2 324,79 325,547 2680
Equity
Accumdates suphss 0T e 109 %55 10,743 M2 M50
Reserves 204 433 213,209 213,553 213 6M 214,101
Total equity 431 312317 373 248 3,296 325 547 326,830
Rirage
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Statement of Changes in Equity
For the four years ending 30 June 2029

2005 Forecamt
Balance o begrving of the Snancal year 314813 o812 208123 895
Serplusidedon) for the year 058 0583 . .
Net asset revaluation gaey|loas ) - - - -
Trarnders 1o other reserves . (N7 wr
Trarsters bom oher mserves - 3748 (3745)
Batance at end of e firancial year 321,498 108,353 209123 4736
2026 Budget
Balance ot Degrvng of the Sranoad pea X e W8 38 208123 a1
Suphusdetol) for the yeor 20% 20%) . -
Net asset revaluaton garloss) - - S -
Traraters 10 ofher reserves - (1,208 . 1208
Traenders fom ofber resecves = 763 - (7es)
Batance at end of B financial year 431 2 109 359 208123 5168
war
Balance # begnring of the Snancal year s b 100 0% 208,123 518
Sapiusideton) for the yoor 1043 1043 . -
Net asset revaluaon ganioss) - - - -
Trarsters 10 other reserves - (204) - 204
Trarsfers bom ofher meserves s - - -
Batance at end of e financial year ”‘3“ 110,783 208123 gm
W20
Balance o begnming of the Snancal year V4290 10,74 20013 2430
Serphusidedon) for the year 1291 1201 . -
Nt muaet revaluation gainioas) - - - .
Traraters 10 other reserves - ar) . n
Traesters o Ofher reserves - . - -
Balance at end of B Tinancial year 226 547 '"‘12 w 57901
029
Balance st begreming of e francal yesr 09547 mma 20813 aron
Surphusidetor) for the year 1283 1283 . .
Net anset revaluation garvion) - - - -
Trarsters 10 other reserves . @ - o
Trarnders Som ofher reserves - - > -
Balance at end of B financial year w "!m 208123 5’7‘
Blrage
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Statement of Cash Flows
For the four years ending 30 June 2029

Cash Nlows Mom oper ding activities

Rates and charges 1750 RLE L) " " wen

Sattory fees ard fres w2 o 254 oy 28

User fomn 9% 1.7 109 1089 1.8

Grants - operating 10270 8,528 0420 .57 nres

Grarts - captal 7204 EY - 7 b e ] 282

Contributions - monetary 100 8 @ o3 «Q

Irterest recerved 00 400 W0 Eet) M3

Cuher recepts » »y b ] 0 2

Net GST refund / payment . m o7 0620 05

Employee costs (11,35 {14,560 (12,358) (12,788) (13192

Materiais and senvices 0.220) {10,105) @.70%) (%.000) {%.048)

Cther paymerts (368} Q9 404) {434) 424)

pomermct ot e i ik oo it 18,00 12,389 12,224 125671 1209

Canh fiows from investing activities

Pay for property, ik xhure,

Plart, and equpment (18.513) nan (12 .007) (12.000) (52.200)

Proceeds fom sale of progenty.

rivastrctre, plant and egupment - 1,050 100 100 100

vy for e (50% - .

Net oash provided used In) 442

nvestng Ftivtes e 4 {15,513) {11,587) (11.457) (11,506) (12,206

Cash fiows fom financing activities

Firarce covs [ @ - » .

Repapoent of boromngs (250 (156 - = -

Irterest pad - lnane Rabdten Y (=) “ @) =)

Repaymect of loase hatites 51 %% a4 ) (183)

Net cash provided used In) 443

financing activites - ' 13 (L) (20 158 (13%)
increaseldecrease

:h equivalents )RS 2063 ses o s L

Canh and cash equivalents at the begining of the

Srarcial yeor 8.7 3,300 0438 0689 7.2

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the

fnancial year s Gan8 s 7 et
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Statement of Capital Works
For the four years ending 30 June 2029

Plant and squipment

Plant, machinery and equiprnent 500 %

Fixtuares, fings and Suniture - 100 - - -
Libeary books 40 40 s 4 48
Total plant and sguipment 40 640 553 % s
Infrastructre

Roads e 8201 2,000 em .5
Bedges 80 40 400 400 «0
Footpaths and cychreays 400 40 400 400 400
Ormnage 750 5% 7% 750 750
Total infrastructere 14923 757 10,45 19,951 1.1
Total capital works expendit 45 15,513 2437 19567 12,006 12,306
Reprevented by

New et eapendiae 128 16509 " 149 148
Asset rerwwal expendiae 13434 81 "Lagg 0,084 0,193
Asset upgrade expendtue 1.9 207 1545 197 1.908
Total capitsl works expenditure 45 15,513 12437 11,567 12,008 12,308
Funding sowrces represented by

Grarts 7304 3808 2, 2 2023
Cauncl cash 200 L] A.7%0 2.0 LR~
Total capital works expenditure 45 15,543 1240 14,567 12,008 12,306
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Statement of Human Resources
For the four years ending 30 June 2029

Ergloyee 0osts - operasng 11233 11,361 12,367 12.708 13191

Employese costs - capital 1001 1,13¢ 1,185 1,184 1.22¢4

Total st expendture 12424 13,097 1 522 13,962 T
FTE FTE FTE FIE FTE

Stal numbens

Emgloyees 1284 1272 178 1278 1278

Total sta¥ numbers 184 1215 1278 1278 1278

A summary of human resources expenditure categorised according to the organisational structure of
Coundil is included bedow:

Growing our place & 25 151 -
Bulidng robont local economies am »2 - e
Presenvng our enveonment 2047 .m o 22
o vt Beno i v B 3067 2 o 273
Erhanang comerurity e 2568 27 70 450
Srong and efectve govemance 3m 2854 513 2
Total permanent sta® supendtue 1.6 2,296 .51 1,04
Caplalined labour oot 1198

Total expendture 13,087

A summary of the number of full time equivalent (FTE) Council staff in relation to the above
expenditure is included below:

Comprises

Fart v

Buddng robust 10Cal economees AT 0 . o7
Presarving owr eoveonment ns 20 o8 17
Develcping and mantanng ey

th A 113 410 oe 28
Erhanang comrursty Me 00 40 ae 51
Strong and efectve govemance 3 20 50 Q3
Total sta 1278 me 151 w7

M rage
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3.1  Summary of Planned Human Resources Expenditure
For the four years ending 30 June 2029

Geowing ow place

Permanent - Full teme
Weornen Pl 20
Aen

Persorn of seli-descrbed gender - -

Parmanent - Part bme
Wormen "2 157 "2 105
e

of sall Led gend - . - o
Total - Growing cur place [ 243 £98 ™ 748

Building robust local economien
Permanent - Full teme
214 m b 38

i

Persors of sell-descrbed gender . . - P
Permanent - Pan trme

i

Pecsam of seli Gesorbed gender
Total - Budding robust DG eoonomies w2 s UG =

Presenving our environment
Permanent - Full e

Men 1,751 1500 1.8% 1,901
Parvarm of sei-descrbed gender - - - -
Permanent - Part bme

Persorm of sell-dencrbed gender - - - -
Total - Preserving owr environment 1315 1578 1331 202
Developing and maintaining hey enabling
mfrmtruchere
Permanent - Full tere

Men AL 25 232 AN
Persorns of self descrbed gender . . -
Permanent - Part ime

Persons of selt-descrbed gender - - - -

Total - Developing and maintaining key enabling
nirastructure 2 2887 250 301

2N rage
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Persons of selt desorbed gender
Tetal - Srong and effective governance

Casuals, tem@orary and other espendture
Capitatesed labour costs
Total staf¥ espenditure

24 2504 g4 o4
™ e m 7
48 m 8 53
0 an © 33
2,074 2143 2214 287
1587 1,000 2014 2,081
48 m ) &3
813 %0 o048 0o
L146 2250 3358 3470
1,004 1,130 1,363 1207
1,135 1,165 1.0 1,224
13,087 13,522 13,962 14,415

M|rage
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Persors of sell descrbed gender . . . .
Tetal - Budding rebust local econamies 30 30 30 30

Presecving ouwr envieorment
Permanent - Full tere

Persors of self desorbed gender
Permanent - Pan time
Wearmen 08 08 0s 08

Parsars of selt-descrbed gender - - - -
Total - Presecving cur environment 019 0 08 oS

Wornen 50 50 50 50
Alen 0 M0 M0 M0

Waomen oe o oe o9

nfrastruchwre 33 n #3 t< AN

Wormen 80 a0 a0 a0
e "o a0 a0 L

Werren as a8 ae a8
Men 03 03 03 03

Total - Enhancing community ke 209 209 209 29

M|l rage
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100 180 o 160
40 40 40 40
50 50 50 50

%0 250 %0 250

w07 197 w7 0wz

120 120 120 120

1278 1278 1278 1278
L R

<&
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4 Notes to the Financial Statements

4.1 Comprehensive Income Statement
4.1.1 Rates and charges
It is required by the Act and the Regulations that rates and charges are disclosed in Council’'s Budget.

As per the Local Government Act 2020, Coundil is required to have a Revenue and Rating Plan: a four-
year plan describing how Council will generate income to deliver the Coundil Plan, programs and
services, and capital works commitments over a four-year period.

In developing the Budget, rates and charges were identified as an important source of revenue,
Planning for future rate increases has therefore been a vital component of the financial planning
process. The Fair Go Rates System [FGRS) sets out the maximum amount coundls may increase rates
in a year. For 2025/26 the FGRS cap has been set at 3.00%. The cap applies to both general rates and
municipal charges and Is calculated based on Coundil’s average rates and charges.,

The level of required rates and charges has been considered in this context, with reference to Council's
other sources of income and the planned expenditure on services and works to be undertaken within
the community.

Council has prepared the Budget based on a 1.5% increase in the amount raised by general rates and
municipal charges.

This will raise total rates and charges for 2025/26 of $18.425 million.

4.1.1(a) The reconciliation of the total rates and charges to the Comprehensive Income Statement Is
as follows:

Sepplementary rates and cabe adpatments. .m 0o - oM

Trust for Natre rebate - A1 -1 00 0%
Interest on rates and charges ] e . om
Revence n beu of raten 8 s o 4
Total rates and charges 17,950 18425 475 25%

“These Devre ive Sulject 10 the 1ite Cad eilabisded under Dhe FORS

‘]l-n(v
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4.1.1(b) The rate in the dollar to be levied as general rates under section 158 of the Act for each type
or class of land compared with the previous financial year:

Type or clans of land 9 P 5 Change

Genersl rate for rateatie generdd propertes 0264 I
Gerecdl rate 1or rateatie COMmercal propenes 0 49%0 04 02%
Geread rate for rateable NAustral propertes 049% 0451 0%
General rate for rateadle Tarm properies 04350 o 53%

4.1.1(c) The estimated total amount to be raised by general rates In relation to each type or class of
land, and the estimated total amount to be raised by general rates, compared with the previous
financial year:

Type or class of land

Gereal LAl " a2 0 I2%
Commerad 798 m b1 Itn
Industral 245 P T 3%
Farm 0033 144 " 1.9%
Total amount to be ramsed by general rates 14136 14592 e 2™

4.1.1(d) The number of assessanents in relation to each type or class of land, and the total number of
assessments, compared with the previous financial year,

Budpet

ype or chass of hand 200425
Noanbeer NWumbeer -
Genoesl 537 5413 L] 0%
Commercil N7 M8 1 0.3%
ncustral 13 1 -1 L%
Farm 1490 150 4 02%
Total numibeer of assessments 739% TAD 50 o™

4.1.1(e) The basis of valuation to be used is the Capital Improved Value (CIV).

4.1.1(f) The estimated total value of each type or class of land, and the estimated total value of land,
compared with the previous financial year:

w class of band

4|
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4.1.1(g) The municipal charge under Section 159 of the Act compared with the previous financial year:

Per Rateable
Propecty
Type of Charge

Muncpal o8 »* - 0o

4.1.1(h) The estimated total amount to be raised by municipal charges compared with the previous
financial year:

Type of Charge

Moncpa asore €0 % 4220 oM

4.1.1(i) The rate or unit amount to be levied for each type of service rate or charge under Section 162
of the Act compared with the previous financlal year:

Type of Charge

Fartrsade codecton - 4 B Syviem 482 40 8 1%
Karbside colection - 3 Bin Systemn 4% 4 ? 1%
Fertrsde cotecton - s03tona 140 kre Gatage 102 155 3 19%
Kertrsate cotecton - sdstonal 240 Mre Recyckng 130 12 3 22%
Vartraade coecton - adational 240 Mre Organcs 120 1" 3 22%
Kerbside collection - addtional 50 We Glass 2 b 2 L%

4.1.1(j) The estimated total amount to be raised by each type of service rate or charge, and the
estimated total amount to be raised by service rates and charges, compared with the previous
financial year:

Budget

Type of Charge 200425 202508

s

Kertrsade colecton - 4 Bn Syssem 2010004 20825 71980 316%
Karbside collecton - 3 Bin System W7 040 L= e.co8 1™
Karbside colection — addtional 140 lre Catage 18,382 15180 -1,182 J2%
Farbuide collecton — ack vl 240 Mre Recychng 7,508 122 204 5%
Kart )~ ach wal 240 Mre Organics 04 12N <ad S32%
Karbyide collecton — addtional 00 e Glaws T8 ™ ] 21%
Total 2423052 250079 T76%8 32%
LIRETE
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4.1.1(k) The estimated total amount to be ralsed by all rates and charges compared with the previous
financial year:

Genotal rates 14,130 14,513 w7 2%

Muncipal charge 032 (4] 4 0%
Scpplermentary ratws and rate adpabments 2423 250 by | AN
Trust for Nature rebate 100 100 - 00%n
Reveran n beu of ratesy - -1 -n 100 0%
Service rates and chacgen 08 % - 00%
Interest on rates and charges 200 ) o4 49%
Total Rates and charges 179 19805 478 26%

4.1.1(1) Fair Go Rates System Compliance

Ararat Rural Cty Council is required to comply with the State Government’s Fair Go Rates System
(FGRS). The table below details the Budget assumptions consistent with the requirements of the Fair
Go Rates System.

Total Anruained Gerersl Rates & Munopal Charges $14T74 40 $14 030459

Number of rateabie propertes T30 TAW
Bane Average fate Nwass 52008 30
Maximum Rate Increase (set by the State Govermement) 27% J.00%
Capped Averape FHate 208180 .04 4%
Macirmun Cenecal Rates and Murscipal Charges Revenue $15181,.74 $15378.404
Buigeted Genwral Rates and Munopal Charges Revecus $14774 728 $15.155483
Budigeted Suppiementary Rates $100,000 $200.000
Budgeted Totw Rates and Munopal Charges Revenue SIET T2 $15.205.483

4.1.1(m) Any significant changes that may affect the estimated amounts to be raised by rates and
charges,

There are no known significant changes which may affect the estimated amounts to be raised by rates
and charges, However, the total amount to be raised by rates and charges may be affected by:

The making of supplementary valuations.

The variation of returned levels of value (e.g., valuation objections and appeals).

Changes of use of land such that rateable land becomes non-rateable land and vice versa.
Changes of use of land such that farm land becomes general land and vice versa.

Granting single farm enterprises the exemption from payment of the muniipal charge.
Granting of Trust for Nature rebates.

4.1.1(n) Differential Rates

Rates are essentially property taxes that allow Coundl to raise revenue to fund delivery of a range of
services to their municipal community. importantly, it is a taxation system that includes flexibility for
councils to utilise different tools in its rating structure to accommodate issues of equity and to ensure
fairness in rating for all ratepayers. Councils can use these tools in different ways to yield results seen
as fair by their communities.

Ml age
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Council utilises a rating structure comprised of three key elements, These are:

«  Generol Rotes - Based on property values (using the Capital Improved Valuation methodology),
which are indicative of capacity to pay and form the central basis of rating under the Local
Government Act 1989. Within the General rating moded are four differentiated rating sectors:
General, Industrial, Commercial and Farm,

o Service Charges - A 'user pays' component for Council services to reflect benefits provided by
Council to ratepayers who benefit from a service. The only Service Charge applied by Council is
the Waste Charge, applied to domestic waste management.

*  Municipal Charge — Coundl applies a Municipal Charge as a fixed rate’ portion per property or
single farm enterprise, to cover some of the fixed administrative costs of Council.

Impact of 2025 Valuation

The expected final outcome of the 2025 general revaluation has been a 2.2% decrease in valuations
for general/residential properties, 3 2.15% increase in commercial valuations, a 0.02% increase in
industrial valuations and a 3.58% decrease in farming valuations.

The following table illustrates the expected changes in capital improved valuations for each class of
property as a result of the revaluation,

Genernd -220%
Comrraecal 122,199 00 150,240,000 2%
Indusinal 51,370,000 $1.378.000 om%
Farm 4.454.283 000 4,222 940 000 -1 28%
Totals €.749.073,000 £.546 348 002 -3.00%

A revaluation does not result in additional rate income for Coundil; even with no increase in the total
amount ralsed by rates and municipal charges, some ratepayers may pay more in rates and others
may pay less than the previous year, depending on the percentage change in the value of the individual
properties,

General Rates
The formula for calculating General Rates, excluding any additional charges, arrears or additional
supplementary rates is:

Valuation (Copital improved Value) x Rate in the Dollar (Differentiol Rate Type)

The rate in the dollar for each rating differential category is inchuded in Council’s annual Budget and
represents Council’s key mechanism for building a rating model that shares rating burden predictably
and fairly between the four rating sectors.

Rates and charges are an Important source of revenue, accounting for 53.5% of the budgeted
operating revenue expected to be received by Council in 2025/26. The collection of rates is an
important factor in funding Council services. Planning for future rate increases is therefore an essential
component of the long-term financial planning process and plays a significant role in funding both
additional service delivery and the increasing costs related to providing Coundll services.

“'l""
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Council makes a further distinction when administering general rates by applying a rating differential
based on the purpose for which the property is used; that is, whether the property is used for general,
commerdal, industrial, or farming purposes. This distinction is based on the concept that different
property categories should pay a fair and equitable contribution, taking into account the benefits
those properties derive from the local community,

Ararat Rural City Council has made a clear decision, supported by the outcomes of the Rating Strategy
Advisory Group (RSAG) and Citizen's Jury, and by the community more generally, that rating faimess
is measured by a consistent sharing of “rates burden” between rating sectors from year to year, It has
become known as the “pie model” through the RSAG process. It means that each year, each rating
sector should contribute a very similar amount of the rating “ple™. This reflects the intent of Section
101{1)(c) of the Local Government Act 2020 which requires that councils “seek to provide stability and
predictability in the financial impact on the municipal community”,

To maintain consistency in the percentage of rating burden across the four rating sectors, it is critical
to understand that the differential is not a “discount” or a fixed element that underpins rating fairness,
Rather, it is an economic lever to be used to ensure that the current rates burden is maintained
between rating sectors.

This equilibrium in burden between rating sectors Is often disturbed through asymmetric changes in
property valuations between rating sectors, If valuations in one sector increase or decrease
disproportionately to the overall movement in valuations, the proportion of rates paid by one sector
becomes skewed, and this needs to be adjusted through alteration of one or more differentials.

Council will continue to attempt 1o minimise the impact of rating burden on the entice municipal

community through seeking ongoing organisational efficiencies during the life of the Revenue and
Rating Plan 2025-2029. These savings will be returned as a dividend to community.

There is a general "understanding” in the local government sector that forgoing the opportunity to
increase rates to the maximum allowed under the FGRS results in significant losses in future revenue
which undermines ongoing organisational sustainability, particudarly in small rural councils. ARCC
challenges this thinking; delivering ongoing and sustainable efficiencies has the same impact on long
term sustainability as increasing the rate base. There may be rate increases in the period 2025-2029,
to meet increased costs, but the first option to be exercised will always be efficiency dividends.

Valuation Methodology

Ararat Rural City Council applies Capital Improved Value (CIV) to all properties within the municipality
to take into account the fully developed value of the property. This basis of valuation considers the
total market value of the land plus buildings and other improvements. The CIV approach also provides
the mast effective mechanism for Council to raise differentiad rates under the Ministerial Guldefines

for Differential Rating, 2013.

Rationale for Differential Rating Sectors

Coundil believes each differential rate will contribute to the equitable and efficient carrying out of
council functions. The application of the “pie model” in terms of a generally accepted community
measure of rating equity has been discussed previously as a key driver of the rating sectors developed
under Council’s Revenue and Rating plan 2025-2029,

Details of the objectives of each differential rate, the classes of land which are subject to each
differential rate and the uses of each differential rate, are set out below.

Blrage
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General land is any rateable Land which does not have the characteristics of Farm Rate
land and Commerdial/Industrial Rate land.

To ensure that Council has adeguate funding 10 undertake its strategik, statutory,
service provision and community services obligations and to ensure that the
differential rate in the dollar declared for defined General Rate land properties Is fair
and equitable, having regard to the cost and the level of benefits derived from
provision of Council services.

Characteristics: The characteristics of the planning scheme zoning are applicable to the determination

of vacant land which will be subject to the rate of residential land. The vacant land
affected by this rate is that which is roned residential under the Ararat Rural City
Council Planning Scheme. The classification of the land will be determined by the
occupation of that land for its best use and have reference to the planning scheme
T0ning.

Types and

Classes: Rateable land having the relevant characteristics described below:
a) used primarily for residential purposes; or
b) any land that is not defined as Farmland or Commercial/industrial Land.

Use of Rate:  The General Differential Rate is the default rate In instances where land does not meet
the characteristics of any other differential rate. It will be used to fund items of
expenditure described in the Budget adopted by Coundil. The level of the differential
rate & the level which Councll considers necessary to achieve the objectives specfied
above,

Level of Rate:  100% of General Rate.

Use of Land:  Any use permitted under the Ararat Rural City Council Planning Scheme,

Geographic

Location: Wherever located within the municipal district,

Planning Scheme

Zoning: The 20ning applicable to each rateable land within this category, as determined by
consulting maps referred to in the relevant Ararat Rural City Coundl Planning Scheme.,

Types of

Buildings: All bulldings which are already constructed on the land, or which are constructed prior
to the end of the financial year.

FARM RATE

Definition: Farm Land means any rateable land within Council’s municipal district defined as farm

land under Section 2 of the Volkuation of Land Act 1960, on the condition that the
owner or occupier of the land is a person carrying on the activities defined by the
Valuation of Lond Act 1960, and who is regarded as a Primary Producer by the
Australian Taxation Office.

Section 2{1) of the Valuation of Land Act 1960 states:

| Page
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a) Farm Land means any rateable land that Is 2 or more hectares in area.

b) Used primanily for primary producing purposes from Its activities on the kand;
used perimarnily for grazing (induding agistment), dairying, pig farming, poultry
farming, fish farming, tree farming, bee keeping, viticulture, horticulture, fruit
growing or the growing of crops of any kind or for any combination of those
activities; and

That is used by a business ~

o That has a significant and substantial commercial purpose of character

¢ That seeks to make a profit on a continuous or repetitive basis from Its activities
on the land; and

o That is making a profit from Its activities on the land, or that has a reasonable
prospect of making a profit from its activities on the land if it continues to operate
in the way that it is operating.

To ensure that Council has adequate funding to undertake its strategic, statutory,
service provision and community services obligations and to ensure that the
differential rate in the dollar declared for defined Farm Rate land properties is fair and
equitable, having regard to the cost and the level of benefits derived from prowision
of Council services with considerations to maintain agriculture as a major industry in
the municipal district, to facilitate the longevity of the farm sector, and to achieve a
balance between providing for municipal growth and retaining the important
agricultural economic base,

Characteristics: The characteristics of the planning scheme zoning are applicable to the determination

Use of Rate:

of farm land which will be subject to the rate of Farm land. The classification of the
land will be determined by the occupation of that land for its best use and have
reference to the planning scheme zoning.

Farm land having the relevant characteristics described below:

a) used primarily for primary production purposes by an owner or occupier who is
regarded as a Primary Producer by the Australian Taxation Office; or

b) any land that is not defined as General Land or Commercial/industrial Land,

The differential rate will be used to fund items of expenditure described in the Budget
adopted by Council. The level of the differential rate is the level which the Council
considers Is necessary to achieve the objectives spedified above.

Level of Rate: The level of the rate will be determined annually by Coundil and the community in

preparation and adoption of Council’s Budget. The Farm differential is an economic
lever required to maintain consistency In rating burden between rating sectors. It is
proposed to be 39% of the General Rate in 2025/26.

Use of Land:  Any use permitted under the Ararat Rural City Council Planning Scheme.

Geographic

Location: Wherever located within the municipal district,

Planning Scheme

Zoning: The zoning applicable to each ratable land within this category, as determined by

consulting maps referred to in the relevant Ararat Rural City Coundil Planning Scheme,
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Types of
Buildings: All bulidings which are already constructed on the land, or which are constructed prior
to the end of the financial year,

Although acknowledged as two separate rating sectors, the rationale for striking a
Commercial/Iindustrial differential rate is the same and will be described as a single class in the
Revenue and Rating Plan 2025-2029.

Definition: Commercial/industrial Land is ary land which is:

a) Used primarily for carrying out the manufacture or production of, or trade in
goods or services {induding tourist facilities and in the case of a business providing
accommodation for tourists, is prescribed accommodation under the Public
Health and Wellbelng Act (Vic) 2008; or

b) Unoccupied building erected which is 2oned Commerdial or Industrial under the
Ararat Rural City Council Planning Scheme; or

¢} Unoccupied land which is zoned Commercial or Industrial under the Ararat Rural
City Council Planning Scheme.,

Objectives:  To ensure that Coundll has adeguate funding to undertake its strategic, statutory,
service provision and community services obligations and to ensure that the
differential rate in the dollar declared for defined Commercial/industrial Rate land
properties is fair and equitable, having regard 10 the cost and the level of benefits
derived from provision of Coundll services.

The commercial businesses of Ararat Rural Gty Councid benefit from significant
ongoing investment by Council in services and infrastructure. Coundil also notes the
tax deductibility of Council rates for commercial properties which is not avallable to
the residential sector, and the income generating capability of commercial based

properties.

The Commercial differential rate is applied to promote the economic development
objectives for the Ararat Rural City Council as outlined in the Councd Plan. These
objectives include a significant ongoing investment to create a vibrant economy and
include the maintenance and improvement of tourism infrastructure, construction
and maintenance of public infrastructure, development and provision of health and
community services, and the general provision of support services and promotion of
business in the municipality.

Characteristics: The characteristics of the planning scheme zoning are applicable to the determination
of vacant land which will be subject to the rate applicable to Commercial/Industrial
Land. The classification of the land will be determined by the occupation of that land
for its best use and have reference to the planning scheme 20ning.

Types and

Classes: Commercial/industrial having the relevant characteristics described below:
a) used primarily for commercial purposes; or
b} any kand that is not defined as General Land or Farm Land,

Use of Rate:  The differential rate will be used to fund items of expenditure described in the Budget
adopted by Council. The level of the differential rate is the level which Councll
considers necessary to achieve the objectives specified above,
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Level of Rate: The level of the rate will be determined annually by Council and the community in
preparation and adoption of Council's Budget. The differential rate is an economic
lever required to maintain consistency In rating burden between rating sectors. It is
proposed to be 135% of the General Rate in 2025/26. It is less likely that the
Commercial/Industrial differential will need to be altered significantly from budget to
budget as there are much less volatile property markets in these two rating sectors.

Use of Land:  Any use permitted under the Ararat Rural City Council Planning Scheme.

Geographic

Location: Wherever located within the municipal district.

Planning Scheme

Zoning: The 20ning applicable to each rateable land within this category, as determined by
consulting maps referred to Iin the relevant Ararat Rural City Coundl Planning Scheme.

Types of

Buildings: All buildings which are already constructed on the land, or which are constructed prior
to the end of the financial year,
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4.1.2 Statutory Fees and Fines

Irdingements and cowts 3 Fal - o

Town planming fees 218 s - 0%
Land information certfcates 15 " - °0.0%
Permts 1w M 8 22.0%
Total statutiory fees and Snes m m 5 1.5%

Statutory fees relate mainly to fees and fines levied in accordance with legislation and include town
planning fees, and animal and parking fines. Increases in statutory fees are made in accordance with
legislative requirements.

Statutory fees are forecast to increase by 1.8% or $0.005 million compared to 2024/25,

A detailed listing of statutory fees is included in Section 6.

4.1.3 User Fees

539 5 o

Levure contre 554

Childcareichilren’s programs L} " ] 2.3%
Hogr and other per "o 1% <10 4%
Buddng servoes o0 m 10 wrs
Waste management services L) o8 n "™
Arwrat Town Hall charges 125 169 s 20%
Viadtior Information Centre 9 s 00
Mexardra Oval 110 i 0.0%
Gordon 5t Oval . 40 40 100 0%
Road cocupancy 10 " - o
Crher fees and charpes w0 n < 29%
Total uner fows 1515 1.6 116 .™%

User fees relate mainly to the recovery of service delivery costs through the charging of fees to users
of Council’s services. These Include use of leisure, entertainment and other community facilities and
the provision of waste management services.

User fees are projected 1o increase by 7.7% or $0.116 million compared to 2024/25.

A detalled listing of user fees Is Included in Section 6.
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4.14 Grants
Grants are required by the Act and the Regulations to be disclosed in Coundl’s Budget.

Commanmealth funded grants 4 10,208 -4.320 N
State funded grams 882 2.56% 2.057 236.6%
Total grants received 15,627 13,354 221 A4 5%
(3} Operating Grants

Recurrent - C with Go

Frarcial Assssance Grants T4 047 00 1%
Recurrent - State G

Aged e 3 3 0%
Shook CrURENg SupecvRany 19 *» 1 ™
Libranes " 155 2 A%
Materrai and chis heain 3 »e 0 7.9%
Cuture 40 140 . 0.0%
AT aton 44 0 10 k)
Emergency Managerme-t Ly L] 00
Erwironerent 70 T4 “ ST
Total recurrent grants 8258 8.50% 651 9%
Noa- nt - C i G

Commundty developrment

Non - State Gover et

Mater—al and chid healts o L 3 2 I
Communay Developmernt . 184 134 100.0%
Hecreason - uk »e 100.0%
Total non-recerrent grants = 7 852 82 2%
Total operating grants 831 9,526 1,203 5%
®) Capital Grants

Recurrent - C oith Go

Roads 0 recovery 1400 208 a7 0.0%
Total recurrent grants 1,460 2.3 owr G0.0%
Non-recurrent - Commonwesal®h Govermment

Traesgon 5843 - 5,843 A00.0%
Non-recurrent - State Government

Recreaton - 1,490 1.400 100.0%
Total non-recurrent grants 5848 1450 4,353 T4 5%
Total capital grants T304 350 3476 -A7.6%
Total Geants 15,627 13,354 2273 A%

Operating grants Include all mondes received from State and Federal sources for the purposes of
funding the delivery of Council’s services to ratepayers. Overall, the level of operating grants ks
projected to increase by 14.5% or $1.203 million compared to 2024/25.
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Capital grants include all monies received from State and Federal sources for the purposes of funding
the capital works program. Overall, the level of capital grants Is projected to decrease by 47.6% or
$3.476 million compared to 2024/25.

4.1.5 Contributions

J J0%
7 7.0%

Mooty W
Total contributions W

Contributions relate to monies paid by the community in regard to community projects.

Contributions are projected to decrease by 7.0% or 50,007 million compared to 2024/25.

4.1.6 Other Income

200
Ireesiment property rental 22 0 8 16%

Total other income 2 &0 92 AT

Other income refates to a range of items such as property rentals and other miscellaneous income
items, It also includes interest revenue on investments.

Other income Is forecast to decrease by 12.7% or $0.092 million compared to 2024/25 mastly due to
the expected decrease in market interest rates,
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4.1.7 Employee costs

Wages and salares 0612 11088 430 4.5%

Lass coplalsed mages and salades -1.001 -1,136 A5 1%
WorkCover 249 e 7 B0%
Seperaronaton 1211 1320 00 2.0%
Fringe benefits tax 0 63 7 12.9%
Total employee costs 130 11961 2 S

Employee costs include all labour related expenditure such as wages, salaries, and on-costs such as
allowances, leave entitiements, employer superannuation, etc.

Employee costs are forecast to increase by 5.5% or $0.628 million compared to 2024/25.

Movements in employee costs are influenced by a number of factors:

Renegotiation of Council's Enterprise Agreement (EA)

An increase in Councll’s WorkCover premiums.

Maovement of some staff in kne with the Local Government Award upon their work anniversary,
Various externally funded positions impact on employment staff costs from year to year,

An increase in the Superannuation Guarantee percentage from 11.5% to 12.0%.

Refer to Section 3 for the Statement of Human Resources, along with a summary of human resources
expenditure categorised according to the organisational structure of Council and a summary of the
number of full time equivalent (FTE) Council staff in relation to the expenditure,

4.1.8 Materials and services

Materais and servies 4828 5,659 an “wos

Contract Payrmects 8ds L <] a8 448%
Prant and eQquipment manienance 1.448 145 2 1%
Uthtes 54 e B 0.5%
Consuftants 418 00 15 3.6%
Total maserials and services 82% 9,186 wr "nas

Materials and services include the purchases of consumables, payments to contractors for the
provision of services and utility costs.

Materials and services are forecast to increase by 11.2% or 50,927 million compared to 2024/25.
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4.19 Depreciation

Change

Property 1243 2,626 1,383 1ML

Plant & equprment T me 7 05
Infrasiruohure 5.000 7067 1.3%8 247%
Total depeectation 768 10,465 2.7 % %

Deprediation is an accounting measure which attempts to allocate the value of an asset over its useful
life for Council's property, plant and equipment induding infrastructure assets such as roads and
drains, The increase of $2.788 milion for 2025/26 has resulted from a revaluation of Councll’s assets
undertaken during 2024/25, and is primarily due to significant market increases in the cost to replace
property and infrastructure assets.

4.1.10 Amortisation - Right of Use Assets

Fight of une anaets 3o 00 2.0%
Total amoctisation - Hight of use xsets 32 08 6 20%

Amortisation is an accounting measure to allocate the value of the right of use asset across the life of
the asset. Councl has entered Into leases for several major plant items with the right to use the
vehicles amortised over the term of the leases.

4.1.11 Other Expenses

Acditors’ semuneraton - Extermal (Victordan Audion

Geneel) %0 50 - o0
AcxStory’ rermuneration - infeenal L s - o0
Counalors” alowanoes 253 sy 20 0I%
Total other expenses 363 M 2% 7%

Other tems of expense refate to a range of unclassified items including Councillors allowances,
Mayoral allowance, and audit fees. Other expenses are forecast to increase by 7.1% or 50.026 million
compared to 2024/25.
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4.2 Balance Sheet
4.2.1 Assets

Cash and cash equivalents include cash and investments such as cash held in the bank and in cash on
hand, and the value of investments in deposits or other highly liquid investments with short term
maturities of three months or less. These balances are projected to decrease by $1.320 million
compared to 2024/25.

Trade and other receivables are monies owed to Coundl by ratepayers and others. Short term debtors
are not expected to change significantly in the Budget.

Prepayments are expenses that Council has paid in advance of service delivery.

By 2025/26 Council will have invested $2.000 million in a joint venture with a private Investor to
address the availability of affordable housing for the growing labour force within the municipality. The
venture will see four new houses constructed per year over the next 15 years, for a total of 60 new
homes, to be leased for a period of four years and then sold.

Property, infrastructure, plant, and equipment is the largest component of Council’s worth and
represents the value of all the land, buildings, roads, vehidles, equipment, etc which has been built up
by Coundil over many years.

A right of use asset has been Induded In the 2025/26 budget due to Council holding five leases for
major plant items. The right of use asset will be amortised over the term of the leases.

4.2.2 Labilities

Trade and other payables are those to whom Coundil owes money as at 30 June. These liabilities are
budgeted to remain consistent with 2024/25 levels,

Provisions Include accrued long service leave, annual leave and rostered days owing to employees.
These employee entitiements are expected to remain consistent during 2025/26,

Interest-bearing loans and borrowings are bocrowings of Coundil. Coundil is budgeting to take out no
new loans in 2025/26 and loan principal repayments of $0.150 million will become due, resulting in
Council’s current loan being fully repaid.

Council holds five leases for major plant and equipment. Balances are separated into current and non-
current lease Eabilities.

“l"“o
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4.2.3 Borrowings
The table below shows information on borrowings specifically required by the Regulations.

Aot borrowed &5 at 20 Jure of he peor yeur 307 157
Amourt proposed 10 be borrowed - -
Amourt projected 10 be redeemed -1%0 -8y
Amaonant of borTowings a5 at 30 June " -

4.2.4 Leases by Category

As a result of the introduction of AASB 16 Leases, right-of-use assets and lease llabilities have been
recognised as outlined in the table below.

Right of e assets - -
Flant and equprment 1057 712 mrv
Total right of wse assets 1067 792 T 7%
Leave lubites

Current lease Liabdities

Flant and equpment V0 454 8%
Teotal current lease habdites 50 454 33819
Non -current lease habdties

Plant and equpment 000 545 S18.5%0
Total non owrent lease labikties 03 645 518,550
Total lease habifities 1,100,069 £32 388

4.2.5 Net Assets

This term is used to describe the difference between the value of total assets and the value of total
liabilities. It represents the net worth of Council as at 30 June,

The increase in net assets of $10.871 million results predominantly from the operating surplus, asset
revaluations and the net movement of non-current assets,
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4.3  Statement of Changes in Equity
4.3.1 Equity

Total equity Is projected to increase by $10.871 million during the year. Total equity always equals net
assets and is made up of the following components:

o Asset revaluation reserve which represents the difference between the previously recorded value
of assets and their current valuations.

o Other reserves that are funds that Council wishes to separately identify as being set aside to meet
a specific purpose In the future and to which there is no existing Kability, These amounts are
transferred from the Accumulated Surplus of the Council to be separately disclosed.

o Accumulated surplus which is the value of all net assets less Reserves that have accumnulated over
time. $2,050 million of the increase in accumulated surplus results directly from the surplus for
the year. An amount of $0.440 million (net) is budgeted to be transferred from accumulated
surplus to other reserves as an allocation towards future building capital works projects. This isa
transfer between equity balances only and does not impact on the total balance of equity.

4.4 Statement of Cash Flows
4.4.1 Net cash flows provided by/used in operating activities

Operating activities refers to the cash generated or used In the normal service delivery functions of
Council. Cash remaining after paying for the provision of services to the community may be available
for investment in capital works, or repayment of debt.

The decrease in net cash flows from operating activities of $5.100 million is mostly due to a decrease
in capital gramts of $3.476 million, and an increase in materials and services of 51,770 million to
complete gram-funded projects carried forward from 2023/24.

The net cash flows from operating activities does not equal the surplus (deficit) for the year as the
expected revenues and expenses of Council indude non-cash items which have been excluded from
the Cash Flow Statement.

4.4.2 Net Cash Flows Provided by/used in Investing Activities

Investing activities refers to cash generated or used in the enhancement or creation of infrastructure
and other assets, These activities also include the acquisition and sale of other assets such as vehicles,
property, and equipment,

The payments for investing activities represent the proposed capital works program disclosed in
Section 4.5. The payments for property, infrastructure, plant, and equipment are budgeted to
decrease by $3.076 milion due to the decrease in non-recurrent capital grants budgeted in 2025/26.

4.4.3 Net Cash Flows Provided by/used in Financing Activities

Financing activities refers to cash generated or used In the financing of Council functions and Indude
borrowings from financial institutions. These activities also indude repayment of the principal
component of loan repayments for the year,

”l""
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For 2025/26 the total principal repayments will be 50,156 million and finance costs will be $0,002
million, resulting in Council’s current loan being fully repaid. Council is budgeting to take out no new
loans in 2025/26.

During 2023/24 Council entered into four leases for major plant items, and one further lease in
2024/25. For 2025/26 the Interest for the lease labilities will be $0.060 million and the lease
repayments will be $0.296 million.
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4.5  Capital Works Program
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4.6  Summary of Planned Capital Works Expenditure
For the four yeans ended 30 Juoe 2009
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Notes to Indicators

5a

1. Asset Renewal

This percentage indicates the extent of Councll's renewal and upgrade of assets against its depreciation charge (an
Indication of the decline In value of its existing capital assets). A percentage greater than 100 indicates Council Is
maintaining its existing assets, while a percentage less than 100 means its assets are deteriorating faster than they
are being renewed and upgraded, and future capital expenditure will be required to renew and upgrade assets. The
total capital works program for 2025/26 is $12.437 million.

2. Rates Concentration

Reflects the extent of reliance on rate revenues to fund all of Councdl’s on-going services. This Indicator
demonstrates Council relies heavily on rates as a source of income. The trend indicates Council will continue to be
refiant on rate revenue compared to all other revenue sources,

Sb

3. Adjusted Underlying Result

An indicator of the sustsinable operating result required to enable Council to continue to provide core services and
meet its objectives. The adjusted underlying result calculation indudes recurrent capital funding such as Roads to
Recovery funding.

4.  Unrestricted Cash

Council's cash and cash equivalents are subject to external restrictions that limit amounts available for discretionary
use, which includes trust funds and deposits, This indicator measures the proportion of current liabilities
represented by unrestricted cash,

5. Debt Compared to Rates
This indicator measures the level of Council's total debt as a percentage of rate revenue.
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6 Schedule of Fees and Charges

Council provides a range of services and its main sources of income are Rates and Charges and Government Grants.
Costing services is complex. The full cost of delivering services or providing a facility indudes the direct cost, such
as the cost of labour which could include part of the supervisor’s wage, materials, and plant hire to provide that
service; and indirect costs such as a range of “back office” operations that are not directly tied to the service, such

as payroll processing, information technology costs.

Pricing services is also complex as Council provides numerous “public” services (eg. public parks) as well as “private”
services (eg. waste collection, leisure centres and pools). Ideally, full cost recovery should be applied to “private”
services, In reality, recipients of the service may not be able to afford the full cost recovery. As full cost recovery is
not possible for 3 number of services, Councll is required to use rate income and other sources of income, such as
the Victorian Grants Commission general assistance grant, to subsidise the cost of providing these services,

Coundil reviews the income generated from fees and charges every year as part of the Budget process. Council
recognises statutory fees are set by legislation/regulation but attempts to maximise the amount of income
generated from other user fees,

This schedule presents the fees and charges of a statutory/non-statutory nature which will be charged in respect
to various goods and services during the financial year 2025/26.

Fees and charges are based on information available at the time of publishing and may vary during the financial
year subject to any changes in Council's policy or legislation.

This good'sanios i provided af no cost. The costy ane met entrely Fom rates and general parpose

(Z) Zero Cost Recowery Income. Generally, where thare 15 no fee or charge. e service provicled 15 not mensoned in e fees
and charpes st
The price for B goOd'senvice is sot 10 make 3 SENIGANT CONNDLUBON 1owirds the oSt of servioe
D Cont Ry provision. The remainder of the costs ase met rom e and Qenensl PUTPOSe NCOME.
(F) Fult Cost Recovery Tha price for Sus grodsenioe i et 1 recover Uw cont-of-sernce provesion.
(1) Regulatory The price for Sws goodsenics m a statudony charge st by povernment reguiation.

The price for Vs QOO SeNvoR 15 501 by Meference 10 (rioes Charped Jor SHMi DOOGS/Servioes. Dy
(V) Markat Price Hhie COuncis of COmOetions.
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Traditional Acknowledgement

Ararat Rural City Council acknowledges the
Traditional Owners of the land on which we
live and work, the Eastern Maar, Wotjobaluk,
Jaadwa, Jadawadijali, Wergaia, Jupagulk,
and Wadawurrung peoples, and recognise
their connection to the land and waterways.

We pay our respects to their Elders past,
present and emerging, and to all Aboriginal
and Torres Strait Islander people.
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Introduction

The Local Government Act 2020 requires Ararat Rural City Council to prepare a Revenue and Rating Plan to cover a
minimum period of four years following each Council election. The Revenue and Rating Flan ostablishes the revenue
raising framework within which the Counci proposes to work.

The pwposa of the Revenue and Rating Plan is 1o dotermine the most appropriate and affordeble ravenue and rating

approach for Coundl which in conjunction with other income sources will adequatsly finance the objoctives in the

Council Plan 2025.2029.

This plan is an important part of Counal’s integrated planning framework, all of which ks created to help Council
achieve the outcomes of the Community Vision 2035.

Strategles cutlined in this plan align with the objectives contained in the Coundl Plan and will feed into Council's
budgeting and long-tarm financial planning documants, as well as other strategic planning documents under

Council's strategic planning frameworl.

FINANCIAL PLAN

Councd 10 develop 3 Comprebinaive
10w financal plan 10 fund
Implamantaton of the
Community Vision 2005 and
Councll Man 2025-2029

REVENUE A RATING PLAN

Coundtl 10 adopt & Bevanus & ftating
PMan, which aligrm with sapeations
outhned In the Financial Pan aad

Councll Man 2005.2009

ANNUAL BUDGET

Councll 1o adopt 3 Budgat for
202526 whwch g with
implamentatcn of the Acvaaal Plan
and Coprital Works Program

COMMUNITY VISION 2028
Descrbos the 10year commmusty
BOron for ARCC
ASSET PLAN

Courvdl to develop 3 10.year

Asset Plan outhining stratege

appeoaches 1o management
of sach Asset Class

COUNCIL PLAN 2025 - 2029

Outining Councils strategic dvection

A1 PONON

WORKFORCE PLAN

Algrs with Councls sirategic
cbjectives by fostaniag a sitled
adaptable, and dwerse toam
ihat spports the effectve
implernentation of owr
Council Plan 2005-.2029
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This Plan will axplein how Coundil calculates the revenue needed to fund its activities, and how the funding
burden will be apportoned between ratepayers and othar users of Counc facilitios and services,

This plan will tet out decisions that Councl has made in relation to its available rating options under the Local
Government Act 1989 ind the Local Government Act 2020 to ensure the fair and equitable distribution of rates
scroes property owners, It will aleo set cut principles thet are uted in docition.-making for other reverwe sources such
os foes and chargos.

It it important 1o note that the spproach to rating ecuity utifisod in this plan is heavily influanced by the deliborations
of the Rating Strategy Advitory Group (RSAG) during 2017 and 2018 and endorsad by the subsequont Gitizen's Jury
convened in 2018,

It must also be noted that this plan does not sot reverue targets for Coundl. Rather, it outlines the strategic
framework and dedisions which inform how Council will go sbout calculating and collecting its revenue.
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Background

Coundcil provides several services to the community that Revenue wources 2024/2025 Budpet
are funded through a range of dfferent mechanisms. e

The revenus to maintain Ararat Rural City Counal’s Beeatatens

activity is funded from a range of diferent sources. PP ——

The graph below indicates sources of revenue from the SR —

2024/2025 Budgat. .

Council's revorue sources identfied in the 2024.2025 Budget were:
(sov0ee | Vi

Rates and charges 17,950,000
Opsratng grants 8,323,000
Statunory fees and fines 27200
Usar feas 1,515,000
Conributions 100,000
ome ] ]
As indicated above, Counal relies heavily on rates as Coundl have a strong commitmaent to driving
a revenue source, representing 474% of total rovenue organisational effickencies and returning ongoing
in the 2024/2025 Budget. It must be understood that savings as a dividend to the community In the last
a small rural coundl has few other significant revenue seven financial years this has yielded a net rate increase
sources open to it beyond rates and government of 0% compared to an increase of 16.25% available
grants. Increasing the levels of statutory fines and undar the Fair Go Rates System (FGRS)
feas or user fees only continues to levy revenue from
the municipal commurity, albait through a different Coundl proposes a 1.5% increase in the 20252024
machanism to rates and charges. budget compared to an increase of 3% available under

FGRS, as sean in the table below,
Council's Community Plan 2025-2029 identifies
mantenance of Counc service provsion, development
of community assets and enabling infrastnucture,

circular econcmy outo and e growth as

koy cutcomes.

R L I =
ey 0.00%

190D 2%

aoen -100%
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Community Engagement

The Rovenue and Rating Plan outhnas Ararat Rural City
Council's decision-making process on how revenues
are calculated and collected. The following public
consultation processes will be followed for the Revenue
and Rating Plan 2025-2029:

¢ Draft Ravenue and Rating Plan developed by
CEQ, Councllors and Cound officers.

¢ Draft Rovenue and Rating Plan postad to
engage.araratvic.gov.au on 11 April 2025 for
community engagemant, suggested indusions
and public commant. Online engagement and
submission procass ends on Friday 9 May 2025,

* Face-to-face community angegamant sessions
will be held in Ararat, Buangor, Eimhurst, Tatyoon,
Lake Bolac, Moyston, Pomonal, Tatyoon end Willaura
to sook foadback on the Flan in the week
commaencing 28 Apeil 2025,

' / A

S

=

P

¢ Final Revenue and Rating Plan adopted by
Council on Tuasday 24 June 2025.

It is important to acknowledge that the underpinning
philosophy of Counal’s Revenue and Rating Plan rests
in the cutcomes of axtensive delberative ongagemeant
processes undartaken through the RSAG and the
Citizan's Jury in 2017 and 2018, These processes
establishod a very dear modal of rating faimess based
on consistent sharing of the rate burden among the four
rating sectors establshed theough Council's differential
rating modal. These fouwr rating sectors are Genaral,
Industrial, Commercal and Farm. The modal for
distribution of the rating burdan is colloguially named
the “pie model®, and will bo discussed in more datail
lator in this document,

10712



29 APRIL 2025
COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES

Rates and Charges

Rates are essontially proparty taxes that allow Ararat
Rural City Council to ralse revenue to fund delivery
of a range of sarvices for the municpal community.
Importantly, it is a taxation system that indudes
flaxdbility for councils to utilise diffarant tools in its
rating structure to accommodats kssues of equity and
to ensure fakrness in rating for all ratepayers. Councils
can use these tools in different ways to yleld results
sean as fair by their comenunities.

Council utilises a rating structure comprised of three
kay olements. Those ara:

* General Rates - Basod on proparty values (using
the Capital Improved Veluation methodology),
which aco indicative of capacity to pay and form
the cantral basis of rating under the Local
Governmaent Act 1982 Within the general rating
model are four differentiated rating sactone
Gonecal, Industrial, Commarcal and Farm,

* Service Charges - A "usar pays’ a component of
Council sorvices 1o reflect banofite provided by
Coundll to ratepayars who benefit from a servica.
The anly Sarvice Charge applied by Council
is the Waste Charge, appled to domestic waste
managemant.

* Municipal Charge - Councl spplies a Municipal
Charge as a fixed rate’ portion pee property or
single farm ontorprise to cover soma of the fixed
administrative costs of Coundil,

GENERAL RATES

The formula for calcudating General Rates, axduding
any additional charges, arrears or additional
supplementary rates is:

Vilustion (Capital Impvovedd Vakia) x Rate in the Dol

(Dhflerontial Bate Type)

The rate in the dollar for each rating differontial
category is included in Council's aenusl Budgot and
repretants Council’s kay mechanism for building a
rating model which thares rating burden predictably
and fairly botweon the four rating sectors.

Ararat Rural City

Rates and charges are an important source of

ravenue, accounting for 47.6% of the budgeted
operating revenue for 2024/25. The collaction of rates
is a considarable factor in funding Council sarvices.
Planning for future rate increases Is tharefore an
essantial component of the long-term financial planning
process and plays a sgnificant role in funding both
additional service delivery and the increasing costs
relatad to providing Coundl services.

Council makes a further distinction when administaring
General Ratos by applying a rating differential based
on the purpose for which tha property is used; that i,
whather the proparty is used for ganaral, commaerdal,
industrial, or farming purposes. This distinction is based
on the concept that dfferent property catagories
should pay a fair and equitable contribution, taking into
account the benefits those properties derive from the
local commurity,

Council have made o dear decision, supported by
the cutcomas of the Rating Strategy Advisory Group
(RSAG) and Citizen's Jury, and by the community
more ganarally, that rating fairness is mossurod by a
consistant sharing of “rates burdan® batween rating
sactors from year to year. It has bacome known as the
“pie modal® through the RSAG process. The modal
mandates that each year, sach rating sector shodld
contribute a vary similar amount of the rating “pie”.
This reflacts the intent of Section 101(1)c) of the Locel
Govarnmaent Act 2020 which requires that councils
*seok to provide stabilty and peodictability in the
financial impact on the municipal community”,

Within Azarat Rural City Coundil, the modal’s outcome

describes a rating system which should support the
following rating burden among the four sectors:

[Rathg Sectos | Rates “borden”

Commeorcial Sxr%
Fam Land 41.40%
100.00%
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These figures are based on the rates burden data from

the 2024/2025 Budget, adjusted annually to uphold
consistant equalsation of the rates burden.

To maintain consistency in tha percentage of rating
burdan across the four rating sectors, it is critical to
undarstand that the differential s not a “discount” ora
fixad ebamant which underpins rating fairness. Rather,
itis an econcmic laver 10 be usad to ensure thet the
currant rates burden is maintained betwean rating
sectors.

This equilibrium in burden between rating sectors

is often distrbed through asymmetric changes

in property valustions betwoen rating tectors.

If valustions in one sector increase or decreasts
disproportionately 1o the overall movement in
valuations, the proportion of retes paid by one sector
becomes skewed, requiring adjustment through
alteration of onae or more differentials,

Council will continuze to attampt to minimise the impact
of rating burden on tha entire municipal community
through seeking ongoing organisationsl efficencies
during the life of the Revenue and Rating Plan 2025-
229, Thase savings will be returned ae 8 dvidend to

community,

Theeo is a genaral “understanding” in the local
goveenmant sector that forgoing the opportunity to
increase ratos 1o the maximum allowed under the FGRS
results in significant lotses in future ravenue which
undormines ongoing crgonisational sustainabidity,
particularly in emall rural councils, Council challonges
this thinking on the basis that delivering ongoing snd
sustainable officiancios has the tame impact on long-
torm sustainability as incrossing the rate baso. There
may be rate increaces in the period 2025.2027 to meot
incroasod costs, but the first option to bo exercisod wil
always bo officiency dividends.

RATING LEGISLATION

Tho legislative framework tat out in the Locsl
Government Act 1989 determinos Ararst Rueal City
Councls ability to develop a rating system. The
framework provides significant flexibility for Councl 1o
tador o systom that suits its noods.

Ararat Rural City

Section 155 of tho Local Government Act 1967 provides
that a council may dedare the following rates and
charges on rateable land:

General Rates under Section 158
Munidpal Chargas undar Saction 159
Sarvice Ratos and under Section 162
Spedal Rates and Charget undor Section 163

The recomemendod strategy in rolation to Municipel
Charges, Sarvice Ratos and Charges, and Spocial Rates
and Chergos, is discussod later in this document.

In raising coundl rates, Coundl is requited to primarily
uso the valuation of the rateable property to levy
ratos. Soction 157 (1) of the Local Government Act
1989 provides Council with threo choices in terms of
which valuation base to utiliso: Site Value (SV), Capital
Improved Value {CIV) and Nat Annual Vialuo (NAVY

The advantages and disadvantages of the respective
valuation bases are dscussad later in this document.
Whikst this document outlinee Council's stratogy
regarding rates rovonue, rates dats is contained in
Council's Annual Budgot as required by the Local
Governmont Act 2020.

Section M(2) of the Local Government Act 2020 states
that Coundil must adopt a budget by 30 June each yoar
{or at another time fixad by the Minister) to indude:

8} the total amount that the Coundl intends to raise by
rates and charges.

b) a statemont as to whathar the rates will be raised by
the application of a uniform rate or a differential
rate,

& o description of aey fixed component of the rates, if
spplicablo.

d) if the Council proposes to declare a uniform rate,
the matters specified in saction 160 of the Local
Government Act 1989.

o) If tha Council proposes to declare a differential rate
for any land, the matters specfied in section 161(2)
of tha Local Government Act 1989,
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Section 94(3) of the Locel Government Act 2000 also
statos that Coundl must ensure that, if applicable, the
Budget also contains a statornent —

a) that the Coundl intends to apply for » special Order
to increase the Council’s average rate cap for the
financial year or any othor financial yoar; or

b) that the Coundl has made an application to the ESC
for a special Ordar and is waiting for the outcome of
the application; or

©) that a specisl Order has boen made in respect of
the Council and specifying the avecage rato cap that
opplioe for the financial yeor or ary other financial
yoor.

Thie plan outines the principles and stratogic
framowork that Coundil will utdise in calculating and
distributing the rating burden to property owners,
howaver, the quantum of rate revenue and rating
difforantial amounts will be dotermined in the annual
Council Budget.

RATING PRINCIPLES

Whan daveloping differential rates within a Revenue
and Rating Plan, Ararat Rural City Council gives
consideration to the following good practice taxation
princples

* Woalth Tax

Equity

Efficiency

Simplicity

Benefit

Capacity to Pay

Diversity

Wealth Tax

Thoe “wealth tax” principle Implies that the rates paid
are dependent upon the value of a ratepayer’s real
proparty and have no correlation to the individusl
ratepayer’s consumption of services or the perceived
banefits darived by individual ratepayers from

the expondtures funded from rates.

290480 '@

Equity

Hosizontal aquity — posits that ratepayers in similar
situations should pey similar amounts of rates,
primarily ensured through sccurste proporty valuaticns
undortaken in o consistent mannaer, their classification
into homogeneous property classes sad the right of
appoal against valuation,

Vortical oquity - posits that those who are better

Ararat Rural City

off should pay groater rates than those worse off.
The rationale applies for the use of progressive and

proportional income taxation and imples a “relativity”
dimension to tha fairness of the tax burden.

Efficdeacy

Economic officency is measured by the extent to
which ratos are offocted by residenty” production and
coneumption dedsions.

Simplicity

Simplicity denotes how casily a rates system can be
undarstood by ratepayers slangside the practicality
and ease of its administration.

Benefit

Benefnt refers to the extent to which there is a naxus
betwean consumption/®enefit and the rete burden.

Capacity to Pay

Capacty refors 1o the capacity of ratepayers or groups
of ratopayers to pay ratos.

Diversity
Divarsity donotos the capacity of ratepayers within a
group to pay rates.

The rating chalange for Coundl is to determine
the appropriste balancing of these compaeting
condderations.

Rates and Charges Reveaus Principles

Property rates wilk

* bo reviewed annually.

* not changoe dramatically from one yoar to next; and

* bo suffident to fund current exponditure
commitmants and deliverables outlined in the
Council Plan, Financial Plan and Astet Plan.

Difforontial rating will be applied as oquitably as is
practical and will comply with the Ministerial Guidelines
for Difforontial Rating 2013,
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PROPERTY VALUATION BASE

Under the Local Government Act 1985, Ararat Rural City
Council has three options as to the veluation base it
olects to use. Thoy are:

* Capital Improved Value (CIV) - Vilue of land and
improvements upon the land,

* Site Value (SV) - Value of land only.

* Net Annual Value (NAV) - Rontal valuation bated
on CIV,

For tesidential and farm propectios, NAV is caloulated
8t 5 por cont of the Capital Improved Value. For
commercial and industrial propertios, NAY is
calculstod as the groator of the ectimated annual rental
value or 5 per cont of the CIV,

Capital Improved Value (CIV)

Capital Improved Value is the valuation base most
commonly used by local government, and Victorian
councile. Basod on the value of both land and all
impeovemaonts on the land, it is gonerally easily
undorstood by ratepayers as it ogquates to the market
value of the property.

Section 161 of the Local Government Act 1989 provides
that a council may raise any Goneral Rstos by the
application of a dfferential rate if -

) it uses the capital improved valuo systom of valuing
land; and

b) it considors that a difforential rate will contribute to

the equitable and officiont carrying out of its
functions.

Whare a council does not wtilise CIV, it may only apply
limited differential rates in relation to farm land, urban
faem land or residential use land.

Advantages of using Capital improved Valus (CIV)
¢ CNindudaes all proparty improvemants and
is therefore often supportad on the basis that it
more cdosely reflacts “capacdity to pay®. The CIV
rating method considers the full developmeant valus
of the proparty, and more dlosely meats the
oquity critaria than Site Value and NAV.

* Tha increased fraquency of valuations
(prewviously two-year intervals, now annual
intervals) has rosultad in more predictable market
values, reducing the lavel of objections resulting
feom valuations.

¢ The concept of a proparty’s market value is more

easily undarstood undar the CIV rather than NAV or

SV

* Most coundls in Victoria have now adopted CIV
making It simplor to compare rolative

movermants in ratas and veluations across councils,

* The use of IV allowa Council to apply
differantial rates which greatly improves Council's
ability to equitably distribute the mting burden
based cn ability to affoed Council rates. CIV allows
Council to spply higher rating differentials to the
commerdal and industrial sectors, which offset
residential rates.

Disadvantages of exing CIV

* The main dsadvantage of CIV is that rates are based

Ararat Rural City

on the total proparty value which may not nacessarily

raflect the incoma level of the property cwnar
2 with persionars and low-income eamars.

She value (V)

Aa the Site Value methedology is based solely on
the waluation of land with caly very limited ability

to spply the differential rates, the implemantation
of Séte Vishuo within Ararat Rursl City Council contest
would cause a shift in rate burden from the industrial/
commarcial soctors onto the residential sector,
hindaring Councils objective of » fair and equitable
rating systam.

SV would cause further rating movements sway

from modem townhoute style developments

on rolatively emall land paccels to older establichod
homes on quarter acre residential blocks. An

ety argumant would not bo woll teeved by the
implemantation of SV within Ararat Rural City Council.

Advartages of Site Value

* There is a parception that under SV, a uniform rate
would promate development of land, particularly
commercial and industrial developments. However,
thore is Mtla evidence to support this case.

* SV provides scope for possible concessions for
urban farmland and residential use land.
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Disadvantages of using Site Value

* 5V would prompt a significant shift of the rating
burdan froen the industrislcommercial sector onto
the residential sector. In many ceses, the percentage
increasaes would fall in the “extreme’ ranga,

* 5V ie a mejor burden on proparty ownars who
hold large areas of land. Some of thase cwnars
may have much smaler/oldar dwallings compared
to those who cwn smaller land areas but well
deweloped dwellings, though the former pay more
rates. An A typical examgle i the owners of
flats, units, or townhoutas paying low
rates compared to ownars of traditional housing
stylos.

* The use of SV can place pressure on a counal
to give conceasions to categonies of landownars
on whom the rating burden is seen to fall
duproportionataly (e g, farming and residential
use proparties) Large landowners, such as
farmars, are disadvantaged undar the SV
mathodology.

o SV will radduce Council's rating flexibility and
options to deal with any rating inequities due 1o the
removal of the ability to levy differential rates,

*  The community may have greater difficulty
in understanding the SV valuation on their rate
notices, as indicated by many inquiries from
ratepayers on this issue handled by Council's
customer sarvice and property revenue staff each
yoor.

Net Annual Value (NAV)

In concept, NAV ropeosants the annusl rontal value of &
proparty. Howover, in practice, NAV is loosely linked to
Capital Improved Value for Residantial and

Farm propertios. Valuores darive the NAV directly as S
por cont of CIV.

In contrast to the treatmont of Residential and Farm
propartios, the NAV for Commerdial and Industrial
propartios ic sscassod against actusl market rental.
This differing treatment of commercial vorsus
residentisl and farm propertios has lod to some
suggestions that all proportios should be valued on &
rantal basis.

Ovorall, the use of NAV is not largely supported.
For Residential and Farm ratepayers, actual rental
valuos pose probloms, the artificial rontal ostimate used

Ararat Rural City

may not reprasent actual market value, and means the
base is the same as CIV but is harder to understand.

Recommendad valuatioa base

In choosing a valuation basa, councils must decide
whathar they wish to adept & differential rating
systam (diferent rates in the dollar for different
property categories) or a uniform rating system fsame
rate in the dollar). If a councl ware to choose the
formar, under tha Locel Govarmment Act 1989 it must
adopt either of the CIV or NAV methods of rating,

Asarat Rural City Council applies Capital Improved

Value (CIV) to all propartias within the munidpality

to take Into account the fully developed velue of the
property. This basis of valuation considers the total

market value of the land plus bulldings and othar

improvemaents.

Undar the CV method, differential rating allows
Council to shift part of the rate burden from some
groups of ratepayars to others, through diferant “rates
in the doflar” for each class of property,

Section 1561(1) of the Local Governmaent Act
1989 outlines the requiremants relating to differential
rates, which include:

8 A council may raise ory General Rates
by the application of a differential rate, if Councd
consicders that the differential rete will contribute to
the equitable and efficient carrying out of its
functions,

b) ¥ a council declares a difforantial rate for any
land, the council must spocify the objectives
of the dfferontial rate, which must be consistent
with the equitablo and efficiont carrying out of the
coundl’s functions and must includa the following:

{0 A definition of the types or dasses
of land which are subject to the rate and a
statemant of the reasons for the use and lovel
of that rate.

() An identification of the type or classes of
land which are subjoct to the rate in respect
of the uees, geographic location (other than
location based on whother the land is within &
spocific ward in the coundl’s district).

(i} Spocify the characteristics of the land,
which are the critaria for declaring the
differential rate.
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Once the councll has declared a differential rate for

any land, tha coundl must:

a) Specify the objectives of the ddferential rates;

b) Specify the charactaristics of tha land which are
the critaria for dedaring the differential rate.

The purposa is 1o ersure that & council has a sound
basis on which to develop the variows charging features
whan detarmining its revenue strategies and to ensure
that these are corsistant with the provisions of the
Local Goweenment Act 1989,

The general objectives of each of the differentisl
rates are to ensure that all rateable land makes an
equitable finandal contribution to the cost of carrying
out the functions of Council. There is no limit on the
numbear or types of diferantial rates that can ba levied,
but the highest diffarential rate can ba no more than
four times tha lowest differential rate.

Propecty Valuations

The Valustion of Land Act 1960 i the principal
logidation in determining property valustions, Under
the Valustion of Land Act 1960, the Victorion Vialuer-
Gonocal conducts property valustions on an annual
basis. Ararat Rural City Coundl apphies a Capital
Impeoved Value (CIV) to all propertios within the
municipality to take into account the full developmant
value of the property. This basis of valustion considers
the total market value of the land including bulldings

and other improvemaents.

Tho value of land is shways derived by the principle
of valuing land for its highest and best use at the
relovant time of valuation.

Coundil must be mindfu of the impacts of revalustions
on the various proparty types in implamanting the
differontial rating strategy outlined in the previous
section to ensure that rises and falls in Coundl Rates
remain affordsble and that rating ‘shocks’ are mitigatod

to some dagree.

Supplementary Valuations

Supplamentary valuations are carmed out for a

variaty of ressons induding rezoning, subdivisions,
amalgamations, renavations, niw constructions,
axtonsions, cccupancy changes and comrections.

The Valuee-Ganeral Victoria is tasked with undertaking
supplomantary valuations and advises Coundl
monthly of veluation and Australian Valustion Property
Classification Code (AVPCC) changes.

Ararat Rural City

Supplamantary valustions bring the value of the
affected property Into kne with the general valuation of
othar proparties within the municipality. Objections to
supplomentary valuations can be lodged in accordance
with Part 3 of the Vialuation of Lend Act 1950. Any
objections must be lodgad with Council within two
months of the issua of the supplementary rate notice.,

Objections te property valuations

Part 3 of the Valuation of Lend Act 1960 provides thet
a property owner may lodge an objection

against the valustion of & property or the Australisn
Valuation Property Classification Code (AVPCC) within
two months of the issue of the original or smended
(rupplomontary) Rates and Valuation Charges Notice
(Rates Notice), or within four months if the notico was
not originally issued to the occupier of the land.

A proparty owner must lodge their objection to
the valuation or the AVPCC in writing to Ararat Rural
Gty Council, or via the rating valustion objections
portal,

Propecty ownors aleo have the sbility to object

to the tite valuations on receipt of theic Land Tax
Aszossment. Property owners can sppeal their land
valuation within two months of receipt of their Council
Rate Notice (via Coundil) of within two months of
rocoipt of their Land Tax Astessment (via the State
Rovenue Office).

RATING DIFFERENTIALS

Asarat Rural City Council believes each differential rate
will contribute to the equitable and efficent carrying
out of Council Functions. Tha application of the “ple
moedal® in tarms of a generally accepted community
measure of rating equity has been discussed previously
s a koy driver of the rating sectors developed under
Council's Ravenua and Rating plan 2025-2029.

Datails of the objectives of aach differential rate, the
dasses of land which are subject to each ddfarantial
rate and the uses of each dfferantial rate, are set out
below.
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General Rate

Definition: General land is any rateable land which
doas not have the characteristics of Farm Rate land and
Commarcial/industrial Rate land.

Objectives: Tha objectives are to ensure that Council
has adequate funding to undertake its strategic,
statutory, service provision and community services
oblgations and to ensure that the differential rate

in the dollar dedlared for defined General Rate land
proparties is fair and equitable, having regard to the
cost and the lovel of benefits darived from provision of
Coundll services.

Characternstics: The characteristics of the planning
schame zoning are applicable to the detarmination

of vacant land which will be subject to the rate of
residential land. The vacant land affectad by this rate Is
that which is zoned Residential undar the Ararat Rural
City Council Planning Schema. The classification of

tha land will be determined by the occupation of that
land for its best use and have referancs to the planning

schome zoning,
Types and Classes Mlmdhodnglhonlmt
charactoristics described below:

a) used primarily for residential purposes; or
b) any land that is not defined as Farm Land or
Commarcial/industrial Land.

Use of Rate: The General Differantial Rate is the
default rate in instances where land does not maat

the characteristics of any other differentiol rate. it will
be used to fund items of sxpenditure described in the
Budget adopted by Council. The level of the dfferential
rata i the lavel which Coundl considers necessary to
achiowe the objectives specified above.

Lavel of Rate: 00% of General Rate.

Use of Lund: Any use permitted under the Ararat Rural
City Council Planning Scheme,

Gaographic Location: Wherever located within the
municipal dietrict.

Flanning Scheme Zoning: The zoning applcable to
oach ratesblo land within this category, ae dotermined
by consulting mape reforonced in the relovant Ararst
Rural City Council Planning Scheme.

Ararat Rural City

Types of Buildings: All buildings which are already
constructod on the land, or which are constructed prioe
to the end of the fnandal yoor.

Farm Rate

Definition: Farm Land means any ratosble land within
Council's municipsl district dofinod as Farm Land
undar Section 2 of the Valustion of Land Act 1960, on
the condition that the owner or occupier of the land
is 8 person carrying on the activitios dofinod by the
Valustion of Land Act 1960, and who is rogarded as a
Primary Producer by the Australian Taxation Office.

Section 2(1) of the Valustion of Land Act 1960 states:

a) Farm Land means any ratesblo land that is 2 or more
hectares in aroa.
b) Usad primarily for primary producing purposes from
its activitios on the land, used primarily for grazing
(nduding agistment), dairying, pig farming, poultry
farming, fish farming, tree farming, bee keeping,
viticulture, horticulture, frust growing or the growing
of crops of any kind or for any combination of those
activitiex; and
That is used by o business -
¢ That has a significant and substantial
commarcial purpose of character

¢ That secks to make a peofit on a continuous or
repatitive basis from its activities on the land;
and

*  That is making a profit from its activities on the
land, or that has a reasonable prospect of
making a profit from its activities on the land if
it continuas to oparate in the wey that itis

oparating.

Objactives: The objectivas are to ensure that Coundil
has adequate funding to undartake its strategic,
statutory, service provision and community services
obligations and to ensure that the differential rate in the
doller declered for definad Farm Rate land peopertias
is fair and equitable, having regard to the cost and
the lowel of banefits derived from provision of Coundl
services with considerations to maintain agriculture ss a
major industry in the municipel district, to faclitate the
longevity of the farm sector, and 1o achieve o belance
between providing for municipal growth and retsining
the important agricultural economic base,
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Charscteristice: The characteristics of the planning
schama zoning are applicable to the detarmination

of Farm Land which will be subject to the rate of Farm
Land. The classification of the land will be detarmined
by the occupation of that land for its best use and have
reference to the planning scheme zoning.

Types and Classes: Farm Land having the relevant
charactaristics described below:

a) used primacily for primary production purposes by
oan owner or occupier who is regarded as & Primary
Producer by the Australian Taxation Office; or

b) any land that is not defined as General Land or
Commarcial/industrial Land.

Use of Bate: The differential rate will be used to fund

itame of expenditure described in the Budget adopted
by Councd. The lovel of the differential rata is the lavel
which the Coundll corsidars is necessary to achiove the

objactives specified above,

Lavel of Rate: The level of the rate will be determined
anaally by Councd and the comenunity in preparation
and adoption of Council's Budget. The Farm differantial
is an aconomic lever reguired to maintain consistancy in
rating burden between rating sectore, It is proposed to
be 39% of the General Rate in 2025/26.

Uss of Land Anyunp«mudondu the Asaeat Rural
City Council Flanning Scheme,

Geographic Location: Wherever lecsted within the
municipal dietrict.

Planning Scheme Zoning: The zoning spplicable to
oach retable land within this category, es determined
by consulting mape rofarred to in the relevant Ararat
Rural City Council Planning Scheme.

Types of Buildings: All buildings which aro alroady
constructed on the land, or which are constructed prioe
to the ond of the financial yoar.

Ratopayers who wish to daim the Farm Rato are

required to complote the Application for Farm Land
Classification provided in Appendix 2.

Ararat Rural City

Commercial/lndustrial Rate

Although acknowledged as two saparate rating sectors,
the rationale for striking a Commercial/industrial

differential rate is the same and will be described as a
single class in the Revenue and Rating Plan 20252029,

Defnmon: Commercialindustrial Lmdnmylmd

which is:

a) Usod primarily for carying out the manufacture
or production of or trade in goods or services
(nduding tourist fadilities and in the case of &
business providing accommodation for tourists, is
prescribed accommodation under the Public Health
and Wellbeing Act (Vig 2008; or

b) Unoccupied building erected which is zoned
Cormmercial or Industrial under the Ararat Rural City
Council Planning Scheme; or

) Unoccupied land which ks zoned Commardial or
Industrial under the Ararat Rural City Counal

Planning Schema.

Objectives: Tha objectives are to ensure that Coundl
has adequate funding to undertaka its strategic,
statutory, service provition and community services
obligations and to ensure that the differontial rate in
the dollar declared for definad CommerdialAndustrisl
Rate land properties is fair and equitabla, having regerd
to the cost and the lavel of banefits derived from
provision of Coundil services.

The commerdal businesses of Coundl benofit

from significant ongoing irvestment by Councll in
services and infrastructure. Council also notes the tax
deductbility of Council rates for commaeecial properties
which is not available to the residontial sector, and the
income generating capability of commardial based
properties.

The Commarcial differential rate is applied to promote
the economic development objectives for Ararat Rural
City Council as cuthined in the Council Plan. These
objectives indude a significant ongoing investmant to
create a vibrant aconomy and include the maintanance
and improvemaent of towriem infrastructure,
construction and maintenance of public infrastructure,
dovelopmant and provision of health and community
services, and the general provision of support services
and promotion of business in the municipality,
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Characteristics: The characteristics of the planning
schame zoning are applicable to the detarmination of
vacant land which will be subject to the rate applicable
to Comenarclal/industrial Land. The classification of
the land will be determined by the occupation of that
land for its best use and have referance to the planning

schame zoning,

Types and Classss: Commarcalindustrial having the
relovant characteristics described below:

0) used primarily for commaercal purposes; or
b) any land that is not defined ss General Land or Farm
Land.

Use of Rate: The differential rate will be used to fund
items of sxpenditure described in the Budget adopted
by Council. The lavel of the differential rate is the lavel
which Coundl considers necessary to achleve the

objectives specified above,

Luvel of Rute: The lvel of the rate will be determined
anaually by Coundd and the community in preparation
and sdopticn of Council's Budget. The differential rate
is an economic lever required to maintain consistancy n
rating burden betwean rating sectors, It is proposed to
be 135% of the General Rate in 2025726, It is less likely
that the Comenercial/industrial diffecontial will need to
be ohtered significantly from Budget to Budget as there
ore much loes volatile property mackete in these two
rating sectore.

Uss of Land: Any ute permitted under the Ararat Rurel
City Council Planning Scheme,

Geographic Location: Whaeraver located within the
municipal district.

Planning Scheme Zoning: The zoning applcsble to
oach rateablo land within this category, as determined
by consulting maps reforred to in the relovant Ararat
Rural City Council Mlanning Scheme.

Types of Buildings: All buildings which are alroady
constructed on the land, or which are constructed prior
to the and of tho financial yoar.

MUNICIPAL CHARGE

Anothar princpel rating option avallable to Council is
the spplication of a Municipal Charge. Under Section
159 of the Local Govemment Act 1989 Counci may
declare a Municipal Charge to cover some of the
administrative costs of Coundl. The legislation is not
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definitive on what comprises administrative costs and
does not require Coundl to spedfy what is covered by
the charga. The application of 8 Municipal Charge
ropresants a choica to raise a portion of the rates by a
flat fee for all properties and farm enterprises, rather
than sole use of the CIV vehuation mathed.

Under the Local Government Act 1989, a coundl’s total
revanue from a Municipal Charge in a financial year
must not exceod 20 per cant of Council's total revenue
from the Municipal Charge and the revenue from
Ganoeal Ratos (total rates),

The Muricipal Charga is based on the recovery of

a fixad cost of providing administrative services
irrespective of valuation. The same contribution
amount per assessmant to cover a portion of Councl’s
administrativa costs can be seen as an equitable
mathod of recovanng these costs.

SPECIAL CHARGE SCHEMES

The Local Government Act 1989 recognises that
coundls need help 1o provide impeoved infrastructure
for their local communitios. Legislation allows councils
to pass on the cost of capital infrastructure to the
ownor of a property that generally receives a unigque
benofit from the conetruction works, The technical
explanstion of a Spedal Charge comes from legislation
{under the Local Governmont Act 1989) which allows
coundls to recover the cost of works from property
ownors who will gsin spedisl bonefit from that work.

The purposes for which Spedal Rates and Special

Chargoes may bo used indude road construction, kerb

and channelling, footpath provision, drainage, and

The Special Rate or Spadial Charges may be

dadlared based on any critenia specified by the

coundl in the rate (Section 143 (2)). In accordance

with Section 163 (3), council must specify:

a) the wards, groups, uses or aress for which the
spocial rate or charge is declared; and

b) the land in rolation to which the Special Rate or
Spocial Charge is declarad;

Q the way the Spedal Rato or Special Charge will be
assessod and levied, and

d) details of the pariod for which the Special Rete or
Special Charge remaing in force.
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Tho Spadial Rates and Charges provitions aro flaxible and can be used to achieve a wide range of community
objoctives. The fundamental principle of Spacial Ratos and Charges is proof “spedal benefit” spplies to those being
lavied. For examplo, theca charges could be used to fund the construction of footpaths for spedific properties.

SERVICE RATES AND CHARGES

Section 162 of the Local Government Act 1987 provides Ararat Rural City Council with the opportunity to raise
service rates and chargas for any of the following services:

The provision of a water supply.

The collaction and disposal of refuse.
The provision of sewage services.
Any other prescribed service.

Council currently applas a service charge for the collection and disposal of garbage, recyding, glass, and organics
for residances located on both wiban and rural propaerties. Coundl retains the cbjective of setting the service

charge for wasta at a level that fully recovers the cost of the waste services, including providing for future lancill
rehabilitation costs. Wasta charges are not capped under the Fair Go Rates System, howevee, Coundl will continue
to minimise future increases in waste and recyding charges based on effidencies, services raview, and effective
implamaentation of Circudar Economy Policy.
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Collection and

Ararat Rural City

Administration of Rates

Aracat Rural City Council is committod to providing the
most flaxible, fair, and equitable approach to collaction
of rates and charges that is reasonably possible. The
purpose of this saction is to outline the rate payment
options, processes, and the support provided to
ratepayers facing financlal hardship. A recent
Owmbudsman's inquiry into ratepayers facing financlal
hardship highlightad ARCC as one of the more
rasponsive councils in managing these lssues.

Payment options

In accordance with section 167(1) of the Local
Government Act 1989 ratepeyers must be allowed
to pay rates and charges by way of four instalmaents.
Paymants are due on the prescribed dates below:

*  lst instalment: 30 Septeenber
*  2nd Instalmant: 30 November
¢ 3rd Instalment: 28 February
o ath Instalmont: 31 May

Council aleo sllows payment in a lump sum on 15
February each yoar,

Should any porson pay an amount equivalant to their
first instalment on or before 20 October cach yoar,
Council will consider the paymont as an instalment
payment. Should any poerson pay an amount equivalont
to their frst instalmont after 20 October cach your,
Council will congider the paymant as an amount
towards the lump sum option and the rates will then be
due by 15 February.

Council offers a range of paymaent options including:

* In poerson at Coundl offices via chaqua, monoy
order, EFTPOS, credit/debit card or cash,

* Diract debit - Ratepayars have the option to pay
rates and chargas by monthly, fortnightly or weeldy
paymants, free of interest. Ratepayers can also pay
by lump sum or by instalments,

. BPAY,

o Austraiia Post - over the countar, over the phone via
crocht card and on the internet,

* Mal - cheque and money order only,

* Orndine - on Coundls website (araratvic.gov.au), or

* Online - directly from an eNotices emad or by using
the QR Code on rate notices.

Interast on arrears and overdue rates

Imerest it charged on oll overdue rates in
accordance with Section 172 of the Locsl Government
Act 1982 The maximum intecast rate applied is
dotermined by the Minister and published by notice in
the Governmant Gazette,

Council may axempt any parson from paying the whole
or part of any interest amount generally or spacifically
undar Section 172 (3).

To sssist ratepayers furthes in the paymaent of ratee
and charges, Council will allow o grace period of 30
days before interest is applied to late instalmaents

and late lumg sumn payments. This will sllow reminder
natices to be sent free of intarest which will sssist in the
administration of payments,

Council officers have the authority to write off property
balances of $10 or less if the balance is related to
intorost now being calcul sted daily.

Pensioner rebates

Holders of a Controlink or Veterans” Affairs

Pencion Concession cord or a Veterans” Affairs

Gold card which stipulates TP or War Widow may
daim a rebate on their sole or principal place

of residence. Upon initial application, ongoing
ohigibdity s maintained, unless rejected by Centrelink
or tha Departmant of Votorans' Affairs during the
annual varification procedure. Upon confirmation

of an cligible parsioner concession status, the
pensioner rebate is deducted from the rate

account before payment is required by the ratepayer.

New pensionar apphcants may, after being

granted a Pansioner Concession Card (PCC),

apply for the rebate at any time throughout the

rating year, Retrospective daims up to 8 maxamum

of ane prardous financal year can be sppeoved by
Council on verification of eligibility criteria, For padiods
prior to this, daims may be approved by the relavant
govemmant departmaent,
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Trust for Nature Rebate

A consorvation covenant is a voluntary sgreement
betwean Trust for Netwe and o property owner, Itie
placed on the tite of the land to ensure that the natural
bushland is permanently protected.

In 202572026, n accordance with saction 1691) (¢) of
the Local Government Act 1989, Council hae proposed
to offer o rate rebote to property owners who regicter
o Trust for Nature conservation covenant on their
property, Tho robate scknowledges the long-tern
commitment of thete proparty owners to conserving
the biodversity of their land. Landownars will receive
o robate of up 1o $20 per hoctare of land placed under
covenant, with 8 maximum payment of $500,

Rates Assistance, Waivers and Deferrals

Council acknowledges that ratepayers may exparience
financial hardship for s wide range of issues and that
meeting rate obligations constitutos just one elemant
of soveral difficulties that a ratepayer may face. The
simplost description of hardship is "a customer or
ratepayer who wants to pay but cannot”.

Any ratopayor who is experiencing financial difficulty
is advised that Coundl is sympathetic to their financial
situstion and that Saxiblo ropaymant plans can be

deweloped based on their ability to pay.

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 171A of the
Locsl Gowernment Act 1985, a porson who is suffering
financial hardehip or would suffor financial hardehip

if that parson had to pay the full rate may apply to
Council for tha waiver of the whole or part of the rates
or interest chargoad for late payment.

Council may require the person to give further detads
o¢ to werify particulars. An application form to fadlitste
consideration of a requost for deferral or waiver of rates
Is required to bo completed JAppaendix 1)

Applications for the waiver of rates will only be

considered based on genuine hardship, supported by
another government agency, welfare group or finandal
counsallor. The intant of providing a waiver will be to
allow the ratepayer to overcome immediate finandal
difficulties with a cupported finandal plan to ensure
that future commitmants to rates and other household

payments can be accommodated.

Waiver of rates will only apply to rates on the
ratepayer’s primary ressdence. This excludes
comenarcial properties, industrial properties, residential
investment properties - and in most casaes - farm
properties. Apphcations for waiver will be considered
#s & confidential report 1o Counail,

Applications for the deferral of rates will be corsidered
based on genuine hardship. The doforred payment
option means rates, charges and interest will still be
chargod, but the ratepayer does not have to pay the
amount until Coundl considers the payment will not
causo the ratepayer financal hardship, or the ratepayoer
no longer owne or occupios the land. Deferral of ratos
will apply to sl classos of property.

Debt recovery

Council mskos ovary offort to contact ratepayers

at their correct address, but it is tho ratepayers’
rosporsibility to proporly advico Counxil of their
contact details. The Local Government Act 2020
Section 122 requires the purchasar of property, or their
agents (0.9, solicitors and/for corveyancere), to notify
Council by way of notice of acquisition of an intecost
in land.

If an account becomes overdus, Coundl will issua

an overdua reminder notice. If the account romains
unpaid, and a paymant plan hae not beon establiched,
Council may take logal action without further notice to
rocover the overdue amount. All foos and court costs
incurred will bo recoverable from the ratopayer.

If an amount payablo by way of rates in respect to
land has beon in arrears for three yoars or more, Council

may take action to sall the property in accordance with
the Local Government Act 1789 Section 161

Ararat Rural City
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Payment Plans

Any ratepayor who is experiencing financiel difficulty is advised that Coundil is syrpathetic to their financial situation
and thet Baxible payrment plane can be developed bated on their abikty to pey. Retepayers wishing to make o
poymont plan ace requiced to make application.

Council will consider ol ressonable payment plan spplications. Howewor, offorts should be made to negotiate full
paymont of overdue debts by the ond of the currant financial year or before the issuance of the naxt annual rates and
valuation notices.

A payment plan for overdue rates older than one financial year should aim to sottle all outstanding balances,
including current and arroars, within a madmum period of four (4) yoars. Coundil Officers can provide sssistance in
calculating appropriste payment amounts to achiove thic objective.

Aftor agrecing to a suitable payment plan, Coundil will sond an accoptance lottor to the applicant outlining the terms
of the amangomont. A waiver of interest will thon apply to the account.

if ratos remain outstanding or if thore is a default in an agreed paymant plan, intorest will be reinststed, and the
account may be referrod to Counall's debt collection agency for further action.

Additional information is available in Coundl’s Rate Collection Policy.

10725




29 APRIL 2025
COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES

Emergency
Services and
Volunteers Fund

In 2012 the Victorian State Government

passod legslation requiring the Fire Servicas Property
Lovy (FSPL) to be collected from ratopayors. This lovy
was proviously collected through building and proporty
insurance premiums. From 1 July 2025, the FSPL will be
replaced by the Emergency Services and Voluntoors
Fund (ESVF). Like the FSPL, the ESVF will be calculated
baced on a fixed charge that varies by proporty type,
and & variablo charge based on proporty value.

The ESVF will fund up to 5% of the annual budgets for
VICSES, Triple Zoro Victoria, Emergency Mansgemant
Victoria and Forest Fire Managoment Victoria, and all
lavies collected by Council will be patsod through to
the State Governmant.

This levy is nat induded in the rate cap and
increasos in the levy are at the discretion of the State
Governmant. However, ot the time of publication the
changes have not yet been adopted as legislation.

Other Revenue
Sources

User Fees and Charges

Usor fees and charges aro those that Ararat Rural City

Council will charge for the delivery of services and the

use of community infrastructure. Examplos of Council's

usor foos and charges includa:

* Waste management feas

* Fitness Cantre, gym, and pool visitation and
membership foes

¢ Facility income - Ararst Town Hall Great Hall,
Aloxandra Oval Cormnmunity Centre, Gordon Stroet
Recrestion Reserve

* Bulldng Senvices
* Regstration fees — health, animal

Ararat Rural City

The provision of infrastructure and services form

8 koy part of Council's role in supporting the local
comemunity, In providing these faclities, Council must
coneider a range of principles induding service cost
and quality standacds, value for monay, snd community
expoctations and veluos, Counal must aleo balance
the affordability and accessibility of infrastructure and
sorvicos with its fnancial capacity and the intorosts of
long-term Snancial sustainability.

Each yoar, Counci dovelops o table of foes and
charges as part of its annual Budget. Pricing changes
aro induded in the Budget and are avaiable for
community engagemant before the Budget is adopted,
giving stakeholdars the chance to review and provide
feedback before the fees are finalised.

In detarmining charges for community services, Councl
must datermine if the axtent of cost recavery for
senvices is consistent with the individual and collective
benafit that the service provides and the community's

expectations.

Sarvices are provided based on one of the following

pricing mathods:

8) Zero cost recovery — This sarvice is provided at no
cost. The costs are maet entirely froem rates and
genaral-purpose income.

b) Partial cost recovery - Pricing for this service is ot
a¢ a mix of user contribution and subsidy from
Coundl revenue.

) Full cost recovery - The full cost of tha service is
paid by the user,

d) Market Price - The price is et by comparisons with
ko sarvicos dolivared by ke Councils or
competitors.
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Statutory Fees and Fines

Statutory fees and fines are those which Council
collacts whare price is sat through legislative or
regulatory mechanisma. Pricing is generally established
through penalty unite or fee units.

Examples of statutory fees and fimes include:
¢ Panning and subdivition foes

¢ Building and inspoction foes

* Infringoments and fines

* Wasto managoment foos

¢ Land information Cortificato foos

Penalty units

Ponalty units are used to define the amount payable
for finec for many offences. The rate for panalty
units is indexed each finandal year. One penalty unit
is currontly $197.59, from 1 July 2024 to 30 Juno 2025.

Feo units

Foee units are used to caloulate the cost of a
cartificate, registration or licence that is set in
lagislation or regulation. The value of one fee unit

is currantly $16.33 and Is reviewed each financial yoar.

The cost of feas and penalties is calculated by
mudtiplying the number of units by the curnent value
of the fee or unit. The axact cost may be rounded
up or down. For axample, the Building Request for
Information fee for 2024-25 is based on 319 units x
$16.33 por unit = $52.10 frounded).

Ararat Rural City

Grams

Grant rovenue represonts income usually roceived from
other lovels of governmant. Some grants aro tingular
and attachod to the delivery of spedfic projects, whilst
othors can bo of a recurrent nature and mey or may not
be linked to the delvery of projocts.

Council will pro-actively advocate for grant funding
support to deliver important infrastructure and service
outcomes for the community. Council may use its own
funds to laverage higher grant funding and maximise

Contributions
Contributions represent funds received by Counal,

usually from non-govemmaent sources, and are usually
linkad to projects.

Contributions con be mada to Council in the form of
sither cash payments or asset handovers.

Examplos of contributions indude:

* Monios collocted from developers under planning
and dovelopment agreemonts,

¢ Contributions from user groups towards upgrade of
facilitios.

* Assots handed over to Coundl from dovelopers
at the completion of a subdivision, such as roads,
drainage, and public open tpace,

Interest on investments

Council roceives intorost on funds managod as part
of its investment portfolio, where funde are held in
advance of expenditure, or for spedal purposos.

The investmant portfolio is managed per Counal's
investmant policy, which secks to eam the best roturn
on funds, whilst minimising risk.
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Application for Waiver/Deferral
of Rates and Interest

The Local Government Act 1987 specifies Council's
obligations for doforring payment of rates and the
waiver of rates and interest:

Section 170. Deforred payment

A Council may defor in whole or in part the
paymant by a parson of any rate or charge
which is due and payablo for a spedified period
and subject to any conditions determined by
the Council if it considers that an application
by that person shows that the payment would
cause hardehip to the person.

2 On daferral of the payment the person who
Is Bable to make the payment is not lisblo until
the Council sends tha person a notice under
sub-saction (3).

3 A Council may by a notice sent to a person—
(a) roquire that person to pay the whola or
part of any deferrad rate or charga by
spacified date if —

{} it considars that the person's
dreumatances have so changad that
the paymant would no longer cause
hardship to the persorn; or

{i) the person no longer owns or occupies
the land in relation to which tha rate or
charge was levied; and

(b} requires the paymaent of Interast for the late

paymant of tha rate or charge, as if the
defarral had not occurred.

Note: The deferred paymant option means ratas,
charges and interest aro stil charged, but
the ratepayer does not have 1o pay the amount
untill Councl considars tha payment will not
cause the ratepayer financial hardship, or the
ratepayer no longer owns or occuples the land.

Section 171A. Waiver
L A porson who—
(o} is suffaring financial haedship; or

b) would suffer fnancial haedship if that person
paid the full amount of a rate or chaege for
which he or she is hable— may apply to »

Council for the waiver of the whole or part of any rate or
charge or of any imterest imposed for late payment.

2. The Council may recuire the spplicant—
(8} 1o give furthor particulars; ot
(b) to verify particulars— in rolation to the
application,

3 The Council may waive the whole o part of any
rate or charge of interast.

Note: The watver option means Council reduces the
whole or part of any rate, charge, or intarest.

Extornal rosources that may aesiet ratopayers who

cannot afford to pay their rates include:

* Consurmer Action Law Centre -
https:Feconsumoraction.oeg.aw/

¢ Financial Counselling Australia -
https:dwww.debtselthelp.org au/

o CAFS .
hitps:Awww.cafs org su/Listing/CategoryBinancial
counsolling
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If you are a ratepayes snd you with to have your rates deferred or waived, pleste complote the following questions
and submit 1o Ararat Rural City Council offices at 59 Vincent St, Ararat VIC 3377:

Questions Answers

1 What is the amount of rates.interost you owe?

2 What is the amount of rates-arears you owe?

3 What is the amount of rates-current you owe?

Are you seeling a wakver of rates and interest? I
0, how much? (A waiver moans Coundil reduces
* the whole or part of any rate, charge or interost
and the ratepayer does not need 1o pay the
amount waived)

Aro you seeking a deforral of rates? If so, until
when? (A daferral of rates means ratos, chargos
5 and interast are still charged, but he ratepayer
doas not have to pay the amount untl an
appropriate time in the futume determined by
Coundil)

& What is your full name?

7 What is your phone number?

What s the address of the property on which
you am seeking a walvar/defarral of rates?
Is the property used exclusively for rsidential

9 purposes and is 1t your sole or principal place of
rescance?

10 What income do you receive sach month?

" What expormes do you have each month?

What is the diference between Income and
exponses each month?

Can you provide a finandal statement that
13 detalls your monthly income and expenses If we

12

require this?

1 How much monay do you have in the bank,
induding any investments?

15 Do you have any other assets? a.g., investment
propetas

% Ace you owed any monay? If yes, give details

7 What other monays do you owe, not previously
mentioned? E.g., mortgage, car loars
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Please provide the reascn/s why you cannot pay
your rates.

19 Do you have an offer to pay this debt?

Do you believe you would suffor financial
l\nmpifyw had to pay the full amount of the
20 rates for which you are lable? Hardship does rot
gonorally apply to ratepayers who have
short-torm cash flow problams,
Signsture of appliicant: Dated:
Sigreture of witnass: Dated:

External resourcas that moy sesist ratepayars who cannot afford to pay their rates include:

¢ Consumer Action Law Centre - https/fconsumeraction.org.au/
¢ Finandal Counseling Australia - htpsfwww.debtselfhelp.org.au/
o CAFS - https:#www.cafs org au/Listing/Category/financial-counsalling
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Application for Farm Land

Classification

Farm Land Eligibility Critecia

In 2018 as part of the recommondation from the Rating
Strategy Advisory Group and the Citizen's Jury, Counl
resolvad to make a change to oligibility of properties
which can clsim the farming diffecantial rato.

To be aligible for the farm differential, Farm Land
must meat the definition under the Valuation of Land
Act 1960 and be usad for the carrying out of primary
production by an owner or occupier who is regarded as
o Primary Producer by the Australian Taxation Office.

Proparty ownars who wish to claim the farming rate are
asked to consider the eligibidity information provided
balow and complote the Statutory Dedaration if
applicabla.

Valuation Land Act 1960
Undar the Valustion of Land Act 1940 Farm Land means
any rateable land -

) That is not less than 2 hactares in ares; and

(b} That is uead primarily for grazing (including
agistment), darying, pig farming, poultry
farming, fich farming, treo farming,
beokeeping, viticulture, horticulture, fruit-
growing, or the growing of crops of ary kind or

for any combinstion of those activities,
and
(%] That ic used by a businets -
i That has significant and substantial
commarcal purpose or character and
i, That saeks to make & profit on
continuous of ropetitive basis from its

activitios on the land; and

. That is meking a profit from its activities
on the lend, or that has & reascnable
proepoct of making a profit from its
actvitios on the land if it continuos
to aperate in the way thet it is
operating.

For the purpose of differential rating as determined by
Council, Farm Land must sleo be used for the caerying

on of primary production by an owner or an occupier
who it regarded as a Primary Producer by the Australian
Taxation Office.

Australian Taxation Office

Sumenary of main indicators of carrying on a businees of
primary production:
* Adignificant commarcial activity

* Purpose and intention of the taxpeyer in angaging in
the activity

* An imontion to make 8 profit from the activity

¢ Tha activity is or will ba profitable

* Rapetition and ragudarity of activity

* Activity it carriod on in & similar mannor to that of the
otdinary trade

* Activity organised in a businesslike mannor with
records kept

* Size and scale of the activity

* Not a hobby, recrestion, or sporting activity

* Abusiness plan existe

* Commarcial sales of product

* Taxpayor has knowlodge or skill in the business

Ararat Rural City

10731



29 APRIL 2025 -@
COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES N

Ararat Rural City

Eligibility Checklist

The following questions are to assist you to determine i the land incloded Is Farm Land and Is eligible for the

Farm Rate. Is each property listed on your property details form?

Used for primary preduction activity as described by the Yos / No
ATO

Greator than 2 hoctares (not including land devoted to Yes / No
domastic use o uncleared land)

Used to carry on a business of primary production that has » Yos / No
sgnficant and substantal commesdal purpose

Sooking to make a profit on & continuous basis from its

activitios on the land Vos / No
Oparating with a reasonable prospect of making & profit if it Yos / No
continues to operate In its current form.

If you answered yes to al of these quastions you are eligible for tha Farm Rate. if you arswared no to any you will
rot be eligible.

Farm Rate Statutery Declaration

After reading the Farm Rate Eligbility Criteria, plasse complete the table below and Statutory Dedlaration for all
properties you deem elkgible for the Farm Rete and return 10 PO Box 246, Ararat VIC 3377, or
omail: rates@ararat vic.gov.au

Property Details

Status ~ Owner, Occupier/

Area in hectares
Rate Payer 2

Assesunent No Property Address

«g. 618111111 ;fkm‘ ] P 0.9, 30.46ha

If space provided Is insufficent, please attach a list of additional properties or complete additional spplication(s)

10732




29 APRIL 2025
COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES

Instructions for completing a statutory declaration

Plaase comploto the following form wsing the notes in the left-hand margin for guidance. More guidance on making
statutory doclarations can be found ot www justico vicgovau

Whon making the statutory declaration the declarant must say aloud

1, fll name of person making declarstion] of feddress], declare that the contents of this statutory dedaration are true

Ararat Rural City

and correct.
Statutory Declaration
Insert the name, I,
address, and occupation
(or dtematively,
unemployed or retired | make the following statutory dedamtion under the Oaths and Affirmations Act 2018:
o chid) of person
making the statutory
daclasation
Set out mattor declared | 1. | have read the Farm Land Elgibility Criteria;
to in numbered
paragraphs. Add 2 | beliove that the land listed in the proporty dotails table can be defined as Farm
numbers, as necessary. Land and is used for farming purposes.
3 The land is used for these purposes by a Primary Producer as defined by the
Australian Taxation Office.
4. | will acvise Councll if the circumstances relating to my land changes.
5. The information is true and correct to the best of my knowledge and belief
| declare that the contents of this dedaration are true and correct and |
make it kaowing that making & statutory that | know to be untree is an
offence.
Signature of person
making the dedamtion

Flace (City, town, or
suburb)

Dedared at: *In the state of Victoria

Date

on

Signature of suthoriced
statutory dedarstion
witnoss

Dato

| am an authorised statutory declaration witness and I sign this document in the pres-
ence of the person making the declaration:

on

Nama, capacity in which
authorised parson has
authority to witness
statutory dedlaration,
and addross fariting,
typing or stamg)

A pamson authorised under secticn 30(2) of the Oaths and Affirmations Act 2018 1o
witness the signing of a statutory declaration.
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Appendix 3
Equalising Rating Burden

Rating segment Numberof  Total CIV($) Differential Total rates  Rates “burden”

astessments Gine. MQ (5)
General 5367 2,025,125,000 1.00 $7.617,345 5146%
Commercial a7 153,962,000 140 $785425 53%
Inchustrial 15 49899000 1.40 $256 044 17%
Farm Land 1610 4,448,650,500 0385 $6115910 41.4%

SOME “SUPPLEMENTARY" RATES
MAINLY IN GENERAL CATEGORY

MINCR DECREASE IN GENERAL AND FARM LAND VALUATIONS
MOVE COMMERCIAL / INDUSTRIAL DIFFERENTIAL FROM 1.40
TO 1.35 AND FARM LAND DIFFERENTIAL FROM 0.385 TO 0.39

TO “EQUALISE" RATES BURDEN

PROPOSED 1.5% RATE INCREASE

tating sogment borof  TotalCIV(S)  Dffersntisl  Totalrates Rates “burden”
S, :  assessments RO AT RS . MO 00
General 5413 2,012,184,000 1.00 $7.852.047 51.80%
Inchustrial 1M 51,378,000 1.35 $263,672 170%
Form Land WM 432354600 o®  sezees anok
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Traditional Acknowledgement

Ararat Rural City Council acknowledges the
Traditional Owners of the land on which we
live and work, the Eastern Maar, Wotjobaluk,
Jaadwa, Jadawadijali, Wergaia, Jupagulk,
and Wadawurrung peoples, and recognise
their connection to the land and waterways.

We pay our respects to their Elders past,
present and emerging, and to all Aboriginal
and Torres Strait Islander people.
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1. Legislative Requirements

This saction describes how the Finandal Plan links to the achlevement of the Community
Vision and the Council Plan within the Integrated Strategic Planning & Reporting framework.
This framework guides Ararat Rural City Coundil in identifying community needs and
aspirations over the long term (Community Vision), medium term (Coundl Plan) and short
term {Annwal Budget) and then holding itself accountable {Annual Repon).

The diagram below depicts the ntegrated strategic planning and reporting framework that
applies to local government in Victoria, and demonstrates how each element might inform
or be informed by other parts of the integrated framework.
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1.1 Strategic Planning Principles

The Finandal Plan provides a 10-year finandally sustainable projection regarding how the
actions of the Council Plan may be funded to achiave the Community Vision. The Financial

Plan is developed in the context of the following strategic planning principles:

a) Coundil has an integrated approach to planning, monitoring and performance reporting.
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b) Council's Financial Plan addresses the Community Vision by funding the aspirations of the
Council Plan. The Council Plan aspirations and actions are formulated in the context of the
Community Vision.

<) The Financial Plan statements articulate the 10-year finandial resources necessary to
implement the goals and aspirations of the Council Plan to achieve the Community Vision.

d) Council's strategic planning principles identify and address the risks 10 effective
implementation of the Financial Plan. The financial risks are included at section 1.2.2 below.

&) The Financial Plan provides for the strategic planning principles of monitoring of progress
and reviews to identify and adapt to changing croumstances.

1.2 Financial Management Principles

The Finandal Plan demonstrates the following finandal management prindples:

1.2.1 Reverwe, expenses, assets, liabilities, investments and finandial transactions are
managed in accordance with Coundl's financial policies and strategic plans.

1.2.2 Management of the following finandial risks:
a) the financial viability of the Council (refer to section 2.1 Financial Policy Statements).

b) the management of current and future liabilities of the Council. The estimated 10-
year liabilities are dedosed in section 3.2 Balance Sheet projections.

) the beneficial enterprises of Coundl

1.2.3 Financial policies and strategic plans are designed to provide financial stability and
predictability to the community.

1.2.4 Council maintains accounts and records that explain its financial operations and
financial position (refer section 3 Finandal Statements)

1.3 Engagement Principles

Council has implemented the following consultation process to ensure due consideration
and feedback is received from relevant stakeholders,

a) Draft Financial Plan prepared by management.

b) Community engagement around the Financial Plan 2025- 2035 is conducted using
the Engage Ararat platform online, and in-person community meetings.

9 Draft Financial Plan, induding any revisions, presented to the June Council Meeting
for adoption.
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1.4 Service Performance Principles

Council services are designed to be purposeful, targeted to community needs and value for
money. The service performance principles are listed below:

a) Services are provided in an equitable manner and are responsive to the diverse
needs of the community. The Council Plan is designed to identify the key services
and projects to be delivered to the community, The Financial Plan provides the
mechanism to demonstrate how the service aspirations within the Council Plan may
be funded.

b) Services are accessible to the relevant users within the community.

q Council provides quality services that provide value for money to the commaunity. The
Local Government Performance Reporting Framework (LGPRF) is designed to
communicate Coundil's performance regarding the provision of quality and efficient
services,

d) Council has a performance monitoring framework to continuously improve its service
delivery standards.

e) Council has a service delivery framework that considers and responds to community
feedback and complaints regards service provision.

1.5 Asset Plan Integration

Integration 1o the Asset Plan is a key principle of the Council's strategic finandal planning
principles. The purpose of this integration is designed to ensure that future funding is
allocated in a manner that supports service delivery in terms of the plans and the effective
management of Council’s assets into the future,

The Asset Plan identifies the operational and strategic practices which will ensure that
Council manages assets across their life cycle in a finandally sustainable manner. The Asset
Plan, and asscciated asset management polides, provide Council with a sound base to
understand the risk associated with managing its assets for the community’s benefit.

The Asset Plan is designed to inform the 10-year Financial Plan by identifying the amount of
capital renewal, backlog and maintenance funding that is required over the life of each asset
category. The level of funding will incorporate knowledge of asset condition, the risk
assessment issues as well as the impact of reviewing and setting intervention and service
lovels for each asset class.

in addition to identifying the operational and strategic peactices that ensure that Council
manages assets across their life cycle in a financially sustainable manner, the Asset Plan
quantifies the asset portfolio and the finandal implications of those practices. Together the
Financial Plan and Asset Plan seek to balance projected investment requirements against

projected budgets.
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2. Financial Plan Context

1. Fsancial Plas Context

This section describes Be contest and J / intermnal enviror and 5 N der g the Y0 year financial projections and
sssuTpions.

2.1 Rrancal Policy Statements

This defiren the that & Council's fin | watainabilty in crder 1o fund the ap of the C.
and e Coundl Men.
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22 Strategi Actions

Following a sedes of commwnity engagement activties, Councld has identited the following st ategic acnions that wil supporn the asplations of
the Counc Plan. The stategic acticns are indluded in e 10 your Fnancial Plan and, where sppeopriate, referenced in the commentary

asociaied with the 10 year Compesharaive In Stasement and the Y year Statement of Captal Works. The folowing are key irategic
actions derived from the Community Vislon 2025 2035 and the Councll Plan 2005 2009

o Martaining rvessmant in renewal capal works 80 snmrs an effective local roads neteork hat maewts the economic and sockl needs of
the mwnicipad comemunity.
o Erauring ongoing ongansational effciencies are retumed as & dvidend 10 rategayers IVOugh responsible rating.
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o westing In poagr pproacher 1o | manage nd in local spproaches 10 engaging In a circuler

OOy,

o Mantaning snd doveloping community, recreational sed sporting lackities

s Dewloping key industry and sesearch partnenhips 10 delvwer cost effective, Innovative appeoaches 10 health and wellbeing. economic
growt and housing develcp

o Demmosstating that sewall nuedd councls, Moo Arwat Rurid Ciry Coundl, con maintain ssets, delver eflective community services and

terman fnancially viedle.
23 Assurngtions 10 the Finandal Plan Statements
This = infoemation in regard to the ¥ 10 the Compesh n “rar for the 30 years from 200524 %0
204735 The oth erite the asnual escal / fox each ine tem ol the Cormpreheraive b Sew

f ar mation | acom

N areneiest

Hates g (Nwges 9 5% 25% 25% 15% 9% 5% 25% 5% 15%
SURAory 4es ang Snes 29 9 1% 5% 155 2, 5% 1% FAL ) 15%
s fees. i P 2158 PR 1% 2% %% 1% 2% 9%
Crares - Opevatng 25 5% 1% 255 15% 19, 5% 5% 258 15%
C®er ncorw 2% 9% 2% s 25% 29, 5% 2% 2, I
Evgaovee costy I25% 3% DN DN DI IR DN AN DN DN
Maderias and seraces 2% 255 25% 25% PLLY 2% 25% 25% 255 %%
Degrecation A Amartaason % 9% 205 2. 19 29, 58 PR am s
Ot esperaes 9% 5 215% 5% 15% 9% 5% 1% 5% 1%
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3. Financial Plan Statements

This section pretents information in regerd to the Financial Plan Statements for the 10 years fram 2005/26 1o 2034735,

Comprohensive Income Statornent
Balance Shoet
Statemaent of Cash Flows
Statoment of Capital Works
Statoment of Human Resources
Statement of Changes in Equity
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1.1 Comprehemive Income Statement
For Bhe 10 yoirs ended 30 Jure 2035
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1.2 Balance Sheet
For Bhe 10 yoirs ended X0 Jure 2035
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3.3 Statement of Changes in Equity
For the 10 years endad 30 June 2035

Accumuylated  Revaluason
S on ps oo v

000 $000

ca e
0nss
(1o7)
a1
108,349

Balance at begewing of he fnancil year BT L]

Surphus| defiol) for the yeor 0.es
Net asset revabuaton

Transders 0 ofher resarves .
Transters rom other reserves -

Balance 2 end of the financial year 221,198

Balance ot beginving of he fnancl year 321,198

Surphadetict) for the year 2,050
Net asset revaluaton

Transfers 10 oher reserves -
Tranaders from cther reserves >
Balance ot end of the financial year 323,248

Eai.‘ig

alarce at begrning of the fnancil year 323248
Surphu) deficit) for the year 1,048
Net assst revaluaton

-

Transiers 10 ofher reserves a
Tearsbers from other reserves -
Balance at end of the financial year

B3 g3
g

:

xonm

Balarce ot begrveng of he INancl year 324208 190,743 2081 5430
Surphasdeficn) for the year 1.25¢ 125 . -
Net asset revaluston

norement|decrement) ~ - < s
Transters 1o other reserves . @71) . m
Transters from other reserves . . = .

Balance 2t end of the financial year __ mssa 1723 208,42 5701
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Acoumulated  Revaluaton

Sorpha = ant o

$000 $000
Batance at beginning of the fnancisl year 028547 1 20010 S0
Surphus{ defoit) for the year 1283 1283 - -
Net asast revaluaton
ncrement|decrement) ° - ~ o
Transiers 10 ofer reserves - @m . g
Transters from other reserves - - - -
Balance 3 end of the financial year 326,830 12729 26173 5378
2%
Balance ot beginning of the fnancal year 2000 nane 20 s
Surphus/|defiol) for the your 1.202 1262 . .
Net asset revaluaton
ncrement{decrement) - - = -
Transders o ofher resecves. - (234) - 284
Transbers from cther teserves - > - -
s bt o AT T 5282
2001
Balance ot beginning of he fnancal year 28122 153737 2081 a2
Surphus| deticlt) for he yeur 1324 1324 . -
Net asset revaluston
increment{decrerment) N - . -
Transters to other reserves . ) . ol
Transfers from other reserves - o . -
Balance at end of the financial year 329,445 144770 2081423 6583
a0
Balance ot begrving of e fnancad year 20440 14770 20813 455
Susphunideficit]) for the year 1.2%8 1.2%8 . .
Net asset revaluaton
ncrementdecrenment) - - - -
Transders 1o oher resecven - (299) - »e
Transters from other reserves o . . .
Balance at end of the Ninancial year
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Acoumulated  Revaluaton

Sorpha Fom vt o

$000 $000
falance at beginring of the fnancial year 2004 11509 201 LY -
Surphus defalt) for the year 1,305 1,306 - -
Net asast revaluaton
ncrement|decrement) . . . .
Transiers 10 oher reserves - (300) . 308
Transters from other reserves - - - —
Balance 2 end of the financial year 332,199 116,918 266123 7458
0M
Balance ot beginning of the fnancal year 22100 18010 X000 1%
Surphus/|defiol) for the your 1424 1424 . .
Net asset revaluaton
ncrement{decrement) - - = -
Transters 0 ofher resecves - (314) - 34
Transbers from cther teserves - 2 - -
Salimcedendoltefinindies _nS) @y e 747
00
Balance ot beginning of he fnancal year 33a03 1nemse 208123 TAT2
Surphus| deticlt) for he yeur 1483 1403 . -
Net asset revaluston
increment{decrerment) N . . -
Transters to other reserves . 322) . 2
Transfers from other reserves - o . -
Balance at end of the financial year 35,036 115,169 28123 7,794
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JA Statement of Cash Flows
For the 10 years ended 30 Juse 2035
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1.5 Statement of Capital Works
For he 10 yeans ended 10 Jure 2035
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146 Statement of Human Resources
For the 30 years anded 30 heve 2035
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17 Summaery of Planned Humen Rescurces Expenditurs
For Bhe 10 yoirs ended 30 Jure 2035
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Key to Forecast Trend:

+ Forecasts improvement in Coundil's financial performance/financial position indicator
o Forecasts that Council's financial performance/finandal position indicator will be steady
- Forecasts deterioration in Councll's financlal performance/financial position indicator

Notes to Indicators

1. Adjusted underlying result

An indicator of the sustainable operating result required to enable Council to continue to
provide core services and meet s objectives. The adjusted underlying result caladation
inchudes recurrent capital funding such as Roads to Recovery funding.

2. Working capital
The proportion of current liabilities represented by current assets. Working capital is
forecast to steadily increase in future years.

3. Unrestricted cash

Council's cash and cash equivalents are subject to external restrictions that limit amounts
available for discretionary use, which includes trust funds and deposits, and funds held in
statutory reserves. This indicator measures the proportion of current liabilities represented
by unrestricted cash.

4, Debt compared to rates
This indicator measures the level of Council's total debt as a percentage of rate revenue.

5. Asset renewal

This percentage indicates the extent of Council's renewal and upgrade of assets against its
depreciation charge (an indication of the deciine in value of its existing capital assets). A
percentage greater than 100 indicates Coundil is maintaining its existing assets, while a
percentage less than 100 means its assets are deteriorating faster than they are being
renewed and upgraded and future capital expenditure will be required to renew and
upgrade assets.

6.  Rates concantration

Reflacts extent of reliance on rate revenues to fund all of Council's on-going services. This
indicator confiems Council relies heavily on rates as a source of income. The trend indicates
Council will continue to be reliant on rate revenue compared to all other revenue sources,
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5. Strategies and Plans

This secnion deecrbes the strstegees and plass that suppon the 10 yew Seanced proje deded in e Fnancd Man

5.1 Borrowing Stramtegy

S5Y Comvemt Debit Posnion

The totd amcunt Bomoeed ae ot 30 June 009 4 $154.400.

5.1.2 Future Borrowing Recuiiraments

The fallowing ubie Sghighas Counid's propeced losn baance, ndudng new laans and loas repaymants for B 10 yean of the Fnancd Men
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4.4 2024/2025 CAPITAL WORKS PROGRAM - MARCH 2025
RESPONSIBLE OFFICER: CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

DEPARTMENT: CEO’S OFFICE
REFERENCE: 20637

OFFICER DIRECT OR INDIRECT CONFLICT OF INTEREST:
Officers providing advice to Council must disclose any conflict of interest.

No person involved in the preparation of this report has a conflict of interest requiring disclosure.

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

The Council has approved its 2024/2025 Capital Works Program as a pivotal component of the current
budget. With a substantial capital works investment totalling $15.513 million, the budget primarily
targets infrastructure enhancements.

Key initiatives include:
e Mount William Road Stage Two Construction - supported by Federal Government funding.
e Buangor Ben Nevis Road Stage One Construction - beginning from the Western Highway
section for approximately 1.5 kilometres
e Urban Gravel to Seal Road Upgrades continuing to upgrade accessibility across urban areas.
e Maintenance of Footpaths, Drainage, and Kerb and Channel

These projects underscore the Council's commitment to improving local infrastructure and fostering
community development in the 2024/2025 fiscal year.

DISCUSSION
Council's 2024/2025 Capital Works Program marks a significant shift from previous years, reintroducing
larger road and bridge construction projects post-pandemic. The program's budget has increased by
$6 million, with substantial state and federal funding, alongside smaller targeted works.
The focus for 2024/2025 remains on renewing and updating Council assets, leveraging in-house
capabilities, and supporting local employment and contractors.
Key areas include:

e Enhanced roads reseal program.

e Urban drainage improvements

e Footpath network upgrades

e Major urban road gravel to seal program

e Stage two of Mt William Road Reconstruction

e Roads to Recovery funded projects (Webb Street & McCrows Road Bridge)

Budget Status:

As of 31 March 2025, 43% of the budget is expended.

Buangor Ben Nevis Road plans are complete, and commencement of stage two of Mt William Road are
ready to commence, pending cultural heritage and flora and fauna reports.

With the Yarram Gap Road fires it is likely that our capital works budget will again be affected with
emergency works being a priority in early 2025. Construction on Churchill Avenue is continuing with
utilities and service provision being undertaken and footpath works ongoing.
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Budget gznmt':;ttt::AExpended % Notes
PROPERTY -
CAPITAL
Property Capital  [$270,000 $241,628 [91% [Works have been completed for
the resurfacing of the Pomonal
Tennis Courts, replacement of
windows at the Town Hall in the
Arts & Crafts Room, painting of
the Maroona Rec Reserve and
new touch screen kiosks. .
'S;a;f;(lj-'ebrary $200,000 $210,113  [105% [Works have been complete.
PEEELLY Aqualines Irrigation Pty Ltd have
Tatyoon Oval, $83,500 completed the worl§s with the
Drainage, Irrigation|Council $316,419  [96% ['SV PUMP e LSS
& Resurfacing reservoir to be completed
$250,000 before commencement of the
CFNP’ football season.
TOTAL PROPERTY $768,161 96%
PLANT &
EQUIPMENT
Eggt ;fgg;:ﬁ;rty$4o,ooo $41,261  [103% [Fully expended for 2024/2025
TOTAL PLANT & EQUIPMENT $41,261 103%
ROADS - -
Resheeting, widening and
alternative seal works have been
completed on a number of
roads including:

e Tatyoon North Road
g:ave'l Road e Mt William Road
Wiileetrl:nggl; % $1,800,000 |- $1,660,654 92% * Webbs Road
Alternative Sealing : EzzlgeeisHélcl)Egad

e Astons Road (Shoulders)

e Tunnel Road

e Tobacco Road

e Cherrytree Road

e Moyston Township

Reseal works are 89% complete
Reseal Program  [$1,000,000 | $892,546 [g9% [OF the current financial year,

with line marking the only

outstanding works.

These works will commence on
Mt William Road receipt of final cultural heritage
(24/25 - HSVPP $6,250,000 |- $2,329 - management plan. Final
Funding) meetings with Traditional

Owners are imminent.

<&

Ararat Rural City
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Buangor Ben Nevis
Road

Weighbridge
Place, Lake Bolac

Churchill Avenue,
Ararat

Webb Street,
Ararat

Urban Road
Gravel to Seal

Major Patching

Bridges

$2,143,000

$800,000

$700,000

$700,00

$100,000

$80,000

$68,522

$74,900

$305,770

$3,700

$10,727

$147,132

$1,161

$173,070

$12,323

$983,305

$72,421

$96,425

7%

9%

2%

140%

72%

121%

The EMAC CHMP has been
received for works over Fiery
Creek.
Plans and technical reporting
have been completed. Council
is working with Australian
Cultural Heritage Services to
complete CHMP. Finalisation of
the native vegetation offsets is
underway.
Asphalting works at
\Weighbridge Place have been
completed with final invoicing to
be received.
The intersection with Mortlake
IArarat Road was in poor
condition and required the
upgrade to withstand the heavy
\vehicle use in the industrial area.
Works have commenced on site
with footpath works and
service/utility proofing. Works
are to be completed by 30 June
2025 in line with LRCI funding.
Works will be undertaken in
conjunction with works on
Churchill Avenue.
\Works for this year's program
have been completed at

e Bailey Lane

e Currajong Ave/Mclellan

Street
e ROW Dawson/High
Streets
e Mulcahy Road
e Young Street.

Multiple design works are being
finished for the coming years
programs which will be
prioritised by a matrix to be
presented to Council soon.
Priority works have been
completed in November 24.
Other works are currently being
prioritised.

Investigations into the works
required for the Buangor Ben
Nevis Road Bridge 1 project are
underway.

These works include McCrows
Road Bridge which will be
undertaken with Roads to

<&

Ararat Rural City
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Footpath Renewal
Program

Urban Drainage
Works

Kerb and Channel

Miscellaneous

$400,000

$750,000

$239,000

$426,797

$378,800

$308,229

$133,317

107%

51%

129%

Recovery funding as approved
in January 2025.

Other bridge strengthening
works are being investigated
and estimated for upcoming
programs.

Council’s footpath program has
been completed with
Barkly/Queen Street Asphalt
Path, and Maude Street finished
in January 2025.

Other costs within this budget
include works on Tunnel Track,
Pomonal which was a funded
project and make up part of the
overrun.

Drainage works are progressing
with works currently completed
at Ararat Cemetery and
Thompson and Kneale Street
and Queen Street Stormwater.
Works on the main drain are
being compiled for completion.

\Works on the Walkerville and
Wileman Street project in
\Willaura have been completed.
These works include finalisation
of works at Gordon Street
Reserve and small projects
carried over from previous
ears.

TOTAL INFRASTRUCTURE

$463,619

$6,054,895

40%

TOTAL CAPITAL WORKS

$463,619

$6,864,317

43%

There are also projects that were funded in the 2023/2024 budget that have extended beyond the
single financial year. The committed expenditure includes contracts entered for construction of various
elements of the projects. The table below provides a summary of these projects:

Budget

Previously
Expended
Funds

Committe
d/Contrac
ted

Total
Expended

%

Notes

Mt William Road

Buangor
Recreation

$1,000,0
00

$313,911

$53,849

$846,340

$303

85%

Work commenced in late May
2024.

The works have been set out,
tree and stabilising works
have been completed. There
were significant soft spots
found within the area and
these have been remedied.
Final works include class A
stone and sealing works.

The project has been out to
the market and came in with a
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Reserve Kitchen significant price difference

Extension between the cost plan and the
pricing received from the
tenderers.

Funding has been received as
part of the Tiny Towns
Funding Program which will
help progress Stage 1 of this
project.

Council is currently
undertaking quotation works
with a local commercial
builder to try to progress
these works with alternative
design options to provide
better value to the
community.

KEY CONSIDERATIONS

Alignment to Council Plan Strategic Objectives
The key financial drivers align strongly with the thrust of the Council Plan 2021-2025, particularly the

following:

4.1 Ensure that asset development and renewal during the planning period matches that identified
in Council’s Asset Plan 2021-2031.

4.2 Work directly with asset users to manage and develop new and existing assets.

4.3 Deliver infrastructure outcomes that support economic growth, promote community wellbeing
and safety and align with Council’s financial sustainability.

6.1 Deliver responsible budget outcomes, linked to strategy, that deliver value, innovation, and

rating fairness.

Budget Implications

The 2024/2025 Capital Works Program represents a significant element of Council’'s 2024/2025 Budget.
In the current civil construction market, it is essential that Council manages capital works expenditure
carefully to ensure budget outcomes are met.

Policy/Relevant Law
The 2024/2025 Capital Works Program complies with the program funded in the 2024/2025 Budget.

Sustainability Implications

There are no environmental sustainability implications. Council is mindful of considering new
innovative approaches to improve its sustainability and environmental footprint as a part of the Capital
Works program.

Risk Assessment
The 2024/2025 Capital Works Program was developed as a mitigation of the financial risks associated
with market volatility currently being experienced in the civil and building construction sectors.

Innovation and Continuous Improvement

Development of the 2024/2025 Capital Works Program represented an agile response to market
conditions. A capacity to rework strategy based on a changing environment is a critical element in
developing an innovative organisation.

Stakeholder Collaboration and Community Engagement
The 2024/2025 Capital Works Program has been developed as an element of the 2024/2025 Budget.
There was extensive community engagement undertaken prior to adoption.
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RECOMMENDATION
That:
1. That Council receive the Capital Works Program - March 2025 report.

MOVED CR JOYCE
SECONDED CR WATERSTON

That:
1. That Council receive the Capital Works Program - March 2025 report.
Cr Joyce and Cr Waterston spoke for the motion

CARRIED 7/0
5131/25

ATTACHMENTS
There are no Attachments relating to this item
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SECTION 5 - INFORMAL MEETINGS

5.1 COUNCIL BRIEFINGS

AUTHOR'S TITLE: CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
DEPARTMENT CEO’S OFFICE
REFERENCE: 13039074

OFFICER’'S DECLARATION OF INTEREST
Officers providing advice to Council must disclose any conflict of interest.

No person involved in the preparation of this report has a conflict of interest requiring disclosure.

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

The Governance Rules state that if there is a meeting of Councillors that:

1. is scheduled or planned for the purpose of discussing the business of Council or briefing
Councillors;

2. is attended by at least one member of Council staff; and

3. is not a Council meeting, Delegated Committee meeting or Community Asset Committee

meeting, the Chief Executive Officer must ensure that a summary of the matters discussed at
the meeting are:

a. tabled at the next convenient Council meeting; and
b. recorded in the minutes of that Council meeting.
DISCUSSION

As a requirement of the Governance Rules, a summary of matters discussed at the Council Briefings
held since the last Council Meeting are presented to Council and will be recorded in the minutes.

INFORMAL MEETINGS
Council Briefing held on 8 April 2025

Matters discussed at the briefing:

Budget 2025/26

Revenue and Rating Strategy

Plan for Disability Action Plan

Fair Access Policy and Action Plan

Insurance

Major Plant Renewal Program

Roads to Recovery - 5 Year Program

Capital Works - March 2025

Capital Works Program 2024/25 - Alteration of budgeted works
Glass Recycling Collection and Processing

Purchase of Hook Lift Truck for Waste Management Services
Gravel to Seal Priority Matrix

Council Function and Event Spaces

Alexandra Oval Seasonal User Agreement

CBD Occupancy Survey February 2025

Building approvals

Planning approvals under delegation
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KEY CONSIDERATIONS

Alignment to Council Plan Strategic Objectives
The report supports the strategic objective of the Council Plan 2021-2025:

6. STRONG AND EFFECTIVE GOVERNANCE
We will work hard to build models of governance that place delivering public value at the
centre through effective financial management; well measured risk management; and
implementation of effective community engagement practices.

6.3 Continuously improve Council’'s community engagement process and practices in line with
deliberative engagement practices, while acknowledging the need for a range of different

techniques to ensure effective engagement.

Financial
There are no financial impacts for the receiving of Informal Meetings of Councillors.

Policy/Relevant Law
Reporting of Informal Meetings is in line with the requirements of the Governance Rules.

Risk Assessment

Following the requirements of the Governance Rules will ensure that Council meets its legislative
requirements.

Stakeholder Collaboration and Community Engagement

A summary of matters discussed at the Council Briefings are presented for community information.
RECOMMENDATION

That:

the Informal Meetings of Councillors Report be received.

MOVED CR PRESTON
SECONDED CR SANDERS

That:
the Informal Meetings of Councillors Report be received.
Cr Preston and Cr Sanders spoke for the motion

CARRIED 7/0
5132/25

ATTACHMENTS
The Summary of Council Briefings are provided as Attachment 5.1.
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Councillor Briefing Agenda

Date: Tuesday 8 April 2025
Commencement: 500 pm
Location: Council Chamber, Shire Offices

Councillors: Cr Jo Armstrong
Cr Rob Armstrong
Cr Peter Joyce
Cr Teli Kaur
Cr Luke Preston
Cr Bob Sanders

Officers: CEO, Dr Tim Harrison
Apologies Cr Bill Waterston

Disclosure of Conflict of Interests

Disclosure of Interests are to be made immedistely prior to any relevant item being discussed (Local
Government Act 2020 - Section 131 and Chapter 5, Section 6 of the Governance Rules).

Matters Considered

Mayor’s roundup

Budget 2025/26

Revenue and Rating Strategy

Plan for Disability Action Plan

Fair Access Policy and Action Plan

Insurance

Major Plant Renewal Program

Roads to Recovery - 5 Year Program

Capital Works - March 2025

10 Capital Works Program 2024/25 - Alteration of budgeted works
11 Glass Recycling Collection and Processing

12 Purchase of Hook Lift Truck for Waste Management Services
13  Gravel to Seal Priority Matrix

14  Council Function and Event Spaces

15 Alexandra Oval Seasonal User Agreement

16 CBD Occupancy Survey February 2025

17 Building approvals

18 Planning spprovals under delegation

0V 0 N>R W N -

Dr Tim Harrison
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SECTION 6 - COMMITTEE MINUTES/REPORTS

No Committee Minutes/Reports received
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SECTION 7 - NOTICES OF MOTION

A notice of motion must be in writing signed by a Councillor and be lodged with or sent to the Chief
Executive Officer no later than 12.00pm (noon) and at least six (6) days prior to the Council Meeting to
allow sufficient time for the Chief Executive Officer to include the notice of motion in agenda papers for
a Council meeting.

No Notices of Motion received
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SECTION 8 - URGENT BUSINESS

ltems cannot be admitted as urgent business other than by resolution of Council and only then if it:
1 relates to or arises out of a matter which has arisen since distribution of the agenda; and
2 cannot safely or conveniently be deferred until the next Council meeting.

No Urgent Business arising
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SECTION 9 - CLOSE SESSION (CONFIDENTIAL)

In accordance with section 66(2)(a), 3(1) Confidential Information (a) of the Local Government Act
2020, the following agenda items are listed for consideration in the confidential section:

No Confidential Agenda Items
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Meeting closed at 6:50pm

| HEREBY CERTIFY THAT PAGES 10457 - 10773 ARE CONFIRMED AND ARE A TRUE AND CORRECT
RECORD.

MAYOR - CR JO ARMSTRONG
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